Public Document Pack
5;;5 Tameside

Metropolitan Borough

ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE - AUDENSHAW - DENTON - DROYLSDEN - DUKINFIELD - HYDE - LONGDENDALE - MOSSLEY - STALYBRIDGE

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING)

Day: Wednesday

Date: 23 September 2020

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Zoom
Item AGENDA Page
No. No

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies from Members of the Panel.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Council.
3. MINUTES 1-2

The Minutes of the meeting of the Speakers Panel (Planning) held on 19
August 2020, having been circulated, to be agreed by the Chair as a correct
record.

4, OBJECTION REPORT TO PROPOSED PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION 3-38
ORDERS

To consider a report of the Assistant Director of Operations and
Neighbourhoods.

5. OBJECTION TO THE TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 39-54
(MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON UNDER LYNE) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING)
ORDER 2020

To consider a report of the Assistant Director of Operations and
Neighbourhoods.

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS
To consider the schedule of applications.

a) 20/00105/REM - FORMER ROBERTSON'S JAM FACTORY, WILLIAMSON 55 - 146
LANE, DROYLSDEN

b) 20/00559/FUL - 218 AUDENSHAW ROAD, AUDENSHAW, M34 5QR 147 - 178
c) 20/00585/FUL - 4 MILLER HEY, MOSSLEY, OL5 9PP 179 - 210
7. APPEAL DECISION NOTICES

a) APP/TPO/G4240/7652 - 18 WATER GATE, AUDENSHAW, M34 5QP 211 - 212

b) APP/G4240/D/20/3253884 - 70 TENNYSON AVENUE, DUKINFIELD, SK16 213 -214

From: Demaocratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Benjamin Hopkins, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 0161 342 2798 or
benjamin.hopkins@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified.



mailto:benjamin.hopkins@tameside.gov.uk

Item AGENDA Page

No. No
5DP

c) APP/G4240/D/20/3249221 - 22 SANDRINGHAM AVENUE, AUDENSHAW, 215-218
M34 5NE

d) APP/G4240/D/20/3251980 - 29 MOLLETS WOOD, DENTON, M34 3TW 219 - 220

e) APP/G4240/2/20/3247345 - 402 MANCHESTER ROAD, DROYLSDEN, 221 -224
MANCHESTER, M43 6QX

f) APP/G4240/D/20/3244243 - 94 GRANADA ROAD, DENTON, M34 2LA 225 - 228
9) APP/G4240/W/20/3251879 - 12 HALL AVENUE, HEYROD, STALYBRIDGE 229 - 232
SK15 3DF

h) APP/G4240/W/20/3253590 - LAND DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO 6 GREEN 233 -234
HOLLOW FOLD, STALYBRIDGE, SK15 3RP

8. URGENT ITEMS

To consider any other items, which the Chair is of the opinion should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

From: Demaocratic Services Unit — any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Benjamin Hopkins, Senior Demaocratic Services Officer, 0161 342 2798 or
benjamin.hopkins@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified.



mailto:benjamin.hopkins@tameside.gov.uk

Agenda Item 3.

SPEAKERS PANEL
(PLANNING)

19 August 2020

Present: Councillor McNally (Chair)

Councillors: Choksi, Dickinson, Glover, Gosling, Jones,
Lewis, Naylor, Owen, Ricci, Ward and Wild

16. MINUTES

The Minutes of the proceedings of the meeting held on 22 July 2020, having been circulated, were
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest declared by Members.

18. PLANNING APPLICATIONS
The Panel gave consideration to the schedule of applications submitted and it was:-

RESOLVED
That the applications for planning permission be determined as detailed below:-

Name and Application No: | 20/00545/R3D
Mr David Rhodes, Tameside MBC

Proposed Development: Construction of a two storey modular unit to the existing car
park at Hyde Community College.

Hyde Community College, Old Road, Hyde

Speaker(s)/Late Andrew White addressed the Panel objecting to the
Representations application.

Paul Smith, on behalf of the applicant, addressed the Panel in
relation to the application.

Decision: That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions
as detailed within the submitted report.

CHAIR

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:
Date:

Reporting Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Corporate Plan:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the statutory
Section 151 Officer & Chief
Finance Officer)

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the Borough
Solicitor)

Agenda Item 4.

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING)
23 September 2020

Emma Varnam - Assistant Director of Operations and
Neighbourhoods

OBJECTION REPORT TO PROPOSED PUBLIC SPACES
PROTECTION ORDERS

To consider the objections received by Engineering Services to
the advertised Public Spaces Protection Orders (previously
known as Gating Orders) within the borough.

It is recommended that the Panel reviews the objections and
comments received and that authority is given for the necessary
action to be taken for the following Orders to be made or
extended (as necessary) as Public Spaces Protection Orders in
their current format for a further three year period and that the
restrictions continue to operate at all times during this period:-

1. Churchbank to Brushes Avenue, Stalybridge

2. Dales Brow Avenue to Langham Street, Ashton-under-Lyne
3. Greenside Crescent, Droylsden

4. Haddon Hall Road to Sunnybank Park, Droylsden

5. Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield

6. Laburnum Road to Ash Road, Denton

7. Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden

8. Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle Drive, Stalybridge

9. Sunnyside Road to Lumb Clough, Droylsden

10. Waterloo Gardens, Ashton-under-Lyne

The proposals underpin a number of targets within the
Corporate Plan for Tameside and Glossop and more especially
in the promotion of Living and Ageing Well through the
promotion of Nurturing Communities.

The proposals underpin a number of targets within the
Corporate Plan for Tameside and Glossop and more especially
in the promotion of Living and Ageing Well through the
promotion of Nurturing Communities.

There is currently no cost to the Council of the existing gates
being in place and there are no expected maintenance costs
during the next three years. As a result, there are no financial
implications to extending the Public Spaces Protection Orders
on the same basis.

Members should have regard to the conditions which must be
satisfied in Section 59(4) and Section 60(2) of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 set out in paragraphs
1.3 and 1.5 of the report. The additional considerations
applicable to restricting public rights of way in Section 64(1) of
the Act (set out in paragraph 1.6 of the report) are also relevant
to all the proposed Public Spaces Protection Orders.

Page 3

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



When deciding whether to make or extend a Public Spaces
Protection Order, a Local Authority must have particular regard
to the freedom of expression and freedom of assembly set out in
articles 10 and 11 of the European Convention on Human
Rights.

Risk Management: Objectors would have a limited right to challenge the validity of
the Order in the High Court.

Access to Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected
by contacting Michael Hughes, Operations and Neighbourhoods

R Telephone: 0161 342 3704

B e-mail: michael.hughes@tameside.gov.uk

Page 4

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx


mailto:michael.hughes@tameside.gov.uk

11

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

BACKGROUND

The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act (the Act) was enacted in 2014. Section
59 of the Act introduced Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO’s) which gives the Council
powers to restrict the way in which the public can access or use public places if by taking
these measures it will cause a reduction in activities that will have a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality.

The Council receives numerous reports of public places that suffer from anti-social and
criminal acts. A report was presented to the Executive Board detailing the powers provided
by the legislation and how it could be used. The decision of Board was to support the use
of Public Spaces Protection Orders, where justified, across the Borough.

A local authority may make a PSPO under Section 59(4) of the Act if satisfied on
reasonable grounds that two conditions are satisfied:-

1) The first condition is that:-

a) activities carried on in a public place within the authority’s area have had a
detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or

b) it is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that area and that
they will have such an effect.

2) The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities:-
a) is, oris likely to be of a persistent or continuing nature,

b) is, oris likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and
c) justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice.

Transitional provisions under the PSPO legislation meant that Gating Orders (made under
the Highways Act 1980) were treated as PSPOs and remained in force for a maximum of
three years from the transition date (that is, to 20 October 2020). If the intention is to
continue the restriction after this time then a subsequent order is needed to extend the
duration. The orders can be subsequently extended for periods of up to three years.

A PSPO can be only be extended under Section 60 of the Act if the Council is satisfied on
reasonable grounds that extending an order is necessary to prevent an occurrence or
recurrence of the activities identified in the PSPO; or an increase in the frequency or
seriousness of the activities identified in the PSPO after the original PSPO would have
expired.

Where a local authority is considering making a PSPO restricting a public right of way over
a highway, there are some additional considerations in Section 64(1):-

a) the likely effect of making the order on the occupiers of premises adjoining or
adjacent to the highway;

b) the likely effect of making the order on other persons in the locality;

c) in a case where the highway constitutes a through route, the availability of a
reasonably convenient alternative route

Delegated approval was given on 21 August 2020 to advertise 10 PSPOs across the
borough for consultation.

This report gives details of the objections received to the 10 advertised Orders and the
officer response to these objections.

Page 5

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

CONSULTATION ON PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS

Consultation notices and draft versions of the proposed PSPO’s were advertised and
distributed in line with the Act on 21 August 2020.

The ten proposed Orders that have been advertised [and are annexed to the report] are as
follows:-

1. Churchbank to Brushes Avenue, Stalybridge (Appendix A)
2. Dales Brow Avenue to Langham Street, Ashton-under-Lyne  (Appendix B)
3. Greenside Crescent, Droylsden (Appendix C)
4. Haddon Hall Road to Sunnybank Park, Droylsden (Appendix D)
5. Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield (Appendix E)
6. Laburnum Road to Ash Road, Denton (Appendix F)
7. Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden (Appendix G)
8. Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle Drive, Stalybridge (Appendix H)
9. Sunnyside Road to Lumb Clough, Droylsden (Appendix I)

10. Waterloo Gardens, Ashton-under-Lyne (Appendix J)

OBJECTIONS TO THE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS

One objection was received during the consultation period. The objection has been
received from the Ramblers’ Association (Greater Manchester & High Peak Area) and
relates to all ten of the advertised PSPO’s.

The objection is made based on the preference from the organisation that all ten of the
routes be accessible at all times.

In addition to the general objection to having any PSPO restrictions, the objection then
identifies three of the locations where the alternative route that is available for public use is
considered by the organisation to be quite onerous. Details of the advertised draft orders
and plans showing the suggested alternative routes are included within the appendices to
this report.

The three locations that have been specifically highlighted are:-

1. Churchbank to Brushes Avenue, Stalybridge
2. Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield
3. Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden

The Ramblers’ Association (Greater Manchester & High Peak Area) have proposed that if
the Council determines that there is justification for the PSPO restrictions to remain at these
three locations then consideration should be given to amending the Orders so they only
operate at certain times of day.

For the proposed extension to the Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road PSPO, it has
been suggested that the gates should be unlocked an hour before the local schools open
and locked an hour after the schools close.

For the other two locations, it is suggested that the gates should be open during daylight
hours.

Page 6

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

ENGINEERING RESPONSE TO OBJECTIONS

Prior to advertising the ten proposed PSPO’s, an early engagement exercise was
conducted where views were sought from Greater Manchester Police and the relevant ward
Councillors. These responses were used to inform the Delegated Decision Report to gain
authorisation to proceed with the formal consultation exercise. Messages of support were
received from the Police and Ward Councillors for all ten of the locations (details of these
responses are available within Appendix K) with concern expressed that if the gates were
to be removed then the problems with crime and anti-social behaviour would return.

The opinion of the Police and the community knowledge gained from the Ward Councillors
suggested that the retention of gates at all ten of the locations as part of a PSPO was
justified.

During the formal consultation exercise, only one objection was received whereas there
were multiple statements of support provided by local residents (with none in opposition) in
addition to those from the Police and the Ward Councillors. It appears therefore that local
opinion is firmly in support of the ten restricted locations remaining gated as part of a
PSPO.

In the opinion of officers, the justification for the ten proposed PSPQO’s remain valid and no
new information has come to light during the consultation period to alter this opinion.
Officers would therefore argue that the security gates are serving their intended purpose
and if removed would likely create a situation where the problems with crime and anti-social
behaviour return to these locations.

The availability of a reasonably convenient alternative route is a relevant consideration.
The use of timed closures as suggested within the objection could potentially help to lessen
the inconvenience of the restriction at the three identified locations. Only restricting access
to these public footpaths during the hours of darkness would allow the majority of legitimate
users to access the paths with little hindrance whilst still providing the residents with
overnight protection from crime and anti-social behaviour.

Whilst this situation does appear to be a possible compromise, officers have considered
how timed closures of this sort could operate and no clear solution has been identified.

The opening could operate either by the use of Council staff resources or the contracting of
external resources to open the gates in accordance with the details of the Orders. This
would have implications in terms of staff resources for other projects or a significant
financial impact on existing Council budgets.

Another option would be for residents to be given responsibility for the opening and closing
of the gates. Whilst this would remove the onus of this duty from the Council, it does raise
other concerns. Issues such as residents not being available to open the gates due to
illness or holiday as well as other potential problems such as forgetting to lock the gates in
the evening or the presence of individuals that refuse to leave the restricted area creates a
liability, which could potentially fall back on the Council and lead to officers having to take
over the responsibility.

For the above reason, officers believe that there is no practical means by which a timed
closure of these passageways could operate without significant impact on the Council in
terms of staff and financial resources as well as potential increased liability.

As well as for operational purposes, doubt has been raised about the effectiveness of a
PSPO if the gates are unlocked during the day. Comments received from the Police for the
Churchbank to Brushes Avenue location suggests that much of the anti-social behaviour
stems from school children using the passageway during the daytime. If this is the situation

Page 7

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



411

412

4.13

4.14

4.15

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

for one passageway close to a school then it is reasonable to assume that similar issues
may exist on the other two pathways which are close to schools as well.

The relevant section of the comments received from the Police is as follows:-

“Churchbank / Brushes Avenue — This location has historically been a problem due to the
layout of the estates, the size and layout of this path. Local Policing teams spent time here
daily. The issues started from school children and similar aged kids causing issues during
the daytime, spitting, kicking cars and houses, littering, throwing stones and objects over
the high wall to residents being abused during the day/night by large groups who also used
to congrate in the alleyway which amplified down the streets .”

In light of the Police comments above as well as the operational difficulties with effecting a
timed closure, officers are of the opinion that all ten of the advertised PSOPs should
operate at all times.

A requirement of the Act is that the Council has particular regard to the rights of freedom of
expression and freedom of peaceful assembly and association with others as set out in
Articles 10 and 11 of the Human Rights Act 1998.

In so far as the PSPQO’s restrict rights in articles 10 and 11, the recommended PSPQO’s are
considered to be proportionate for the prevention of crime and anti-social behaviour and
because they are intended to be used only where there are genuine problems with people
causing a nuisance in a public place.

As part of the consideration of the suitability of the ten locations to be made or extended as
a PSPO, an Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed. The assessment
identified direct impacts on several of the protected groups (Age, Disability and Pregnancy
& Maternity) all of which relate to the additional journey length when the alternative route is
compared to being able to use the restricted passageway. In all cases, it was considered
that the additional length when balanced against the protection afforded to the residents
(and given the fact that the alternative routes have already been in use for several years
with little complaint from these groups) was deemed to be acceptable.

RECOMMENDATION

A PSPO can be only be extended under Section 60 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014 if the Council is satisfied on reasonable grounds that making or extending
an order is necessary to prevent an occurrence or recurrence of the activities identified in
the PSPO; or an increase in the frequency or seriousness of the activities identified in the
PSPO after the original PSPO would have expired.

It is recommended that the expert opinion of the Greater Manchester Police is accepted as
a measure of whether the problems will return if the restrictions are removed. If the opinion
of the Police is that the problems will return then the PSPOs should proceed as advertised
in the draft order.

Comments from Councillors for each area and supporting statements (with no objections)
from residents during the consultation period can be used to show local support for the
schemes.

One objection has been received to the proposed PSPOs. As detailed in Section 4 to this
report and by using the Police and ward Councillor comments, it is expected that the
problems with crime and anti-social behaviour will return if the security gates are removed
and so the continuation of restrictions at the ten locations does appear to be justified.

Page 8

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Timed closure of three of the PSPOs would present operational difficulties to the Council
and would potentially limit their effectiveness as well.

5.5 Based on this information, it is recommended that authority is given for the necessary
action to be taken for the the following Orders to be made or extended (as necessary) as
Public Spaces Protection Orders in their current format for a further three year period and
that the restrictions continue to operate at all times during this period:-

1. Churchbank to Brushes Avenue, Stalybridge

2. Dales Brow Avenue to Langham Street, Ashton-under-Lyne
3. Greenside Crescent, Droylsden

4. Haddon Hall Road to Sunnybank Park, Droylsden

5. Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield

6. Laburnum Road to Ash Road, Denton

7. Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden

8. Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle Drive, Stalybridge

9. Sunnyside Road to Lumb Clough, Droylsden

10. Waterloo Gardens, Ashton-under-Lyne

Page 9

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX A

Churchbank to Brushes Avenue PSPO

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

CHURCHBANK TO BRUSHES AVENUE, STALYBRIDGE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER
2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
59, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Palicing Act 2014 ("the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Crder shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of Footpath Stalybridge 82 as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan ("the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Article 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resftriction in Article 3 of this Qrder shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or dulies or fo any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and / or vehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternative route for pedesirians is along the pavement of Churchbank, continuing
along the pavement of Walkerwood Drive confinuing along the pavement of Huddersfield
Road, continuing along the pavement of Brushes Road, continuing along the pavement of
Brushes Avenue as shown by a bold broken line on the Order map.

6.  The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 55, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the circumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7.  Responsibility for the maintenance of the barriers in the Resftricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires to question the validity of this Crder on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGNED BY: eeieieieiiiiieiiiiiicieeeee.. . Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 10

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order

STA/82

Scale 1:2000
Comgiled by MH on 10 August 2020

lan Saxon

Diractor Operations & Neighbourhoods -
Tamesids One Tameside
PO BOX 304 S
Ashton-under-Lyne VISKIOPOREN BOrougrn
OL3 0GA

Addtional information: Engineering Serdos Tel - 0167 342 3704

(| Bz Public footpath to be gated

Reproducad from an Ordnance Survey map with the pamission of the Comtraller of HMSO © Crown Copyright. Licerse number LAT0002Z2597

82 rar ST SR \ X

- - - - Suggested alternative route

Existing definitive footpaths

o
wn
8|
'
? 4

NY

X

X \\ « .,
L
L] /;’/ . ~.

%

N

i

<X
N
|

S
S
~
N W
NS
Y
N
i

Page 11

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx




APPENDIX B

Dales Brow Avenue to Langham Street, Ashton-under-Lyne PSPO

ANTI-S0CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

DALES BROW AVENUE TO LANGHAM STREET, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE PUBLIC SPACES
PROTECTION (EXTENSION) ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Folicing Act 2014 (“the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Qrder shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Crder relates to that part of the adopted highway as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan {"the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Article 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resfriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or fo any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricied Area, or persons and [ or wvehicles reguired in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternative route for pedestrians will be along the pavement of Dales Brow Avenue,
continuing along the pavement of Atlas Sireet, continuing along the pavement of Oldham
Road, continuing along the pavement of Langham Street as shown by a bold broken line on
the Order map.

6.  The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the circumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, or is likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and jusiifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7.  Responsibility for the maintenance of the barmiers in the Resiricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGNED BY: viiiiiieiiiieiiiiiieenen.. . Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 12

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Metropolfitan Borough

4

Director Operations & Neighbourhoods

Tameside One

PO BOX 304
Ashton-under-Lyne
OLG 0GA

lan Saxon
Repeoducad from an Ordnancs Survay map with the peemission of the Controles of HIMSO © Cromn Copyright. Licsanss number LA100022667

Additianal information: Engneenng Service Tel - 0161 342 3704

Dales Brow Avenue

Public Spaces Protection Order

Scale 1:2000

Compiled by MH on 11 August 2020

e

,

e B,
“(GR: SD9343700109)

\\\14‘\? VR

\ 2 e

L o f’/ﬂ“——/ \

\ C EX A\ e
4.2... . C‘f /\\

= -
U
Aa_& oot -
\\M\nv.\\ M\\
L]

| >~ . —Of
b B e e = 1@
il P anti U leSY S etV

Page 13

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx




APPENDIX C

Haddon Hall Road to Sunnybank Park, Droylsden PSPO

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

HADDON HALL ROAD TO SUNNYBANK PARK, DROYLSDEN PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER
2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropaolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Folicing Act 2014 (“the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Crder shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of Footpaths Droylsden 50 as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan ("the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Article 4 of this Order no person shall use the public rfight of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resfriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, ar person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and / or vehicles reguired in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternative route for pedestrians will be along the pavement of Haddon Hall Road,
continuing along the pavement of Lewis Road, continuing along Footpath Droylsden 3,
continuing along the pavement of Westfield Road, continuing along Footpath Droylsden 4,
continuing along the pavement of Ansdell Drive, continuing along Footpath Droylsden 5 as
shown by a bold broken ling on the Order map.

6.  The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 59, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the circumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7.  Responsibility for the maintenance of the bamiers in the Resiricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Crder.

& If any person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGMNED BY: eveiiieieiiiiiiiiiiieieenaeee.. . Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 14

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order Isn Saxon

Director Operstions & Neighbourhoods -4
DRO/50 Tameside One

PO BOX 304 - 'y
Scale 1:2000 Ason-inder s Metropolitan Borough
Compiled by MH on 11 August 2020 OLG 0GA

Repeoducad from an Ordnanca Survay map with the peemission of the Controlee of HMSO © Crown Copyright. Licenss number LA1000Z2687

T (S;R: 89 5
&\{&\‘\‘%"f, HYD/151
" = o
A “

w
> B l\ a0 &Szl 938298873)
) &5 =: : %"E“—‘ '*’A : R/ ‘g’ %&“&)
A G “1 —\ — g i :
ISRt et e
- )

S AT

h“ ‘,.::"'_:‘. \\ SETS 1 E ( - """— ‘ ‘ »
e Tt , % a B R
‘‘‘‘‘ ﬂﬁa\w DO R75)8924508800)00 | 1 | T JI‘* s
A TIGR:-$76920298803) ¢ = (e WA A==
TR Al DB

v - 4
\ | 'n - - of “ ’ *
NEpEBEEE ==

-=— = Suggested alternative route

Existing defintive footpaths

Page 15

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX D

Greenside Crescent, Droylsden PSPO

ANTI-50CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
GREENSIDE CRESCENT, DROYLSDEN PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
59, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act"):-

BY THIS ORDER

1.  This Order shall come into operation on (TEC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further crders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of Footpath Droylsden 51 as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan (“the Restricted Area™).

3. Except as provided in Aricle 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any fime. Thiz Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The restriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply fo any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or fo any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or dufies or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or personz and / or vehicles reguired in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

3. The alternative route for pedestrians is aleng the pavement of Greenside Lane, confinuing
aleng the pavement of Greenside Crescent continuing along Footpath 52, continuing along
Footpath 51 as shown by a beld broken line on the Order map.

6.  The Council is satisfied that the conditicns set out in Sections 59, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it iz in all the circumstances expedient to make this Crder for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Crder because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this iz, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreascnable, and jusiifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7. Reszponsibility for the mainfenance of the barriers in the Resfricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires to gquestion the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any reguirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to thiz Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order iz made.

SIGHMED BY: veeeaierieriiiiaiiereaneennn.. Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 16

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



. . lan S
Public Spaces Protection Order E?i:ectat;ogpereﬁons & Neighbourhoods
-

Tameside One
DRO/51 PO BOX 204 w 'aﬂ‘)esm
Ashton-under-Lyne Metropotitan Borough

Scale 1:1250 OL8 0GA
Compiled by MH on 10 August 2020

Repeoducad from an Omdnanca Survay map with the permission of the Controles of HIASO @ Croan Copyright. Licsnsa numiber LAT00022687

Additional information: Engneenng Secvice Ted - 0161 342 3704

\ -

S Road
e o
srewsos s

sht o

s,

-

" Aisysss

Y0

5298897) #
|

N

A S0 :
/ . Bl |
& \\\ A\ |
N A
O . o G '
NS
o

i Public footpath to be gated

—— - Sggested alternative route
Existing definitive footpaths

Page 17

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX E

Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield PSPO

ANTI-50CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-S0CIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

KENYOMN AVENUE TO CHEETHAM HILL ROAD, DUKINFIELD PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION
(EXTENSION) ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of ifs powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Cime and Policing Act 2014 {"the Act”)-

BY THIS ORDER

1.  This Order shall come into operation on (TEC) and shall have effect for a peried of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates fo that part of Foofpaths Dukinfield 27 as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan ("the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Article 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorizes the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The restriction in Arficle 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjeining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and [/ or vehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council

5. The alternative route for pedesirians will be along the pavement of Kenyon Avenue,
continuing along the pavement of Birch Lane, confinuing along the pavement of Yew Tree
Lane, continuing along the pavement of Cheetham Hill Road as shown by a bold broken
line on the Order map.

6. The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfiled and that it is in all the circumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anfi-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or ikely effect of this is, or is likely to be,
of a persistent or cenfinuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and jusfifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

T. Responsibility for the maintenance of the barriers in the Resftricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires to guestion the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in

relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGHNED BY i Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 18

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order |37 Saxon

?meclo% Opoe"raﬁons & Neighbourhoods -
ameside One 'bn'esm
DUK/27 PO BOX 304 # o . A
Scale 1:1500 Aakici wwcier Ly Metropolitan Borough
Compilad by MH on 11 August

Reproducad from an Ordnancs Sureay map with the permission of the Controbes of HIASO @ Croan Copyright. Licsasa numiber LA10D022687
Additional information: Engneerng Seevice Ted - 0161 342 3704

T o Ve O e

---------------------

|\
0

‘o

(GR: 5J9514

v

-

=550 Restricted area

- == «= Suggested altemative route

e EX181iNG definitive footpaths

Page 19

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx




APPENDIX F

Laburnum Road to Ash Road, Denton PSPO

ANTI-S0CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

LABURNUM ROAD TO ASH ROAD, DENTON PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION (EXTENSION)
ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Folicing Act 2014 (“the Act™)-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Order shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of Footpaths Denton 76, 77, 78 and 79 as shown edged in
blue on the attached plan (“the Restricted Area™).

3. Except as provided in Article 4 of this Crder no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Arsa at any time. This Crder authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resfriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or fo any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricied Area, or persons and [/ or vehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternative route for pedestrians is along the pavement of Laburnum Road, continuing
along the pavement of Balmoral Drive, continuing along the pavement of Ash Road as
shown by a bold broken line on the Order map.

6.  The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the drcumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7. Responsibility for the maintenance of the bamiers in the Restricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

& If any person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGNED BY: viiiiiieiiiieiiiiaiieenen.. . Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 20

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order lan Saxon
Directo'r Operations & Neighbourhoods -
DEN/76 & 77 & 78 & 79 Tameside One W'Ihmescde
PO BOX 304 Metropolitan Borough
Scale 1:3000 Ashton-under-Lyne &
Compiled by MH on 10 August 2020 OL6 0GA

Reproducec from an Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controlier of MMSO © Crown Copynght. License numbar LAT00022687

Addmional informabion: Engneering Servica Tel - 0161 242 3704

-

““Hyde Road==</ \Co___. .

b B e

!0
| 1
!
|1

LIN

200Ihidbi)

4

=3 Restricted area Z Z
v ? AN 2

-

] = = = = Suggested alternative route [# 7

AN\ e

Page 21

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX G

Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden PSPO

ANTI-50CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
FOOTPATH 26, DROYLSDEN PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION (EXTENSION) ORDER 2020

This Crder is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 ("the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Order shall come into operation on (TEC) and shall have effect for a pericd of 3 years
thereafter, unless exiended by further crders under the Council’s statutory powers.

2. This Order relates fo that part of Footpaths Droylsden 26 as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan (“the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Arficle 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorizes the installation, operafion and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The restriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or dufies or fo any statutory
undertaker, gas, elecfricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and / or wvehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

4. The alternative route for pedestians will be along the pavement of Lyme Grove, confinuing
along the pavement of Beech Avenue, continuing along the pavement of Mellor Sireet
continuing along the pavement of Maddison Road as shown by a bold broken line on the
Crder map.

6. The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the circumsiances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Resfricted Area. The Council makes the
Crder because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detimental effect on
the guality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
resftrictions imposed by this Order.

7. Responsibility for the maintenance of the bamiers in the Restricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

a. If any person desires to question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power fo make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGHED BY: eteeeeeenian e aenennnnn . Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 22

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order 'sn Ssxen

Director Operations & Neighbourhoods -
T ide On
Footpath 26, Droylsden Mol Boodog W kmeSlde
3 Ashton-under-Lyne Metropolitan Borough
Scale 1:1250 OL8 0GA

Compiled by MH on 12 July 2007

Ropeoauosd from an Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Cantrolier of HMSO © Crown Copynght, Licensa number LATO0022697
Addimonal Infoemation: Engineenng Service Ted - 0187 342 3704

- - - Suggested alternative route
X2 77TV R\ e

Page 23

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX H

Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle Drive, Stalybridge PSPO

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL ANDVOR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

PEAR TREE DRIVE TO HONEY SUCKLE DRIVE, STALYBRIDGE PUBLIC 5PACES PROTECTION
(EXTENSION) ORDER 20220

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 ("the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Crder shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 yvears
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of the adopted highway from Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle
Drive as shown edged in blue on the attached plan (“the Restricted Area™).

3. Except as provided in Aricle 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resfriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and [ or vehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternative route for pedestrians will be along Pear Tree Drive, continuing along the
pavement of Lindsay Street, continuing along the adopted passageway, continuing along an
unadopted footpath, continuing along Honeysuckle Drive as shown by a bold broken line on
the Order map.

6.  The Coundil is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sectfions 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the drcumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7.  Responsibility for the maintenance of the bariers in the Restricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Crder.

8. If any person desires fo question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGNED BY: eeiiiiiieiiiieiiiiiieeennneee.. Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 24

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



lan Saxon

Tameside
Metropolitan Borough

4

Repeoducad from an Ordnancs Survey map with the peemission of the Controlee of HMSO @ Crown Copyright. Licenss number LA100022687

Director Cperations & Neighbourhoods
Additional information: Engineenng Service Tel - 0161 342 3704

Public Spaces Protection Order

OLG 0GA

o

g
w -
o33
a™C
mx«
83 5
505
o
>
©
=
=
£ g
T o
.W. -
S
T 3
< 0

Comgiled by MH on 11 August 2020

/,,
&
32

-

K

o

AN BN AN

N

AR\

N2

o

Page 25

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX |

Sunnyside Road to Lumb Clough, Droylsden PSPO

ANTI-50CIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL AND/OR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

FOOTPATH ¥ AND UN-NUMBERED PATH TO LUME CLOUGH, DROYLSDEN PUBLIC SPACES
PROTECTION (EXTENSION) ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-sccial Eehaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act™)-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Order shall come into operation on (TEC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 years
thereafier, unless extended by further orders under the Council's siatutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of Footpath Droylsden 7 and the un-numbered path as shown
edged in blue on the attached plan {"the Restricted Area™).

3. Except as provided in Aricle 4 of this Order no person shall use the public nght of way over
the Resiricted Area at any time. This Order authorizes the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The restriction in Arficle 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
whao lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or fo any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Senvice personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or duties or to any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and [ or vehiclez reguired in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5.  The akernative route for Footpath 7 for pedestrians wil be aloeng the pavement of
Sunnyside Road, confinuing along the pavement of Cypress Road, confinuing along the
pavement of Hampshire Road as shown by a bold broken line on the Order map. The
alternative route for access to Lumb Clough for pedestrians will be along the pavement of
Sunnyside Road, confinuing along the pavement of Cypress Road, confinuing along
Footpath Droylsden 54 as shown by a bold broken line on the Order map.

B. The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in Sections 60, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the circumstances expedient o make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anfi-zocial behaviour in the Resiricied Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Resiricied Area has had a detimental effect on
thie quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, or is likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and justifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7. Responsibility for the maintenance of the bamers in the Restricted Area will ie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires to question the validity of this Crder on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the daite
on which this Crder is made.

SIGHED BY: eetiiamieeaninianeeneaenee .. Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 26

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order !an Saxen

Director Operations & Neighbourhoods -

el

DRO/7 and un-numbered track  po poseson # kmsm

Scale 1:3000 Ashton-under-Lyne Metropolitan Borough
: OL8 0GA

Compilad by MH on 11 August 2020

Repeoducad from an Ordnancs Sureay map with the permission of the Controles of HIASO © Croan Copyright. Licsnsa number LAT000Z2607
Additional information: Engneenng Secvice Ted - 0161 342 3704

;"J

»

’-”--“-
*
)

/£

=T Restricted area
+ = - Suggested alternative route
Existing definitive footpaths

Page 27

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX J

Waterloo Gardens, Ashton-under-Lyne PSPO

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT, 2014

[DRAFT] PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR A CERTAIN HIGHWAY FOR THE
PURPOSES OF PREVENTING CRIMINAL ANDVOR ANTI-SOCIAL ACTIVITIES

TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

WATERLOO GARDENS, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION (EXTENSION)
ORDER 2020

This Order is made by Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council in exercise of its powers under Section
60, 64 and 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 ("the Act™):-

BY THIS ORDER

1. This Crder shall come into operation on (TBC) and shall have effect for a period of 3 yvears
thereafter, unless extended by further orders under the Council's statutory powers.

2. This Order relates to that part of the adopted highway as shown edged in blue on the
attached plan ("the Restricted Area”).

3. Except as provided in Aricle 4 of this Order no person shall use the public right of way over
the Restricted Area at any time. This Order authorises the installation, operation and
maintenance of barriers for enforcing the restriction.

4. The resfriction in Article 3 of this Order shall not apply to any registered owner of, or person
who lives in, premises adjoining the Restricted Area, or to any Police, Ambulance or Fire
Service personnel, acting in pursuance of statutory powers or dulies or fo any statutory
undertaker, gas, electricity, water or communications provider requiring access to their
apparatus located in the Restricted Area, or persons and [/ or vehicles required in
connection with maintenance work or other functions of the Council.

5. The alternaiive route for pedestrians is located across the fields behind Palace Road,
continuing along the pavement of Palace Road, continuing along the pavement of Clueens
Road, continuing along Definitive Footpath 30 and the pavement of Blenheim Way,
continuing along the pavement of Waterloo Gardens as shown by a bold broken line on the
Order map.

6.  The Coundil is satisfied that the conditions set out in Secfions 58, 64 and 72 of the Act have
been fulfilled and that it is in all the crcumstances expedient to make this Order for the
purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area. The Council makes the
Order because anti-social behaviour in the Restricted Area has had a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality. The effect or likely effect of this is, oris likely to be,
of a persistent or continuing nature such as to make this unreasonable, and jusfifies the
restrictions imposed by this Order.

7.  Responsibility for the maintenance of the barrers in the Restricted Area will lie with the
residents that requested the Order.

8. If any person desires fo question the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council
had no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act has not been complied with in
relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High Court within six weeks from the date
on which this Order is made.

SIGMNED BY: eeieiiiieiiiieiiiiiieeenneee.. Director of Operations and Meighbourhoods

DATE:

Page 28

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Public Spaces Protection Order

lan Saxon

Waterloo Gardens

Scale 1:2500
Compied by MH on 11 August 2020

Director Operations & Neighbowrhoods
Tameside One

PO BOX 304
Ashlon-under-Lyne
OLG 0GA

5 Tameside

Metropoiitan Borough

Reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map with the pemission of the Cantroler of HMSO € Crown Copyright. Leense number LATD0N22697
Additonal rformaton: Engreerng Service Tel - 0161 342 374

no
==s
i1

oy SU92

e0

——-—

=
7=

)

-
=
-
B, ==

o |

(SD3493100195),

< 1309510800199 4

rechiei sl -
v A it e -'@""
= 2
4
B
=T
T e A )
b . I o ‘\‘
- - - - .
% o= Al
Cd - -
BT - e
g
2
= < |
'
-

s==wemamatColnl
—-———

<=
e
=
A Sy e S e
——

TPt o

(SD9523100109)
N gl

g

<N

e g

3 ,: (549522799960
1
[

= ‘t\, ==Y >
| |
A - J

'x e e Bl

| s it "‘\ =

\

l" |‘ H | SN

i fli=19 =5 Adopted highway to be gated ||

8 =3

" ';EE — * = - e Suggested alternative route
i ==l
b HEH
\ .-
| =

. EXisting definitive footpath

MR e 2K

Page 29

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



APPENDIX K

Churchbank to Brushes Avenue, Stalybridge

The Police comments are as follows:-

“l have been the Neighbourhood Officer for the identified areas where the gating was put in
place and helped to bring these orders with the help of TMBC, residents and other
interested parties at the time, and spent many weeks and days looking over Police logs,
crimes, activity, times of problems, routes people took, and even though only recent moved
from the area into another role, speak daily to the Neighbourhood Staff and PCSOs since,
so am aware of the full picture of the areas, and any problems or antisocial behaviour as
covered these areas for over 15 years .

Churchbank / Brushes Avenue — This location has historically been a problem due to the
layout of the estates, the size and layout of this path. Local Policing teams spent time here
daily. The issues started from school children and similar aged kids causing issues during
the daytime, spitting, kicking cars and houses, littering, throwing stones and objects over
the high wall to residents being abused during the day/night by large groups who also used
to congrate in the alleyway which amplified down the streets. We used to get 10 calls a
week at some points during the nicer weather, but this also occurred whatever the weather
and climate. Evidence was collected for the case for the gates from nearly every resident in
the street, a home watch was established, many people had to get cctv due to the
problems, damage was caused to vehicles and houses had windows smashed or items
thrown at them, due to the paths location these people got off fast and most did not get ID,
*(some were linked to local schools at the time and dealt with). Residents were in tears at
one point when spoken to by PC Lawton and many wanted to sell their houses to move. A
lot of hard work was conducted by the residents, Police, Council and partner agencies in
order to provide sufficient evidence for these gates as we were convinced this would solve
the problem. Once approved and fitted, there was initial resistance from some of the local
youths who still tried to climb them and items were thrown towards houses. Again Police
patrolled the area and collected information of vigilant residents and these issues stopped.
Since the alley gating | think | personally had not cause to attend this location due to the
alleyway since this time, which in itself is evidence to prove it has been fantastically
successful, and I'm sure every resident would agree life has been much better, and in turn
people don’t want to move, and have the confidence to spend on their house improvements
and remain In the area. This path also have numerous alternative routes that can be taken,
which are not much more than the original path.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“Although | was not a Councillor when this particular Protection Order/Alley Gating was set
up, | have seen what effect on crime and antisocial behaviour such gating has had in other
places in the Borough. In this case the gating is separating two different types of large
estate. The first, the Brushes Estate, is mainly social housing, therefore houses families of
mixed ages but has a high population of teenage children. Who in some cases do not
always respect other people’s property and are more likely to carry out ASB. Whereas the
Walkerwood Estate has a higher population of both upwardly mobile families, and people
that bought their own house when the estate was new and have now grown older and
perhaps are much more likely to be protective of the stake they made in their home and
environment.

Also this particular gate is across a route that apparently acted as a “rat run” or short cut

between the 2 estates and Stalybridge. Consequently it was a busy thoroughfare creating
disturbance to the lives of people living on both Church Bank and Brushes Avenue.

Page 30

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Therefore as a Councillor for Stalybridge South where this case of alley gating is | would
strongly recommend that the Protection Order is re-established”

e “Church Bank without the alley gating was a nightmare, Police there at least twice a week,
cars on Church Bank had wing mirrors taken off, windows on cars and houses egged.
Youths sat on garden walls, not moving and swearing at residents if asked to. Running up
and over cars.

Since the alley gating absolutely nothing the residents live in peace, it has made such a
massive difference. | as a Cllr and the Police get no complaints so yes | am massively in
favour of keeping the gates. | haven'’t had one person object to the gates since they went
in.”

Dales Brow Avenue to Langham Street, Ashton-under-Lyne
The Police comments are as follows:-

o “This order was put in place prior to my arrival in post of the Neighbourhood officer.
However these gates | would say in my opinion have had the desired affect since put in
place as | cannot say | have any issues nor have had any issues of criminality or Anti-social
behaviour in the 2 years. | would like it to stay this way and for the gates to stay in place of
course.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

o ‘I contacted residents of dale Grove to include them in this decision making and for their
feedback. | understand they would be consulted however this was in place before any of
our time so it was wise to contact them. Overall residents are in favour of having the gates
as it is for following reasons.

"Reduces access to people who late at night use the area around timperley motor to take or
conduct drug deals. This also helps to reduce noise and nuisance caused by anti social
behaviour.

Reduce litter on our estate

Helps to prevent easy access for the opportunistic thief.
Provides a safe place for children playing in the street.
Reduces parking in the area from non-residents”

| support the residents view in order for them to enjoy safe living environment. So |
recommend this restriction order to be extended for the said period.”

e ‘I have received no complaints from residents regarding these gates. It is my view that they
should stay in place.

Residents have called for bollards to be put in place in other passageways so | do feel that
barriers do keep passageways secure. e.g. Residents were recently very alarmed by the
removal of a gate on the old railway line at the back of the Limehurst Farm Estate. They
saw a rise in speeding motorcycles down the path and anti social behaviour after the
removal of the gate.

Could you send a questionnaire to nearby residents to ascertain their views?

| don't share your confidence that the reasons for the gates being installed have now
diminished. | also think the deadline of 8" July doesn't give much time for consultation with
residents on this issue. Therefore, | hope you will extend the PSPO.”

Page 31

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Greenside Crescent, Droylsden
The Police comments are as follows:-
e “Thank you for your email dated 29/06/2020 re: the above gating orders being removed.

| feel the orders should be extended and reviewed again in three years. | feel removing the
orders and lifting restrictions will have a negative impact on the residents quality of life.

The Ward suffers with a high number of residential burglaries, theft from motor vehicles,
drug related issues and nuisance off road motor bikes. The gates are a fantastic deterrent
and give safety and reassurances to the residents involved in the scheme.

I have been in post as Droylsden West - Beat Officer, for just over 12 months. Both
Droylsden teams are continually tackling ASB across the ward. Although the trends have
changed the ASB still exists. The removal will have a detrimental effect on the work
completed by our teams.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-
e ‘I have no problem carrying on and supporting the 3 gated areas you sent me remaining
gated.”
Haddon Hall Road to Sunnybank Park, Droylsden
The Police comments are as follows:-

o ‘I feel the orders should be extended and reviewed again in three years. | feel removing
the orders and lifting restrictions will have a negative impact on the residents quality of life.

The Ward suffers with a high number of residential burglaries, theft from motor vehicles,
drug related issues and nuisance off road motor bikes. The gates are a fantastic deterrent
and give safety and reassurances to the residents involved in the scheme.

| have been in post as Droylsden West - Beat Officer, for just over 12 months. Both
Droylsden teams are continually tackling ASB across the ward. Although the trends have
changed the ASB still exists. The removal will have a detrimental effect on the work
completed by our teams.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-
o ‘I have no problem carrying on and supporting the 3 gated areas you sent me remaining
gated.”
Kenyon Avenue to Cheetham Hill Road, Dukinfield
The Police comments are as follows:-
e “In considering your request | have spoken to my Sergeant who has been on the district for
a number of years and was previously the NBO for Dukinfield, PCSO Jackson who has

been the PCSO for Dukinfield for over 16 years and Louise Hall in our intelligence unit who
has done some limited analytical work for me.

Page 32

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



I understand that prior to the implementation of the gates, there were considerable issues
centred on the alleyway. These included, but were not limited to, anti-social behaviour,
burglary, repeated victimisation of an address by committing criminal damage and a rape.

During the time the gates have been in place these issues have not been repeated. The
area around the alleyway is covered by our G2,G3 and G4 foot beats. The Yew Tree
estate itself has featured on the seasonal threat map for the last 2 years between October
and January as being a repeated area for burglary and theft of motor vehicles. This year
since the start of the year of the Burglary, Robbery and Vehicle Crimes reported on the
G2,G3 and G4 foot beat areas of Dukinfield, 40% have occurred within a half mile radius of
this alleyway location. | have attached the map used by our analyst to determine this.

From this information | conclude that if these gates were to be removed, then | would
expect a fairly rapid return to previous crime levels. This is a cut through from a main
arterial route onto a housing estate, which makes it an attractive ingress and egress route
for criminals who can move reasonably unnoticed and have a vehicle nearby. The fact that
there were previously high levels of recorded crime around this alleyway, which have
reduced during the time the gates have been in place, despite the surrounding area
continuing to see spikes in crime levels would justify renewing the order to keep the gates
in place.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“Full support to keep this area gated massive reduction in Anti social behaviour and crime ,
big improvement of the quality of life to residents who live at the side of the Path and others
on Kenyon Ave.”

“I also fully support to keep the area gated as the residents suffered years of anti social
behaviour and the difference it has made to their quality of life since been shut has been
positive and therefore it must remain closed”

Laburnum Road to Ash Road, Denton

The Police comments are as follows:-

“l have read the information sent to myself. | have also looked at issues that have been
reported regarding the area of Laburnum Road, Denton.

I can confirm that it would be advantageous to leave the gates in situ and locked.

There are still issues with people trying to commit offences in the Ash Road and Laburnum
Road properties.

There have also been reports of people trying to use these gated areas to commit drug
offences.

In my opinion it would be advantageous in preventing crime to have the gates remaining in
situ and locked.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“This scheme has been very successful and reduced crime in this area and local people it
serves are very happy with this scheme

| would therefore support renewing for a further three years”

Page 33

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



“l would like to express support for these gates and the extension of the order. The issues
that were common in this area have certainly not been a problem since I've been elected. |
actually believe you would see a backlash and a lot of anger and frustration if you were to
remove them. The area they are located sit on the boundary of the ward where we use to
see crime issues very regularly with people coming into the ward from outside so they serve
a vital role in helping us protect residents and properties.”

Maddison Road to Lyme Grove, Droylsden

The Police comments are as follows:-

“Since the installation of the gates the path at Lyme Grove has not suffered any issues of
ASB or criminality. This | believe is due to the gates successfully serving their purpose to
prevent such behaviour.

However as the Neighbourhood Beat officer for the area | am of the opinion that should the
gates be removed then there would be a return to the previous situation where it attracts
ASB and Criminal behaviour.

| base this on my local knowledge of the Droylsden area and the intelligence we receive.

In this locality there are a number of similar areas that are secluded and attract undesirable
behaviour.

In close vicinity to this location there is Droylsden Working Men’s Club on Kershaw Street.
There is a secluded area between the car park and nearby houses that has been the cause
of complaint from local residents due to issues with gangs of youths congregating, taking
and dealing in drugs and inhaling Nitrous Oxide Canisters.

Also nearby are Copperas Fields and several paths that provide access to it. This is
another area that provides seclusion and shelter that is abused by those intent on
displaying ASB and Criminality. Recently there have been numerous complaints regarding
this from residents. Also a member of TMBC Parks and Green Space contacted us to raise
concerns about these issues and the amount of Nitrous Oxide canisters left in these
secluded spaces.

Land and paths around the back of Droylsden Library and the marina have been a constant
problem over the last four years. Again due to its secluded location local gangs of youths
have taken advantage of this to take illegal substances drink alcohol, cause damage and
cause ASB for local residents.

Various parts of the canal towpath have also caused similar issues.

There is a secluded path that leads from Fairfield Avenue to the Moravian Settlement and
this too has been a constant cause of concern for local residents who have made regular
complaints regarding the path being used for drug dealing, ASB and other criminal activity.

From my own observations and the feedback | receive from the community it does seem to
me that wherever there is a secluded path or piece of land in this area of Droylsden that
can offer cover, then it is often used for criminality and ASB.

The location of this path is in very close vicinity to a number of dwellings with some being
situated right next to it. | fear that opening the path and removing the gates will have a
detrimental effect on those residents and the wider community. This would have a knock
on effect of increasing demand for the Police and other public services that are already
stretched.

Page 34

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Furthermore there is one individual that | am aware of that is often at the heart of the ASB
and criminality previously referred to in this email. That individual is a ring leader of these
gangs causing such issues and unfortunately he lives in very close proximity to the path
referred to. This further increases the risk that this location poses to the community should
the gates be removed.

For the reason outlined above | would like to see the gates remain in situ.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“l strongly feel this passageway needs to stay closed. Since it was closed the area got a lot
quieter for the residents no groups hanging around. If it was to be reopened we would just
end up with major problems.”

Pear Tree Drive to Honeysuckle Drive, Stalybridge

The Police comments are as follows:-

“I have been the Neighbourhood Officer for the identified areas where the gating was put in
place, and helped to bring these orders with the help of TMBC, residents and other
interested parties at the time, and spent many weeks and days looking over Police logs,
crimes, activity, times of problems, routes people took, and even though only recent moved
from the area into another role, speak daily to the Neighbourhood Staff and PCSOs since,
so am aware of the full picture of the areas, and any problems or antisocial behaviour as
covered these areas for over 15 years .

Pear tree / Honeysuckle, was a daily occurrence — during the day due to the location the
passageway was at, was easy for children and youths to hide and urinate, and cause
damage to fences or dump items, even run from Police to evade capture in some instances.
There were also troubles during the evening and weekend due to people coming back from
local pubs and town centre clubs etc causing noise, nuisance, damage and being very loud
and rowdy. The estates are still the same layout, and many original residents still live in the
area, one being a local MP who also supported the gating.

Since the installation of the gating there was initial problems with a very small number of
local youths trying to climb over/or jump over nearby fences to get to the other side, which
stopped very soon after as residents reported to local policing teams and they patrolled the
area.

This path is close to numerous alternative routes down Huddersfield Road, or down Oxford
Street or Mill street, both not much more distance than the original path, and the local
residents and children have all accepted and got used to this. Since the path | can
probably count 1 or 2 incidents in the initial phase of the gates going up, and since this time
we have not had cause to have patrols keep visiting the location.

The Stalybridge South Policing Team would still support the closure remaining in place for
these gates at the location to prevent, crime, disorder, damage to homes and vehicles and
it has vastly improved the lives of the residents in this area.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“Although | was not a Councillor when this particular Protection Order/Alley Gating was set
up, | have seen what effect on crime and antisocial behaviour such gating has had in other
places in the Borough. In this case the gating is separating two small estates, however the
route was a very popular cut through for residents living on the very large Demesne Drive
Estate through into Stalybridge town centre. Opening this “rat run” will make a busy

Page 35

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



thoroughfare, transform two quiet cul-de-sacs and creating disturbance to the lives of
people living on both Honeysuckle and Pear Tree Drives.

The Demesne estate, also comprises of mainly social housing, therefore its residents are of
mixed ages with a high population of teenage children. Who in some cases do not always
respect other people’s property and are more likely to carry out ASB. Whereas residents of
Honeysuckle Estate and Pear Tree Drive are mainly owner occupiers. Who are more
inclined to respect other people’s properties.

Therefore as a Councillor for Stalybridge South where this case of alley gating is | would
strongly recommend that the Protection Order is reestablished. Removing such a gate
would be a backward step.”

“l am happy to keep the restrictions in place. It was before my time, but | am told there was
a lot of ASB issues and that previous ward Councillors along with the Police had to fight to
get this, so I will support the security gates remaining.”

“I am hugely in favour of keeping these gates. No complaints what so ever since they went
in, | believe Jonathan Reynolds MP chipped in when residents had to pay for them so | am
sure as the MP for the area he is massively in favour as well. It was a nightmare for
residents on Albion St, Pear Tree and Honeysuckle especially late evening when people
coming home from the pubs in Stalybridge drunk and loud used it as a cut through instead
of walking up Huddersfield Rd.”

Sunnyside Road to Lumb Clough, Droylsden

The Police comments are as follows:-

“Thank you for your email dated 29/06/2020 re: the above gating orders being removed.

| feel the orders should be extended and reviewed again in three years. | feel removing the
orders and lifting restrictions will have a negative impact on the residents quality of life.

The Ward suffers with a high number of residential burglaries, theft from motor vehicles,
drug related issues and nuisance off road motor bikes. The gates are a fantastic deterrent
and give safety and reassurances to the residents involved in the scheme.

| have been in post as Droylsden West - Beat Officer, for just over 12 months. Both
Droylsden teams are continually tackling ASB across the ward. Although the trends have
changed the ASB still exists. The removal will have a detrimental effect on the work
completed by our teams.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-

“I have no problem carrying on and supporting the 3 gated areas you sent me remaining
gated.”

Waterloo Gardens, Ashton-under-Lyne

The Police comments are as follows:-

“The only thing | would say is when you could access through to Palace Road estate we
had a large increase in ASB and burglary related incidents with it being used as an ideal cut
through.

Page 36

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



Since the footpath was closed we have seen a large decrease in reported incidents, so
ideally I would recommend they remained in situ.”

The ward Councillor comments are as follows:-
o ‘I would be in support of retaining these gates, which we did fight long and hard to get.

There was a number of break ins in the area and the alley way gave access and exits to
enter the estate.”

Page 37

E:\Tameside\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\8\9\A100052983\$ko2240wy.docx



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:
Date:

Reporting Officer:

Subject:

Report Summary:

Recommendations:

Corporate Plan:

Policy Implications:

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the
statutory Section 151
Officer & Chief Finance
Officer)

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the
Borough Solicitor)

Risk Management:

Access to Information:

Background Information:

Agenda Item 5.

SPEAKERS PANEL (PLANNING)
23 September 2020

Emma Varnam - Assistant Director of

Neighbourhoods

Operations and

OBJECTION TO THE TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH
COUNCIL (MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON UNDER LYNE)
(PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2020

The report outlines an objection and comments received in relation
to the proposals to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on
Rose Hill Road, Ashton-under-Lyne following a 28 day statutory
consultation in July / August 2020.

It is recommended that the Panel reviews the objections and
comments received and that authority is given for the necessary
action to be taken, in accordance with the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984, to introduce the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions as
set out in the TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
(MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON UNDER LYNE) (PROHIBITION OF
WAITING) Order 2020 and scheduled in Section 5 of this report.

Improvements to the highway network support the Council in
delivering all 8 priorities of the Corporate Plan, with a particular
focus on ‘Infrastructure and Environment’, ‘Nurturing Communities’
and ‘Longer and Healthier Lives’'.

None arising from the report.

As set out in Section 4 of this report, this scheme is to be funded
the Mayor’s Challenge Fund.

The Council has received funding approval for the development
costs for this scheme. There is no funding risk in respect of
development costs incurred by the Council.

Members should have regard to the Council’s statutory duty under
S.122 of the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984, which is set out in
Appendix A.

Objectors have a limited right to challenge the Orders in the High
Court.

Appendix A — S.122 of Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and
Extract from the Highway Code.

Appendix B — Published and Proposed Restrictions.

Appendix C — Proposed Layout (HS6051-009-GN-DR-0004_P01).

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
Contacting Joe Sparkman, Cycling Development Officer:-

3 Telephone: 0161 342 3916

" e-mail: joe.sparkman@tameside.gov.uk

Page 39


mailto:joe.sparkman@tameside.gov.uk

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

INTRODUCTION

The Mayor’s Challenge Fund (MCF) aims to kick start the delivery of a vision for Greater
Manchester to become a city region where walking and cycling are the natural choices for
shorter journeys. This supports Greater Manchester's Transport Strategy 2040, the Made
to Move report and the Bee Network infrastructure proposal.

The MCF has so far made £160 million available to deliver schemes across Greater
Manchester between now and 2022. This has been made possible thanks to national
government’s Transforming Cities Fund. This aims to improve productivity and spread
prosperity through investment in public and sustainable transport in some of the largest
English city regions. This was first announced by the Prime Minister in November 2017.

The Chadwick Dam scheme aims to improve cycle and walking facilities within Stamford
Park and connecting towards Ridge Hill, Tameside Hospital and Mossley Road. A parallel
cycle and pedestrian crossing (Tiger Crossing) is proposed to cross Mossley Road and to
provide access towards Rose Hill Road. Scheme drawings are provided in Appendix C.

The scheme includes the introduction of the following restrictions and features, which were
advertised by Public Notice in July 2020:-

No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions on Mossley Road and Rose Hill Road.
An extension of the existing 20 mph Zone on Rose Hill Road.

A Parallel Crossing on Mossley Road.

A Shared Footway / Cycle facility on Mossley Road and Rose Hill Road.

A Flat Topped Road Hump on Rose Hill Road.

A 24 hour Bus Stop Clearway on Mossley Road.

The public notice was advertised between 23 July and 21 August 2020 and four responses
were received.

Respondent 1 was from TfGM’s Traffic Management Team identifying specific design
requirements in relation to the flat topped road hump. This was not an objection and the
issues have been resolved through ongoing discussion and agreement.

The other three responses, one of which was a formal objection, were from local residents
in relation to the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions. This report provides information in
relation to all of these responses, to provide the Panel with a full picture of the issues and
views expressed.

This report also describes responses received to the MCF Consultation, held in February /
March 2020, in relation to parking concerns on Rose Hill Road.

There were no other responses or issues identified in relation to the other items included on
the public notice. It is therefore intended to introduce the proposed measures that are not
affected by the objections or comments received, as identified in Section 1.4 above, and as
previously advertised.

OBJECTIONS

The objection, and the two other responses that raised concerns regarding the proposed
No Waiting At Any Time restrictions, were from residents on Rose Hill Road.

Respondent 2 identified a specific objection relating to the availability of parking in close
proximity to their property on Rose Hill Road and that the extension of parking restrictions
will push cars further up the road, which they indicated is already busy with limited on-street

Page 40



2.3

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

parking available. They highlighted the fact that they do not have a driveway and further
correspondence is ongoing to identify whether it would be possible to accommodate a
driveway at some point in the future. This respondent also indicated support for a parking
permit scheme to deter hospital staff from using their street to park on.

Respondent 3 expressed support for the proposed scheme in helping to tackle traffic and
parking issues. However, the respondent identified a concern in relation to the availability
of parking for residents and their visitors. This respondent also expressed support for a
parking permit scheme to allow residents to park.

Respondent 4 identified that parking has long been a concern for local residents, with
hospital staff and patients using the road for free parking. Concern was expressed
regarding the availability of parking for residents and support was expressed for a parking
permit scheme to allow residents to park.

During the MCF Consultation held in February / March 2020, four responses were recorded
in relation to parking concerns on Rose Hill Road. One was received by email and three
were recorded following detailed discussions with local residents who attended consultation
events. Three of these responses were supportive of introducing parking restrictions, three
were supportive of measures to slow and control vehicles, two mentioned a need to restrict
parking access for staff from the hospital, one did not support the use of double yellow lines
and one highlighted concerns with parking at drop-off / pick-up times for the nearby Inspire
Academy. One of the responses noted that parked traffic on Rose Hill Road presents an
issue for buses, which use this route.

OFFICER RESPONSE

The scheme proposes to introduce a new parallel crossing (Tiger Crossing) on Mossley
Road. This includes zig zag lines that define the controlled area of the crossing. This area
extends across the end of Rose Hill Road, which is fully compliant with standards. It does
mean however, that it is important that vehicles approaching the controlled area should not
have their forward visibility obscured by factors such as parked vehicles.

The scheme proposes to introduce a new raised table across the entrance to Rose Hill
Road and to extend the existing 20 mph Zone to cover the full length of Rose Hill Road.
These measures are designed to support slower vehicle speeds and the raised table
provides a level surface for pedestrians crossing the road. The scheme also proposes to
introduce dropped kerbs, to facilitate an uncontrolled crossing approximately 30m north of
Mossley Road, to provide access towards a separate pedestrian route on the west side of
Rose Hill Road.

To support the measures outlined above, and in acknowledging the majority of the relevant
MCF Consultation responses, it is proposed to include the installation of No Waiting At Any
Time restrictions (Double Yellow Lines) to either side of the proposed crossing and
extending into Rose Hill Road itself. This will improve forward visibility for vehicles
approaching the junction, the proposed pedestrian crossings, the raised table and the
parallel crossing on Mossley Road and improve intervisibility between drivers, pedestrians
and cyclists. The double yellow lines will also reduce the likelihood of vehicles parking
close to the junction, improving access for large vehicles turning in or out of Rose Hill Road.

Following receipt of the responses to the advertised traffic orders, a small change is
proposed to the extent of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Rose Hill Road. The last
5m on the west side of the road were originally drawn to coincide with the dropped kerb
driveway access to property no. 117. We therefore propose to remove this last 5m of the
advertised restrictions on the west side of Rose Hill Road.

Page 41



3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

4.3

The existing double yellow lines extend north from Mossley Road by approximately 17m on
the east side of Rose Hill Road and 16m on the west side of Rose Hill Road. The
proposals extend these by 19m and 21m respectively. However, the first 6m on the east
side have dropped kerb driveway access, which is therefore not available for parking. The
impact is therefore estimated to be a loss of 13m / 2 parking spaces on the east side of
Rose Hill Road and 21m / 4 parking spaces on the west side of Rose Hill Road.

Three of the responses expressed support for a parking permit scheme to be introduced
along Rose Hill Road, to provide increased parking opportunities for residents and their
visitors. We do not believe that this would be suitable at this location for the following
reasons:-

e Resident Support: In order to implement a successful permit scheme, over 50% of
the affected residents need to be in support.

e Scope: Rose Hill Road provides onward connectivity along Palace Road to the west
and towards Weymouth Road to the north. This means that it would be difficult to
define an appropriate boundary for a successful permit scheme. Without a clearly
defined network for the permit scheme, parking congestion is likely to be displaced
to adjacent areas.

e Visitors: Permit schemes can be restrictive for visitors, when a resident doesn’t have
the required visitors permit. This can adversely affect those who might rely on
regular visitors for their health or wellbeing.

e Enforcement: The resources available to enforce parking permit schemes are limited
and it is not always possible to achieve enforcement in a timely manner.

e Effectiveness: Parking Permit schemes are not effective in tackling certain types of
parking. For example they are not considered to be effective at preventing parking
associated with school drop-off / pick-up.

e Cost: The cost to implement and administer a parking permit scheme needs to be
met by local residents in line with Council policy. This can be prohibitive and often
impacts support for a permit scheme to be introduced.

o The cost to implement a permit scheme can vary but is likely to be in the
region of £2,000 in total.

o The ongoing cost to local residents is currently £30 per permit, per year, up
to a maximum of two resident permits and one visitors permit per property.

The requests in relation to parking permits have been kept on the system for consideration
in the future but this is considered to be outside the remit of this scheme.

FUNDING

All scheme funding is coming from the Mayor’s Challenge Fund (MCF).

The scheme secured Programme Entry approval in June 2018. This means that the
scheme is subject to a successful business case submission. A draft business case has

been prepared and this is currently being reviewed by Transport for Greater Manchester.

The Council has already received formal approval for the development costs for this
scheme, which has enabled the scheme design and the business case to be progressed.

Page 42



5.1

6.1

CONCLUSION — PROPOSALS / SCHEDULE OF WORKS

It is recommended that the No Waiting At Any Time restrictions are introduced as set out in
the table below. The extent of the restrictions on the west side of Rose Hill Road has been
reduced by 5m from that advertised on the public notice, as noted in Section 3.4 above.

Introduce No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions:

Mossley Road from its junction with Park Square for a distance of 137 metres in a north
south east side | easterly direction.

Mossley Road from a point 50 metres south west of its junction with Rose Hill Road to a
north west side | point 30 meters north east of that junction.

Mossley Road, | from a point 185 metres north east of its junction with Mellor Road for a
south side distance of 70 metres in a north easterly direction.

Mossley Road, | from a point 15 metres west of its junction with Old Road to a point 15
north side metres east of that junction.

Old Road, from its junction with Mossley Road for a distance of 10 metres in a
both sides northerly direction.

Rose Hill Road | from its junction with Mossley Road for a distance of 36 metres in a
east side northerly direction.

Rose Hill Road, | from its junction with Mossley Road for a distance of 37 metres in a
west side northerly direction.

RECOMMENDATIONS

As set out at the front of the report.

Page 43




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX ‘A’
Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
(1) It shall be the duty of every local authority upon whom functions are conferred by or under
this Act, so to exercise the functions conferred on them by this Act as (so far as practicable
having regard to the matters specified in sub-section (2) below) to secure the expeditious
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.
(2) The matters referred to in sub-section (1) above, as being specified in this sub-section are:
(a) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to premises;
(b) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected and (without prejudice to the
generality of this paragraph) the importance of regulating and restricting the use of
roads by heavy commercial vehicles, so as to preserve or improve the amenities of

the areas through which the roads run;

(c) The strategy prepared under Section 80 of the Environment Act 1995 (national air
quality strategy);

(d) The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and of securing
the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to use such vehicles; and

(e) Any other matters appearing to ...the local authority.... to be relevant.

Page 45



APPENDIX ‘AT’

The Highway Code

Introduction to the Highway Code

‘This Highway Code applies to England, Scotland and Wales. The Highway Code is essential
reading for everyone.

The most vulnerable road users are pedestrians, particularly children, older or disabled people,
cyclists, motorcyclists and horse riders. It is important that all road users are aware of the Code
and are considerate towards each other. This applies to pedestrians as much as to drivers and
riders.’

Knowing and applying the rules

‘Knowing and applying the rules contained in The Highway Code could significantly reduce road
casualties. Cutting the number of deaths and injuries that occur on our roads every day is a
responsibility we all share. The Highway Code can help us discharge that responsibility.

Rule 243
DO NOT stop or park:

e near a school entrance

« anywhere you would prevent access for Emergency Services

e at or near a bus or tram stop or taxi rank

« on the approach to a level crossing/tramway crossing

e opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) of a junction, except in an authorised parking
space

e near the brow of a hill or hump bridge

e opposite a traffic island or (if this would cause an obstruction) another parked
vehicle

« where you would force other traffic to enter a tram lane

o where the kerb has been lowered to help wheelchair users and powered mobility
vehicles

« in front of an entrance to a property

e on abend

e where you would obstruct cyclists’ use of cycle facilities

except when forced to do so by stationary traffic.

Page 46



i JIEHJIEHJLM =l

=JEEEEF] :

[ s |
Y @m “ f‘/‘én Al l: ’ "T
I i
7 - = (T3 Sllg &
e S T e

1r
5
I
]

LaTrey
ifi
el

2

1
e
'i
[
(T[]
[ [ ]

]
‘L
3

&

N
5
e
NN []
"

o

J

o=
I

‘lls ’
LG
3

—e 1 |
L& Y AT

o -
Sl

T 7

R
o i
N,
s
(!

=i ny
-- ;‘l—¥“::‘;ii‘mﬁ '7\/,/‘ )

o
D
r.

\ T 20 mph zone
“\ No waiting at any time
-ir'Ill icti X g g
g restrictions e y Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the
| wilz \ 0 <
: : X permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office”” |
[ cumaon et m Detailed scheme draWIng Y \ © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes™ |
| Seperate (Mayor Challenge FUnd) "  aAvy . \ Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or
\‘ ‘\‘ - 4 /3 3 civil proceedings. TMBC LA 076384 2020.
I - — — T A i ) W N U ™ B X c*

Engineering Service
Tameside MBC
Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
SK154ST

Mossley Road Scheme AUL

Drawn By : Scale : NTS Date : 22/7/2020 20 mph & Old Road waiting restrictions




This page is intentionally left blank



: ]
FLAT TOP ROAD HUMP

I
Y

~L

)

<4
44
4

DOUBLE YELLOW LINES TO~-

\li XTENDED' -

-
~ s
- -
- s

s

LOCATION OF PARALLEL CROSSING

ONTROLLED ZONE

“Tt017
Park View

‘NO STOPPING'

Engineering Service
Tameside MBC

Mossley Road, Ashton under Lyne

Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
SK154ST

Drawn By : Scale : NTS

Date : 22/7/2020

Parallel Crossing




This page is intentionally left blank



Reduced extent of
advertised restriction |
(5 metres)

Inspire Academy (Sch)

§ $ Tameside

Metropolitan Borough

+ Crown copyright. All rights reserved
Licence No. 2003

MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON-U-LINE
Proposed restrictions
amendment

SCALE NTS

DATE 11/09/2020
DRAWING No. 001

DRAWN BY




This page is intentionally left blank



oG abed

{ Drawing No.:

Revision:

HS6051-009-GN-DR-0004

PO1

Shared Footway
Sign

g:;z:]red Footway //
/

gihgired Footway // /
p i

/ Footway Widened
/ to Reduce Length

/\ » of Crossing

New Flat Topped
Road Hump \

20 mph Zone / Zone
Ends Signs

Shared Footway
Sign

New Parallel Crossing
of Mossley Road

Shared Footway
Sign

New bus stop
clearway

Footway Construction (bituminous surfacing)
Green Coloured Surfacing
High Friction Surface Dressing
\ \ Fencing (to match existing) / Maintenance Gates
Ve A-Frame Barrier
/’) Kissing Gate - Medium Mobility
°c o Bollards (Footway / Traffic Island)
% Tactile Paving
.\a Traffic Signs
0 Pedestrian / Cycle Road Marking (TSRGD Diag. 956)

o] Belisha Beacons

@ @ Speed Roundel Markings on Red Surface Dressing

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

——-/‘ Zig Zag Markings / Controlled Crossing Area
P01 |11/09/2020| First Issue JS
Ref. Date Details Initials
Revisions

{gl Tameside

Metropolitan Borough

OPERATIONS & NEIGHBOURHOODS

Assistant Director: Emma Varnam

Head of Environmental Services (Design & Delivery): Lee Holland
Tame Street Depot, Tame Street. Stalybridge, SK15 1ST.
www.tameside.gov.uk

Tel: 0161 342 8355 Fax: 0161 342 3964

email: eng.designunit@tameside.gov.uk Twitter: @tmbc_highways

Title

The Mayor's Walking and Cycling Challenge Fund
Chadwick Dam Scheme

Traffic Order Restrictions and Features

Proposed Layout

Scale Drawn Checked Scheme ID
Js AV HS6051-009
1:500 @ A2 Date Date Drawing Status
11/09/2020 11/09/2020 P

[g " HS6051-009-GN-DR-0004 | PO J



AutoCAD SHX Text
Inspire Academy (Sch)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
PARK SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
158.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Park View

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
1 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
19 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
MELLOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
MOSSLEY ROAD


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6.a)

Application Number: 20/00105/REM

Proposal: Reserved matters application for the scale, layout, landscaping and
appearance of a residential development of 338 dwellings on the site,
pursuant to outline planning permission ref. 18/00487/OUT.

Site: Former Robertson’s Jam Factory, Williamson Lane, Droylsden

Applicant: Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd and Bellway Homes Ltd (Manchester
Division)

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to conditions.

Reason for report: A Speakers Panel decision is required because the application

constitutes major development.

1. APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

1.1 The applicant seeks reserved matters approval for the erection of 338 dwellings with
associated works including car parking and landscaping, following the granting of outline
panning permission for up to 350 dwellings on the site in August 2019.

1.2 The application has been amended from the original submission to increase the number of
units by 24 (original application proposed 314 dwellings), with the main alteration being the
introduction of more apartments on the southern edge of the site, which forms a prominent
frontage onto the Canal. The extent of the public realm along this southern edge has also
been significantly improved through amendments sought during the assessment of the
application

1.3 The proposed development would include the following mix of dwellings:-

40 x 4 bed houses
192 x 3 bed houses
16x 2 bed houses

84 x 2 bed apartments
6 x 1 bed apartments

1.4 17 of the units would be affordable homes, meeting the requirements of the Section 106
Agreement attached to the outline planning permission, which mandates that 5% of the
dwellings must be affordable. It should however be noted that the Section 106 Agreement
attached to the outline approval requires the submission and approval of a scheme
providing the details of the location of the affordable units within the site and the mix in the
size and tenure of these units. The location of the affordable units is therefore not being
approved through this reserved matters application.

15 The following documents have been submitted in support of the planning application:-

- Planning Statement (including Affordable Housing Statement)

- Droylsden Housing Market Assessment

- Crime Impact Assessment

- Design Statement

- Noise Assessment

- Supplementary Phase Il Geo-environmental Site Assessment Remediation and
Enabling Works Strategy

- Residential Travel Plan

- Protected Species Survey

Page 55



2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

- Invasive Species Method Statement

- Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement

- Landscape and Ecological Management Plan

- Landscaping scheme

- Biodiversity Enhancement Measure

- Construction Environment Management Plans (one for each developer)

SITE & SURROUNDINGS

The application relates to approximately 8 hectares of land to the south east of Droylsden
town centre, which was formally occupied by industrial units and was operated by
Robertson’s Jam. The land is now clear of all buildings save for a substation adjacent to
the western boundary. There is some vegetation in the north western corner of the site.
Hardstanding associated with the previous industrial use covers the vast majority of the
relatively flat land. Hedgerows and sporadic planting demarcate the northern, eastern and
southern boundaries of the land. The Ashton Canal runs parallel with the southern
boundary of the site.

The site borders residential development on its northern, north-western and western
boundaries. The south-eastern boundary adjoins the Manchester Road and on the
opposite side of this is further residential development. The eastern boundary directly
adjoins the playing fields of the Aldwinians Rugby Football Club with its playing pitches, car
park and clubhouse. To the north and east of the sports pitches is further residential
development. The principal access points to the existing site are from Williamson Lane and
Fitzroy Street.

PLANNING HISTORY

18/00487/0UT - Proposed Redevelopment of land at Manchester Road, Ashton Hill Lane,
Fitzroy Street and Williamson Lane, Droylsden for Class C3 Residential Development,
Public Open Space and Means of Access (Outline Application with Means of Access not
reserved) — approved 05.08.2019.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation:
Allocated under policy E3 as an Established Employment Area

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development
1.6: Securing Urban Regeneration

1.10: Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment
1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment

Part 2 Policies

C1: Townscape and Urban Form

H2: Unallocated Sites (for housing)

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings

H5: Open Space Provision

H6: Education and Community Facilities

H7: Mixed Use and Density

H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments

Page 56



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

51

MW11: Contaminated Land

MW12: Control of Pollution

MW 14 Air Quality

N1b: National Nature Conservation Sites

N2: Locally Designated Nature Conservation Sites
N3: Nature Conservation Factors

N4 Trees and Woodland

N5: Trees Within Development Sites

N6: Protection and Enhancement of Waterside Areas
N7: Protected Species

OL7: Potential of Water Areas

OL10: Landscape Quality and Character

T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management
T10: Parking

T11: Travel Plans

U3: Water Services for Developments

U4 Flood Prevention U5 Energy Efficiency

Other Policies
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018.

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the draft Greater
Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (*GMSF”) which shows possible land use
allocations and decision making polices across the region up to 2038. The document is a
material consideration but the weight afforded to it is limited by the fact it is at an early
stage in its preparation which is subject to unresolved objections

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007
Employment Land SPD adopted January 2009

Tameside Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study (2010)

Tameside Council Playing Pitch Strategy 2015

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 11: Making Effective use of Land

Section 12: Achieving well-designed places

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning
guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning
Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the
PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued and a notice displayed adjacent to the site for 21
days, in accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Council’s adopted
Statement of Community Involvement.

Page 57



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Borough Environmental Health Officer (EHO) — no objections to the proposals. Appropriate
conditions were attached to the outline planning permission and no additional conditions
are considered necessary at this reserved matters stage.

Greater Manchester Ecology unit (GMEU) — The layout of the scheme has provided a
buffer zone between the Canal (a designated Site of Biological Importance) and the
development, which is in line with GMEU comments on the outline application. The
amended scheme has increased the extent of this buffer and has introduced a species rich
mix as opposed to the amenity mix originally proposed. Overall, the landscaping scheme is
considered to be acceptable, with other matters covered by conditions attached to the
outline planning permission. The details of biodiversity enhancements are supported and
should be secured by condition.

Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) — no objections to the proposals. To promote
active travel and link in with the surrounding environment, the applicant should ensure the
provision of continuous 2 metre wide footways throughout and surrounding the
development, reinstating any redundant vehicle access points which served the former site,
installing tactile paving at junctions / crossing points and renewing any substandard
footways.

The submitted package of mitigation measures shown on the plans confirms that various
highway works will be undertaken surrounding the site, including the implementation of a
splitter island and provision of a toucan and zebra crossings, resurfacing works, footway
and cycle improvements. These measures are welcomed. To encourage sustainable
travel choices, it is important that the development is accompanied by a robust Residential
Travel Plan with effective measures for bringing about modal shift, i.e. the use of incentives,
provision of onsite and offsite infrastructure, along with a clear monitoring regime with
agreed targets. TfGM would recommend that each dwelling makes provision for some form
of secure cycle parking within the site curtilage of the dwellings.

Local Highway Authority — no objections to the amended proposals following consideration
amendments to the layout of the scheme. Conditions are recommended in relation to the
details of the traffic calming measures to be installed within the highway and the
specification of construction of areas of adopted highway.

United Utilities - no objections to the proposals subject to compliance with the conditions
relating to drainage that were attached to the outline planning permission.

Canal and Rivers Trust (C&RT) — no objections to the proposals. Some concerns
regarding the impact of car parking areas close to the Canal frontage in the original
submission, which have been addressed by the revised proposals. A number of the issues
that C&RT raises are coved by conditions attached to the outline planning permission,
including details of how the structural integrity of the Canal embankment is to be
maintained, details of how the site is to be drained and the measures to be put in place to
prevent the pollution of the watercourse during the construction phase of the development.

Greater Manchester Police (Design Out Crime Officer) — no objections to the proposals,
subject to compliance with the security measures detailed in the Crime Impact Statement
submitted with the reserved matters application.

Environment Agency — no objections to the proposals subject to compliance with the

conditions relating to the remediation of contaminated land that were attached to the outline
planning permission.

Page 58



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

Borough Contaminated Land Officer - no objections to the proposals subject to compliance
with the conditions relating to the remediation of contaminated land that were attached to
the outline planning permission.

Borough Tree Officer — no objections to the proposed landscaping scheme.
Natural England — no comments to make on the application.

Coal Authority - no objections to the proposals given that the site is not located in a high
risk area with regard to coal mining legacy and no conditions are considered necessary.

Highways England — no objections raised to the proposals.
Historic England — no comments to make on the application.

Lead Local Flood Risk Authority — no comments received. Conditions requiring the
submission and approval of a detailed drainage strategy to serve the development were
attached to the outline planning permission.

Cadent Gas - Cadent have identified operational gas apparatus within the application site
boundary. This may include a legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which
restricts activity in proximity to Cadent assets in private land. The Applicant must ensure
that proposed works do not infringe on Cadent’s legal rights and any details of such
restrictions should be obtained from the landowner in the first instance. An informative
should be attached to any planning permission granted informing the developer of the need
to contact Cadent’s Plant Protection Team for approval before carrying out any works on
site and ensuring requirements are adhered to.

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

2 letters of objection have been received to the proposals raising concerns regarding the
impact of the traffic generated by the development on the adjacent roads, which already
suffer from congestion at peak times and the potential for cars to ‘rat run’ through the
development to avoid the junctions on Manchester Road to the south of the site.

39 letters of support for the proposals have been received, highlighting the benefits of the
provision of affordable housing, a rage of accommodation within the development and the
upgrade of pedestrian and cycle ways within the locality.

1 representation has been received from a resident of a property on Willow Fold (north of
the site) seeking clarification regarding the nature of the treatment of the common boundary
and the separation distance to be retained to those neighbouring properties.

ANAYLSIS

The principle of the erection of a residential development of up to 350 dwellings on the land
and the means of access into the development via connections to Manchester Road (south
eastern corner) and Ashton Hill Lane (western boundary) has been established through the
granting of outline planning permission ref. 18/00487/OUT.

That permission also approved an access connection to Williamson Lane but this is limited
to pedestrian, cycle and emergency vehicle use only by a condition attached to the outline
permission. The principle of the loss of the employment land and the impacts associated
with the redevelopment of the site for residential purposes in terms of the change of use
cannot therefore be revisited in the assessment of this reserved matters application.

Page 59



8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

The key issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:-

1) The appropriateness of the density of development

2) The impact of the proposed layout, design and scale of the development on the
character of the site and the surrounding area

3) The impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties

4) The impact on highway safety

5) The impact on the ecology and trees

6) Other matters

DENSITY OF DEVELOPMENT

Paragraph 122 of the NPPF states that ‘planning policies and decisions should make
efficient use of land, taking into account:-

a) The identified need for different types of housing and other forms of development,
and the availability of land for accommodating it.

b) Local market conditions and viability.

c) The availability and capacity of infrastructure and services — both existing and

proposed — as well as their potential for further improvement and the scope to
promote sustainable travel modes that limit future car use.

d) The desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character and setting (including
residential gardens), or of promoting regeneration and change.
e) The importance of securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places.

Paragraph 123 states that ‘where there is an existing.....shortage of land for meeting
identified housing needs (as is currently the case in Tameside), it is especially important
that planning policies and decisions avoid homes being built at low densities, and ensure
that developments make optimal use of the potential of each site. In these circumstances:-

a) Plans should contain policies to optimise the use of land in their area and meet as
much of the identified need for housing as possible. This will be tested robustly at
examination, and should include the use of minimum density standards for city and
town centres and other locations that are well served by public transport. These
standards should seek a significant uplift in the average density of residential
development within these areas, unless it can be shown that there are strong
reasons why this would be inappropriate.

b) The use of minimum density standards should also be considered for other parts of
the plan area. It may be appropriate to set out a range of densities that reflect the
accessibility and potential of different areas, rather than one broad density range.

c) Local planning authorities should refuse applications which they consider fail to
make efficient use of land, taking into account the policies in this Framework. In this
context, when considering applications for housing, authorities should take a flexible
approach in applying policies or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where
they would otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting
scheme would provide acceptable living standards).

The application as originally submitted proposed 314 units on the site at a density of just
over 39 dwellings per hectare. Officers had concerns regarding the lack of prominence of
development on the Canal frontage and the highway dominated nature of the layout that
resulted from the original proposal, which fell 36 dwellings short of the ceiling number set
by the outline planning permission.

Whilst acknowledging that the ceiling number of 350 dwellings set by the outline planning
permission sets only a maximum and not a minimum number of units, officers have been
mindful of the brownfield nature and highly sustainable location of this site, in addition to the

Page 60



9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

10.

10.1

need to boost the supply of housing in the Borough. Officers also expressed concerns that
the Housing Market Assessment (HMA) submitted with the application did not reach
convincing conclusions regarding the demand for apartments within this part of the
Borough. Specific concerns included the values attributed to apartments, which appeared
to be significantly lower than recent sales values achieved at Droylsden Marina and also
the extent of the market area included in the Assessment.

Officers consider that there is clear evidence of demand for apartments within this part of
the Borough, given the advantageous connection to the eastern edge of Manchester city
centre. There is evidence of demand for the relatively recently constructed apartments at
the Marina, with a significant number of apartments in the pipeline through recent consents
at 2 sites on Fairfield Road and also the Victoria Mill site.

Given the concerns regarding the layout, including the relationship between the western
edge of the development and the Canal and the density of development as highlighted
above, officers sought revisions to the original submission.

Following these discussions, the scheme has been revised and the number of units now
proposed is 338. Over the 8 hectare site, this represents a density of just over 42 dwellings
per hectare. The quantum of development proposed still falls 12 units and approximately 2
dwelling per hectare short of the ceiling number of units imposed on the outline planning
permission.

The revised scheme includes 2 additional apartment blocks on the Canal frontage and has
rationalised the highway layout so that a greater landscaped buffer and public open space
area can be created along the Canal edge. Given these design improvements (discussed
in more detail below) and the fact that 12 units represents a deficit of only 3.5% below the
ceiling number imposed at the outline stage, officers consider that the substantial benefit of
delivering 338 units outweighs the limited harm that arises from the relatively minor
deficiency.

Following the above assessment, the density of development proposed in the revised
scheme is considered to be acceptable.

DESIGN QUALITY AND IMPACT ON CHARACTER

Section 12 of the NPPF is entitled Achieving well-designed places. Paragraph 127 states
that planning decisions should ensure that development achieves the following criteria
(those relevant to this proposal):-

- Developments that will function well and add to the quality of the area.

- Developments that are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and
appropriate and effective landscaping.

- Developments that are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, whilst not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

- Developments that establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the
arrangements of streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive,
welcoming and distinctive places.

- Developments that optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an
appropriate amount and mix of development (including green and other public
space).

- Developments that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
wellbeing, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Page 61



10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that ‘permission should be refused for development of
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design

standards....’.

Following concerns expressed by officers regarding the design credentials of the scheme, a
number of improvements to the layout have been secured, in addition to the uplift in the
number of units, as part of the revised scheme. The improvements relate principally to the
Canal frontage (southern edge of the site), the western edge of the development (fronting
Ashton Hill Lane and Williamson Lane) and the road hierarchy within the scheme. Each of
these points are discussed in detail below.

Canal frontage

The original submission presented units facing the Canal but the highway layout resulted in
a road to be used by vehicular traffic running along the majority of the southern edge of the
site. This created a weak environment for pedestrian movement and did not provide a
positive interaction between the southern edge of the development and the adjacent
watercourse. The layout of dwellings in the south western corner of the development also
blocked views into the site from Ashton Hill Lane, severing the desire line from Gorseyfields
to the west of the site, through to the Canal.

This element of the scheme further weakened the interaction with the Canal and
undervalued the watercourse as a feature to draw people into the development. There
were also concerns regarding the scale of development along the Canal frontage, with 2
storey detached units included on a number of plots in key locations, failing to provide the
scale of development required on this long, prominent edge of the site.

The amended scheme has significantly improved the environment adjacent to the Canal
and the interaction between the buildings and the watercourse. One of the principal
changes has been to provide all vehicular access and parking to the units along the
southern edge of the site to the rear of those properties. This has resulted in a much softer
edge to the development, creating a public open space area in a landscaped ‘buffer’
between the southern-most properties and the southern boundary of the site

The orientation of a 3 storey building containing apartments to follow the line of a
pedestrian link from Ashton Hill Lane down to the Canal in the south western corner of the
site has resulted in a significant improvement in the treatment of that edge of the
development. The sweeping nature of the footpath provides a clear line of sight for views
into the development from Ashton Hill Lane and allows appreciation of the Canal frontage in
these views. This amendment has resulted in a significant enhancement to the permeability
and legibility of the scheme from these views.

The inclusion of another 2 x 3 storey apartment buildings on the Canal frontage and 2.5
storey houses with relatively tall ridge heights along this edge of the development has
resulted in a more prominent and coherent development along this visible boundary of the
site, thereby significantly improving the overall design quality of the development.

Western edge

Whilst the dwellings on the western boundary of the site fronted onto Williamson Lane and
Ashton Hill Lane respectively in the original submission, the layout presented all of the
parking spaces associated with the semi-detached properties in front of the buildings. This
resulted in a streetscene that would be dominated by car parking and required the buildings
to be set back within their plots. Both of these elements were considered to jar with the
character of these streets which include terraced properties with front building lines tight to
the back edge of the footway.

Page 62



10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

The scheme has been amended to significantly reduce the number of dwellings on the
western edge of the development that would be served by frontage parking. An access
point has been created from Fitzroy Street in the revised scheme, which would connect to
the main access road leading into the development from Ashton Hill Lane and would allow
access to the parking spaces at the rear of the properties that would directly front Ashton
Hill Lane.

The northern and southern ends of the row of spaces would be concealed from public view
through brick walls which would extend beyond the curtilage of the adjacent dwellings and
the long row of spaces would be further broken up by the positioning of strategic
landscaping. This run of car parking spaces would be overlooked by properties at the
northern and southern end of the access road.

On the Williamson Lane frontage, the properties at the northern end of this part of the site
would be served by a rear parking court, which would be limited to 10 car parking spaces.
The remainder of the properties on the Williamson Lane frontage would still be served by
frontage parking. This affects a relatively short stretch of the boundary and the placement
of an apartment block adjacent to the junction between Fitzroy Street and Williamson Lane
would provide a dominant feature in the streetscene in wider public views.

Overall, the relocation of parking spaces to the rear of most of the properties allows for a
much better integration between the western edge of the development and the character of
existing adjacent properties and provides a much stronger identity to this character area
within the wider scheme.

Road hierarchy

Officers shared the concerns of objectors to the application that the original proposals
presented the potential for ‘rat running’ of traffic through the site, between the access points
from Manchester Road (south eastern corner) and the access onto Ashton Hill Lane (on the
western boundary of the site). This issue was symptomatic of a scheme that was highway
dominated, lacked pedestrian permeability and failed to create clear desire lines through to
the Canal on the southern edge of the development. The issue of traffic management is
addressed in the highway safety section of this report.

The relocation of the access and parking areas associated with the dwellings on the Canal
frontage to the rear of those properties allows the full extent of the public space to the front
of the dwellings on the southern edge of the development to be for pedestrian use only.
This results in a more visually attractive but also less engineered appearance to this
sensitive edge of the site and achieves a much higher design standard than the original
submission. Similarly, creating a direct link to the open space along the Canal frontage in
the south eastern corner of the site and the use of a narrower highway to connect to the
dwellings at the southern edge of this route results in more permeable development and
further enhances interaction with the Canal.

The number of roads in the northern portion of the site has been reduced through the
creation of larger blocks of development, which have retained the outward facing
orientation of the dwellings, with suitable separation distances retained on the northern
edge of the development.

Other design considerations

The location of the equipped area of open space within the central part of the site is
considered to be appropriate, maximising opportunities for usage by future residents. In
the revised scheme, this area provides an attractive terminating vista for the entry into the
development from Ashton Hill Lane. The central area of open space would be overlooked
on all sides, with properties close up to the northern and southern edges of the space. This
area of open space would be of sufficient size to accommodate the 5 pieces of play

Page 63



10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

11.

111

11.2

equipment required by the relevant condition on the outline planning permission and a
buffer one of 20 metres between the equipment and the closest neighbouring properties.

There would be clear desire line through from the south eastern corner of this open space
and the open space on the southern edge of the development adjacent to the Canal. This
factor enhances the overall flow of the development and emphasises the fact that the
revised scheme has improved the quality of the public realm considerably, despite also
achieving a higher density of development than the original submission.

The house types are considered to be appropriate, with a degree of variation provided by
the rendering of parts of some of the apartment buildings, breaking up the mass of those
units. The inclusion of Juliette balconies on the 3 storey apartment buildings adjacent to
the Canal will assist with the aim of maximising interaction between the development and
the watercourse.

In relation to the hard landscaping proposals, officers have raised concerns with the
applicant regarding the extent of the highway and exposed parking areas to be surfaced in
bitmac/tarmac. Officers have made it clear to the applicant that, in order to raise the
standard of the development to the required design level, the private access roads and
exposed parking areas need to be treated with a paved surface. The applicant has agreed
to the imposition of a condition to secure these details and has been made aware that any
application to discharge this condition must not propose a bitmac/tarmac to private
road/access/parking spaces.

Conclusion on design matters

Overall, it is considered that the amended scheme has significantly improved the design
quality of the proposed development. The increased density has resulted in a greater
number of apartments on the Canal edge, which would result in a more prominent built form
on this important edge than would have been the case with the original submission.

The outward facing nature of the original layout has been given far stronger emphasis by
the reduction in frontage parking on the western edge development and the relocation of
the parking and access areas to the properties on the Canal frontage. The internal highway
layout had been rationalised and pedestrian connectivity has been improved significantly
through the creation of more legible connections through the development to the central
area of equipped open space and the open space on the southern edge of the scheme.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the amended proposals would
achieve the requirements set out in Section 12 of the NPPF as quoted above.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

The adopted Residential Design Guide (RDG) requires 21 metres to be retained between
corresponding elevations of properties of the same height that contain habitable rooms,
reducing to 14 metres where properties face each other across a highway. A separation
distance of 14 metres should also be retained where an elevation with primary window(s)
serving habitable room(s) and a corresponding blank elevation of a neighbouring property
face each other. An additional 3 metres should be added to these distances for each
additional storey where buildings are taller than 2 storeys in height.

The neighbouring properties to the north of the site (located on Willow Fold and Williamson
Lane share a common boundary with the application site but those properties are
orientated so that the side elevations of those properties face the application site. None of
the affected elevations contain primary habitable room windows above first floor level.

Page 64



11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

The scheme does propose to replace the existing planting on the northern boundary of the
site, which is tall in height along the boundary with some of the properties on Willow Fold.
A number of the proposed properties would face the common boundary with those
neighbouring properties but these would be set off the common boundary by the depth of
the grassed buffer to be retained along the northern edge of the scheme.

The replacement planting (which would include trees at regular intervals along that
boundary, which are to be heavy stock on first planting — as detailed on the submitted
plans) would be sufficient to prevent unreasonable overlooking or overshadowing of those
neighbouring properties, given the separation distance to be retained between the
corresponding elevations.

The separation distances to be retained between the apartments to be sited in the north
western corner of the site (on the junction of Fitzroy Street and Williamson Lane) and the
existing properties on the opposite side of the Wiliamson Lane would be 17 metres,
meeting the requirements of the RDG where 3 storey development faces 2 storey
properties.

There are no primary habitable room windows in the eastern elevation of the terraced
property on the opposite side of Fitzroy Street, ensuring that the separation distance to be
retained would be adequate to preserve the amenity of the occupants of that neighbouring
property. Likewise, no unreasonable overlooking could occur between the proposed
properties that would run parallel with Fitzroy Street and the existing neighbouring
properties that back on to eastern side of that road (fronting Ashton Hill Lane) due to the
extent of the separation distances to be retained.

Adequate separation distances would be retained between the proposed dwellings that
would front the Ashton Hill Lane boundary of the site and the corresponding front elevations
of the existing properties on the opposite side of the highway to prevent any unreasonable
overlooking or overshadowing of those dwellings.

Given the separation distances to be retained and the fact that the existing mature planting
located between the south eastern boundary of the site and the highway (Manchester
Road) beyond, it is considered that the proposed development would not result in
unreasonable overlooking into or overshadowing of the existing neighbouring properties
located to the south east of the site.

Properties on the eastern edge of the development would overlook the adjacent recreation
ground and the units on the southern edge would overlook the Canal, with commercial units
beyond. The properties on those edges of the development would not result in a
detrimental impact on the residential amenity of any neighbouring properties therefore.

A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application. Recommendations
are made in the Assessment in relation to the specification of the glazing to be installed in
the openings, mechanical ventilation and other measures required to reduce the impact of
external noise sources to an acceptable degree. Properties on the perimeters of the site
adjacent to a highway (south eastern and western edges) and those adjacent to the sports
pitches to the east and those on the Canal edge (facing commercial premises on the
opposite side of the watercourse) are those highlighted as requiring the installation of
mitigation measures, with a range of product options given.

The Borough EHO has not raised any objections to the conclusions of either the Noise
Assessment. A condition requiring the submission and approval of the specific nose
mitigation measures to be installed is attached to the recommendation. This would address
the impact of external noise sources on the residential amenity of future occupiers of the
development. The separation distances to be retained between the proposed dwellings

Page 65



11.12

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

would comply with the requirements of the RDG quoted above, ensuring that the amenity of
the future occupants would be preserved in terms of overlooking and overshadowing.

On the basis of the above assessment, the proposals are considered to preserve the
residential amenity of neighbouring properties and the amenity of the future occupants of
the development.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

The principal points of vehicular access to serve the development were approved at the
outline stage, these being in the south eastern corner (to Manchester Road), on the
western boundary (to Ashton Hill Lane) and an access to be restricted to emergency
vehicles only is to be provided to Williamson Lane.

At 338 dwellings, the revised scheme falls below the ceiling number of 350 dwellings
approved by the outline planning permission. The Section 106 Agreement attached to the
outline permission requires a package of specific measures to improve pedestrian and
cycle connectively between the site and Droylsden tram station and town centres to the
north of the site and Fairfield train station to the south to be implemented in order to provide
mitigation for the level of trips generated by the development.

The total cost if this package is £400,000 and that is a fixed sum that the developer will be
required to pay even though the proposed scheme falls below the maximum number of
dwellings that were permitted by the outline planning permission. As a result, whilst the
comments of objectors are noted, it is considered that the level of mitigation secured via the
outline permission is sufficient to offset the impact of the number of dwellings now proposed
at the reserved matters stage.

In relation to the originally proposed layout submitted at this reserved matters stage,
officers shared the concerns of local residents regarding the potential for ‘rat running’
through the development. Routes through the site passing immediately to the south of the
central area of open space and also along the Canal frontage, providing a straight link
between the access points in the south eastern corner (Manchester Road) and on the
western boundary (Ashton Hill Lane) were included in the original submission.

The amended scheme has reduced this to one route through, which passes to the rear of
the properties that would front onto the southern boundary of the site. This route also
serves the car parking spaces for those properties and also a number of the properties to
the north of this road however and therefore will be the subject of activity that will slow
traffic movement through the site, particularly at peak times.

In recognition of the fact that the proposed layout does still include one relatively direct
route between the two access points, officers have negotiated a series of traffic calming
measures along that road to further reduce the speed of traffic moving through the site.
These have been annotated on the amended plans and include the provision of single lane
passing points at the eastern and western ends of this section of the highway and a number
of raised tables within the road.

In order to achieve an appropriate layout that meets the design standards required of a
development on this scale, it is considered that preventing a relatively clear route through
the site in an east-west alignment would be very difficult to achieve and would result in a far
less permeable and legible development for pedestrians and cyclists.

The traffic management measures to be put in place would prevent the ability of cars to
move along both lanes of the one route through the site at the same time, which would
provide a deterrent to taking this route particularly during peak times. The incentive to use

Page 66



12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

this route would be further reduced by the close proximity of a large number of car parking
spaces to this route in the revised layout, where activity would also be greater at peak
times.

It is also worth noting that the option of severing the route at some point within the middle of
the site would not prevent vehicle entering the site in an attempt to avoid the adjacent
junctions on Manchester Road. Indeed, this could potentially result in a far greater hazard
than the proposed scheme as vehicles would need to turn round and exit the site again at
the point at which the highway was severed or blocked. Conditions are recommended to
ensure that the details of the construction of the highway and the traffic calming measures
to be installed would maintain highway safety.

In relation to parking provision, the scheme meets the requirements of policy RD8 of the
RDG, which requires 2 car parking spaces to be provided for dwellings with 2 or more
bedrooms. There are no objections from the Local Highway Authority to the proposed
access from Fitzroy Street in the north western corner of the site, which would be used as
the point of access primarily for the car parking spaces that serve the dwellings that would
front on to the northern section of the Ashton Hill Lane frontage. This would not be a
principal point of access into or egress from the development, being set back from the main
boundaries on the western edge of the site which front Williamson Lane and Ashton Hill
Lane.

TfGM has commented that 2 metre wide footways should be provided throughout the
development. In areas where a shared surface approach has been taken, 2 metre spaces
either side of the central carriageway have been provided. Through amendments to the
layout and the creation of desire lines into and through the site, as well as more usable
open space along the Canal frontage, the revised scheme has become far more permeable
for pedestrians and cyclists. The provision of a Sustainable Travel Plan to serve the
development is required by one of the conditions attached to the outline planning
permission.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposals would not result in a
detrimental impact on highway safety, subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions.

ECOLOGY AND TREES

The layout of the scheme has provided a buffer zone between the Canal (a designated Site
of Biological Importance) and the development, which is in line with GMEU comments on
the outline application. The amended scheme has increased the extent of this buffer and
has introduced a species rich mix as opposed to the amenity mix originally
proposed. Overall, the soft landscaping scheme is considered to be acceptable, with other
matters covered by conditions attached to the outline planning permission.

The applicant has provided details of the biodiversity enhancements to be installed within
the development. In addition to the planting of native species within the soft landscaping
scheme, the measures include the installation of bat and bird boxes and hedgehog holes.
The locations of these installations are shown on the plans submitted with the application.
GMEU are supportive of the proposals and compliance with these details can be secured
by condition. It remains that the relevant condition attached to the outline planning
permission needs to be discharged.

The species mix of the trees to be planted as part of the structural soft landscaping across
the development includes native species such as Silver Bitch, Field Maple, Hornbeam and
Rowan. Tree planting would be provided at regular intervals around the perimeter of the
site, to enhance the areas of public open space within the scheme and to define key routes.
The Borough Tree Officer has raised no objections to the amended scheme. A condition

Page 67



13.4

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

requiring protection of the existing trees to be retained attached to the outline planning
permission. Conditions relating to the implementation and management of the submitted
landscaping scheme are attached to the recommendation.

Conditions relating to the protection of the biodiversity value of the Canal during the
construction phase of the development, limiting the timing of vegetation removal and
covering other ecological matters were attached to the outline planning permission.

FLOOD RISK / DRAINAGE

The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy. The site is
in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore considered to be at a lower risk of flooding. A condition
was imposed on the outline planning permission requiring the submission and approval of a
sustainable drainage strategy for the site was attached to the outline planning permission,
to which neither the LLFA nor United Ultilities objected. This condition is required to be
discharged prior to the commencement of development. Whilst the applicant the submitted
a drainage layout with this reserved matters application, the correct way of dealing with this
matter is through the discharge of the relevant condition attached to the outline planning
permission.

OTHER MATTERS

In relation to environmental health, conditions limiting the hours of works during the
construction phase of the development and details of the refuse storage arrangements
were attached to the outline planning permission and therefore do not need to be re-
imposed at this reserved matters stage. The same applies in relation to the remediation of
sources of ground contamination on the site.

The Canal and Rivers Trust (C&RT) expressed some concerns regarding the impact of car
parking areas close to the Canal frontage in the original reserved matters submission. This
issue is considered to have been comprehensively addressed in the revised proposals. A
number of the other matters that C&RT raises are coved by conditions attached to the
outline planning permission, including details of how the structural integrity of the Canal
embankment is to be maintained, details of how the site is to be drained and the measures
to be put in place to prevent the pollution of the watercourse during the construction phase
of the development.

A Crime Impact Statement (CIS) has been submitted in support of the planning application.
This highlights the advantages of an outward facing layout and states that dwellings will be
laid out in a block and grid pattern, facing each other, overlooking the street and with ‘back
to back’ rear gardens to aid security. Increased surveillance opportunities will also be
provided by way of active frontages to the properties. The CIS details the nature of the
security systems to be installed on the houses and to secure entry into the apartment
buildings. Street lighting specification is also covered by the CIS and a condition imposed
on the outline planning permission required details of the external lighting to be submitted
and approved prior to installation.

The GMP Designing Out Crime Officer has reviewed the CIS and has raised no objections
to the proposals, recommending that a condition requiring compliance with the submitted
details be imposed on any approval. Such a condition is attached to the recommendation.
It remains that the relevant condition on the outline planning permission still needs to be
discharged.

Cadent Gas has identified operational gas apparatus within the application site boundary
(in the area adjacent to the northern boundary of the site that is shown as being kept free of

Page 68



15.6

15.7

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

development other than highway infrastructure). The applicant has been made aware of
this situation and an informative outlining their responsibilities in this regard can be
attached to any reserved matters approval.

In relation to the impact of residential development on the capacity of the highway network
and other social infrastructure e.g. schools and doctors surgeries, it is important to note that
the granting of outline planning permission established the principle of redeveloping the site
for up to 350 dwellings. As the proposed development at this reserved matters stage does
not exceed that number of units approved at the outline stage, the impact on the
development in these areas cannot be revisited. Again, it is important to note that a
substantial mitigation package was secured through the Section 106 Agreement attached
to the outline planning permission.

A number of reports have been submitted with this reserved matters application which
relate to the subject of conditions and obligations attached to the outline planning
permission. Such reports include an Affordable Housing Statement, Residential Travel Plan
(including details of an electric vehicle charging strategy), Enabling Works Statement,
Construction Environment Management Plan and Invasive Species Survey. These reports
are not being approved as part of this application as they need to be submitted as part of
an application to discharge the relevant conditions/obligations attached to the outline
planning permission.

CONCLUSION

The principle of a development of up to 350 dwellings on the site was established through
the granting of outline planning permission. This matter cannot therefore be revisited as
the number of dwellings proposed in this reserved matters application falls below the ceiling
number established by the outline consent. The density of development has been
increased in the amended scheme, with the quantum raising from 314 in the original
submission to 338 in the current proposal. Whilst below the ceiling number set at the
outline stage, the extent of the deficit in the revised scheme is considered not to be
sufficient to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposals.

The amended scheme is considered to have significantly improved the standards of design
and place making when compared to the original submission. The introduction of additional
apartment blocks has increased the scale of development on the Canal frontage. This
amendment, along with the creation of a landscaped buffer free of vehicle access on the
southern edge of the scheme has significantly improved the quality of the development that
presents itself to the watercourse and public views beyond.

Improvements to pedestrian connectivity through the scheme, via the installation of the link
from Ashton Hill Lane in the south western corner and clearer desire lines to the Canal
frontage from within the development have resulted in a more permeable and less vehicular
highway dominated proposal when compared to the original submission.

The concerns expressed by officers and local residents in relation to the ‘rat running’ of
vehicular traffic through the original proposal were noted and have been improved in the
revised scheme. It is acknowledged that there remains one relatively straight route through
the site between the accesses in the south eastern corner and on the western boundary.

However, the central section of this route would have single lane passing points at either
end with additional physical traffic calming measures installed within the intervening stretch
of highway. It is also the case that car parking spaces serving a number of the dwellings
are to be accessed immediately off both lanes of this road, with associated manoeuvring
acting as a further deterrent to speeding, particularly during peak times.

Page 69



16.6

16.7

17.

17.1

Ultimately, given the width of the southern portion of the site, the location of the access
points which were approved at the outline stage and the design requirement to create an
outward facing scheme that appropriately addresses the Canal that runs parallel with the
southern boundary, it is considered that an access route that spans the site from east-west
is required. The option of severing the highway is considered not to be desirable from
either a design or highway safety perspective, for the reasons explained in the main body of
this report.

Overall, the scale, layout, appearance and structural landscaping of the amended
proposals are considered to be acceptable and comply with the relevant national and local
planning policies quoted above.

RECOMMENDATION
Grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:-

1:1250 Site location plan (Drawing no. BHM104 LP01)

Proposed site layout plan (Drawing no. BHM104 PLO1 AD)

Proposed boundary treatment layout plan (Drawing no. BHM104 BTO01 C)
Proposed adoptable highway plan (Drawing no. BHM104 AHO1 A)
Proposed external materials plan (Drawing no. BHM104 MLO1 F)
Proposed landscaping layout plan Sheet 01 of 02 (Drawing 101 Rev. C)
Proposed landscaping layout plan Sheet 02 of 02 (Drawing 102 Rev. C)
Crime Impact Assessment (Versions 1.1 dated August 2020)

APT 1 (A567) APT2 (A648) & APT3 (A720) floor plans and elevations
Gosford housetype (PA34) plans and elevations

Easedale housetype (PT36) plans and elevations

Focal Braxton housetype (NB31) plans and elevations

Braxton housetype (NB31) plans and elevations

Trusdale housetype (NT41) plans and elevations

Cotham housetype (ND40) plans and elevations

Wensum apartments (W) plans and elevations

Lydford housetype (PA42) plans and elevations

Layton Chapleton Granton Blenheim apartments plans and elevations
Cartwright (CW4B) housetype plans and elevations

Joiner (JO2B) housetype plans and elevations

Tailor (TA3B) housetype plans and elevations

Thespian (TH3B) housetype plans and elevations

Baxter (BX3B) housetype plans and elevations

Mason (MA3B) housetype plans and elevations

Sawyer (SY3B) housetype plans and elevations

Farrier (FR4B) housetype plans and elevations

Single garage plans and elevations (Taylor Wimpey)

Substation plans and elevations (Taylor Wimpey)

Single garage plans and elevations (Bellway)

Double garage plans and elevations (Bellway)

Substation plans and elevations (Bellway)

2. The car parking spaces to serve each dwelling as part of the development hereby

approved shall be laid out as shown on the approved site plan (Drawing no. BHM104
PLO1 AD) prior to the first occupation of that dwelling and shall be retained free from
obstruction for their intended use thereafter. Driveways shall be constructed on a level

Page 70



which prevents displacement of materials or surface water onto the highway and shall
be retained as such thereafter.

The boundary treatments to be installed on each of the plots within the development
hereby approved shall be installed in accordance with the details as shown on
proposed boundary treatments layout plan (Drawing no. BHM104 BTO1 C) prior to the
occupation of that dwelling. The materials to be used in the construction of the
boundary treatments shall accord with those approved on the discharge of condition 5
of outline planning permission ref. 18/00487/OUT and the acoustic fencing shall accord
with the specification approved to discharge of condition 8 of this reserved matters
approval. The development shall be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, no development
above ground level shall commence until a scheme of soft landscaping to serve the
development hereby approved has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the following:-

- A scaled plan showing the location of all trees / hedges / shrubs to be planted.

- Details of the species mix, the number of specimens to the planted, spacing
between them and their height on planting (including trees to meet the definition of
heavy stock as set out in BS 3936-1 to be planted on the northern boundary of the
site).

The approved landscaping scheme shall be implemented and maintained in
accordance with the requirements of condition 5 of this planning permission.

The approved scheme of soft landscaping scheme detailed on the approved soft
landscaping plans shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before
the first occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme
agreed previously with the local planning authority. Any newly planted trees or plants
forming part of the approved scheme which, within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the planting, are removed, damaged, destroyed or die shall be replaced
in the next appropriate planting season with others of similar size and species.

The biodiversity enhancement measures to serve the development hereby approved
shall be installed in accordance with the details shown on the approved soft
landscaping plans (including the specification of the installations and their location
within the development), prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings. The
development shall be retained as such thereafter.

The development hereby approved shall be carried in accordance with the measures
listed in the Security Strategy (Section 7) of the Crime Impact Statement v 1.1 (dated
August 2020) submitted with the planning application and shall be retained as such
thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, no development
above ground level shall commence until details of the landscaping of the public open
space on the Canal frontage has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include:-

- Scaled plans showing the width of the footway running along the southern edge of
the development (as indicated on the approved site layout plan ref. BHM104 PLO1
AD) and details of the materials to be used in the surfacing of this footway.

- Details of any boundary treatments to be installed along the southern edge of this
footway.

Page 71



10.

11.

- Scaled section plans showing the relationship between the footway and the
adjacent Canal embankment, showing north-south sections at regular intervals
across the full width of the southern boundary of the site.

- Details of the exact location and the species to be planted along the full width of that
edge of the development.

- Scaled section plans through the south western corner of the site, from the road
level on Ashton Hill Lane, through to the ground level to the south of plot B56 (as
labelled on the approved site layout plan), scaled plans showing the width of the
footway running through this part of the site and details of the materials to be used
in the surfacing of this footway.

- Details of how the gradients and land level changes are to be treated to maintain a
highly accessible route.

- A phasing plan detailing the point in the building programme by which these works
shall be completed.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and
phasing programme and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Prior to the occupation of any of the plots identified as requiring treatment to the
elevations with noise mitigation measures (as identified in the approved Nose Impact
Assessment), the following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority:-

- A scaled plan showing the exact location of the elevations to be treated with the
particular noise mitigation measures.

- A manufacturer’s specification of the mitigation measures to be submitted and
approved, including acoustic fence.

The approved mitigation measures shall be installed in each of the affected plots prior
to the first occupation of that dwelling and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, prior to the commencement
of development above ground level, details of traffic calming measures to be installed
within the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include:-

- Scaled plans swing the exact locations in which the traffic calming measures are to
be installed.

- Scaled section plans showing the dimensions of each of the traffic calming
measures to be installed.

- Details of the construction materials and finish of the traffic calming measures to be
installed.

The traffic calming measures shall be installed in accordance with the approved details,
prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings and shall be retained as such
thereafter.

No development above ground level shall commence until a scheme relevant to
highway construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include full details of:-

1. Phasing plan of highway works.
2. Surface and drainage details of all carriageways and footways.

3. Details of the works to the reinstatement of redundant vehicle access points as
continuous footway to adoptable standards following the completion of the
construction phase.

Page 72



12.

4. Details of the specification of the access road and footway connection proposed to
extend the existing footway from Manchester Road, Ashton Hill Lane and
Williamson Lane into the site at the respective access points (including the provision
of tactile paving and dropped kerbs).

5. Approval in Principle (AIP) of the construction details of proposed retaining wall /
culverted watercourses within the site.

6. Details of the areas of the highway network within the site to be constructed to
adoptable standards and the specification of the construction of these areas.

7. Details of carriageway markings and signage.

No part of the approved development shall be occupied until the approved highways
works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details or phasing plan
and the development shall be retained as such thereatfter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, no development
above ground level shall commence until details of the materials to be used to surface
all areas of hardstanding within the development have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include scaled plans
showing the location of all areas of hardstanding within the development and a
specification of the materials to be used. The details shall indicate that paving will be
used to surface all car parking areas, private driveways and private roads (i.e. highways
that is not to be adopted) within the development. The approved scheme of hard
landscaping shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of any of the dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Note:

Do not scale from this drawing

All contractors must visit the site and be responsible for taking and
checking dimensions.

All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions
only.

Any discrepancies between drawings, specifications and site conditions
must be brought to the attention of the supervising officer.

This drawing is for planning purposes only. It is not intended to be used
for construction purposes. Whilst all reasonable efforts are used to
ensure drawings are accurate, Astle Planning and Design Ltd accept no
responsibility or liability for any reliance placed on, or use made of, this
plan by anyone for purposes other than those stated above.

1334918 AOYHZLId

ASHTON HILL LANH

——

The Site

W\

=S\

CR

201

———

g Path

=

Boro Const & Ward Bdy

Wi @

N

T
_II_\ =

Audenshaw Bridge

L

90k

OADWAY

9€

<

pdil Rl

OLL’SOL

-~ \

/

[/

90.9m

~
e

B

MANCHESTER ROAD, AUDENSHAW

Rev. [Date | Description [By [Chd

Client

Bellway Manchester /
Taylor Wimpey Manchester

Project

Land off Manchester Road
Audenshaw

Drawing Title

Proposed

Location Plan

Drawn by AE | Checked by MP | pate 11.12.2019
Status PLANNING | scae @ A2 1:1250
Job no. Dwg.no. Rev.

BHM104 LPO1

Astle Planning & Design Limited
The Steam Mill,

Steam Mill Street,

Chester,

CH3 5AN

01244 886644

www.astlepd.co.uk

© This drawing is the copyright of Astle Planning & Design Limited
and shall not be altered, copied, photographed or reproduced in any
way without the written authority of Astle Planning & Design Limited.




This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 20/00105/REM

Photo 1 — view looking southwards along Ashton Hill Lane adjacent to
the western boundary of the site.

Photo 2 — view looking northwards along the western boundary of the
site on Ashton Hill Lane

Page 77



Photo 3 -view of the eastern boundary from within the site

Photo 4 -view of Ashton Canal which runs parallel with the southern
boundary of the site

Page 78



Photo 5 — view of properties to the north of the site (located on Willow
Fold) from within the site

Photo 6 — view looking eastwards towards adjacent rugby ground to the
east of the site

Page 79



Photo 7 - view of existing access onto Williamson Lane from within the
site

LN E T

Page 80



MANGHESTER ROAD
AUDENSHAW

HOUSETYPE RANGE

RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION
AUGUST 2020

Bellway



Droylsden
Independent

Evangelical

Woodford
Court

133418 AOHZLId

ASHTON HILL LANE

B4z  B141 'B140 ‘8136

8130 813 B132
£l

4 oee

o o e

Towing Path

-CANAL FRONTAGE

Sports Ground




£g abed

Ground Floor

Layton 531 sq.ft /Chapleton 613 sq.ft/ Granton 619 sg.ft/ Blenheim 625 sq.ft

Sialrcore1

\
\.

IIIIIM llllll <

== ._




8 abed

First Floor

Layton 531 sq.ft /Chapleton 613 sq.ft/ Granton 619 sg.ft/ Blenheim 625 sq.ft




Gg abed

Second Floor

Layton 531 sq.ft /Chapleton 613 sq.ft/ Granton 619 sg.ft/ Blenheim 625 sq.ft




025 sq.it

Im

ft/ Blenhei

ft /Ghapleton 613 sq.ft/ Granton 619 sq.

Layton 531 sq

: :_"w_“ “w
.

ﬂ._..

nEhA; __h_.

iz
"
il %_“ﬁm

ﬂ___ um.. .__* I

i

I 1_..4““_ i “ _.m"__““ w_“w__
il
gttt

TR _“ ___“w
il ___“____%__,“ b
i .__m__ ﬁ

i ._“_m““__% ?._
_w.“hm__mm__

i
i

i
LR __ b
t

HHHRIH
i

I
i _ﬂn i
mm—_.m_ ._m_m_u___ i

A
::_“r J
i

m_

o

it
ﬁmw

o

HH
i

ion

_Mm“_.:,
il

Front Elevat

N-_____ i
g

Page 86

it e

ity HHHHHHHO
i _____ i it

i mumm—q_—_ A58

jifl
i

i
.

Hi
.

i

YT i
..1 3 w&m f
o
i
___“__M____“&_ i
F
iy

iiht]

el

..~__ﬂw__

H _,“ 1
.

i

i

panaane
il

H i

m.___“_ﬁ 1}

ik

i
gl el
EiLEg bR

L
_m“__.__“___“. {ailih

_m__m__v_ i i
.

it
T

i

5m

H § IF
i

it
M"__m_w__mm._._w_m_“__ww__

Rear Elevation



Layton 581 sq.ft /Ghapleton 613 sq.ft/ Granton 619 sq.ft/ Blenheim 625 sq.ft

de Elevation

S

Page 87

5m




8g abed

Ground Floor

Second Floor

"‘51\
alng

Fol I b ‘l-
>] ~

First Floor

X
]

‘-rl

IR0

g

==

N |

. [ —
><] .




68 abed

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

Layton 531 sq.ft / Blenheim 625 sq.ft

lae Elevation

Side Elevation 110000 1 2 3 5m



Front Elevation

Ground Floor

Rear Elevation

Cartwright (CW4B) 1223 sq.ft

First Floor

Side Elevation

|
S T g pEvae 0
ﬁ%howar _ : ] : | Sh0welr‘
‘Bedd - ' ~. Bed 4
/ Landing | Landing \n
e =
r'—::1 : r::—1
L __ L o ﬂ
Second Floor
1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



B

Woodford
Court

Droylsden
Independent
Evangelical

Sports Ground

133418 AOHZLId

ASHTON HILL LANE

BT e

%
LERCLUS T1Seriar Tisa T ase ||ﬂ1l‘1"¢l TIEX TIGATIEE TI6E THH i‘.n
| | s I

Towing Path




Joiner (JO2B) 680 sq.ft

9'? First Floor Front Elevation Side Elevation
Q
1)
©
N

Ground Floor Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



€6 obed

First Floor

Ground Floor

Joiner (JO2B) 680 sq.ft

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Joiner (JO2B) 680 sq.ft

Page 94

5m

0

1:100



G6 obed

First Floor

Ground Floor

Joiner (JO2B) 680 sq.ft

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Joiner (JO2B) 680 sq.ft

Page 96

5m

0

1:100



/6 abed

Tailor (TA3B) 302 sq.ft

First Floor Front Elevation Side Elevation

=1

Ground Floor Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



86 abed

Kitchen

First Floor

Hall

Thespian (TH3B)/ Tailor (TA3B) 921/302 sq.ft

M HLTHHHA M

Front Elevation Front Elevation

[ | 111 | | 1

Side Elevation

Rear Elevation

1100 0 1 2 3 5m



66 abed

First Floor

Ground Floor

Front Elevation

Thespian (TH3B) 921 sq.it

Rear Elevation

Side Elevation

Side Elevation

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



00T abed

Baxter (BX3B) 991 st

ront elevation lae cievation

Ground Floor ' Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Mason (MA3B) 1059 sq.it

First Floor Front Elevation Side Elevation

TOT abed

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

Ground Floor

1100 O 1 2 3 5m



Sawyer (SY3B) 1092 sq.ft

First Floor Front Elevation Side Elevation

Family *
B \\ ; /f "
Af
1
wc

20T abed

e

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

Ground Floor

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



€0T abed

Farrier (FR4B) 1165 sq ft

Front Elevation Side Elevation
First Floor

;
Garagef;’

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

Ground Floor

1100 O 1 2 3 5m



Substation

~
7 4040 Py

3815

Front Elevation Side Elevation Rear Elevation

0T abed

1100 O 1 2 3 5m



6515 90-[ GBEd

Single Gara

1 34775

Front Elevation Side Elevation

internal clear depth

3047.5
internal clear width

2274 over door aperture

Floor Plan - Scale 1:50

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1100 O 1 2 3 5m

€




Double Garage

6740

N

Side Elevation

Front Elevation

Ldap Jes|o [eulalul

G809

Page 106

internal clear width

e isc]

Bt

50

Floor Plan - Scale 1

Side Elevation

Rear Elevation

5m

0

1:100



MANGHESTER ROAD
AUDENSHAW

HOUSETYPE RANGE

RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION
AUGUST 2020

Taylor
Wimpey



4 (4¢€
Droylsden
Independent Woodford
Evangelical Court

Church

Sports Ground

13341S AOHZLI4

ASHTON HILL LANE

el 5Y

il
T =

Bi16 BT

Loy L

Towing Path

-CANAL FRONTAGE




60T abed

APT 1 (A567) 56/ sq.it/APT 2 (A648) 643 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) /20 sq.ft

LN LOUNGE
—

ENTRANCE LOBBY I
—f ©AT

I

I

I AN
[l ¢
@ HALL

i
I SERVICES |
e I H

I”I LOUNGE

|
-
|

e NIV A
([ KITCHEN G
) ‘ BATH
| [oYe]
1 =)

CORRIDOR

e

w f MI

Y & KITCHEN

| EN-SUITE f
\ >

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



OTT obed

APT 1 (A567) 56/ sq.it/APT 2 (A648) 643 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) /20 sq.ft

!rmj% .
el [
e

! . i -
i F\ /7

] — — e 1= - |H|
| E— il

KITCHEN

LOUNGE

-

I“ W KITCHEN
=

) =

. EN-SUITE ¢/
‘| LOUNGE | //<
5 LY i
H LOUNGE
BED | BED 2
— . —
e —

FIRST FLOOR PLAN



TTT abed

APT 1 (A567) 567 Sq./t/APT 2

il

(A648) 646 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) /20 sq ft

o R

!!74‘ P I ‘ I
B E@ 1

‘ KITCHEN
% N

.
el
Xie

- EN-SUITE
\ "

SECOND FLOOR PLAN




APT 1 (A567) 567 sq.ft/APT 2 (A648) 648 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) 720 sqft

Page 112

5m

0

1:100



APT 1 (A567) 567 sq.ft/APT 2 (A648) 648 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) 720 sqft

Page 113

=i

iyl

111

L

T

5m

0

1:100



APT 1 (A567) 567 sq.ft/APT 2 (A648) 648 sq.ft /APT 3 (A720) 720 sqft

B R S = L,

O
m
5
“.F.._
1wl
o

SIDE ELEVATION

Page 114

5m

0

1:100



Droylsden
Independent
Evangelical

Woodford
Court

13341S AOHZLI4

ASHTON HILL LANE

iF
=
L SEL Bt
T =

B143 Bidz | B141 B140 B39

Bi16 B117

B120 B130 B3t Bi1:2

—

HE

Blog. | B1OY

i
E06

LN L LU J

LR )

Towing Path

-GREEN FRINGE

Sports Ground




Gosford (PA34) 8606 sq.ft

FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

A
Q 5222 y
@
H
=
(@)
gicHey FR ke ([T R 2 3Z20W 200 0B —e——cre——cr  e—es—ss———r— A
"DINING Bl ' DINING |
®]
o
o]
[43]

Al

GROUND FLOOR PLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



/TT abed

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

LOUNGE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

1:100

0

Easedale (PT36) 931 sq.ft

5m



10807

87T obed

2000

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Gosford (PA34)/ Easedale (PT36) 560 sq.ft/ 931 sq.ft

FRONT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

T

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



61T abed

9000

Gosford (PA34)/ Easedale (PT36) 866 sq.ft/ 931 sq.ft

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

| KITCHEN <A



Gosford (PA34)/ Easedale (PT36) 560 sq.ft/ 931 sq.ft

FRONT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

02T abed

m
TTITIIIT
@

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



9440

)

*

DINING

KITCHEN ==

*x

Braxton (NB31) 1092 sq ft

DINING

GROUND FLOOR FLAN

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

Y ]
oHEE
REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
|
_______ o
s EN-SUITE
_____ S (T
BED | BED |
Q= I
| | | [
— | I | (| —

1100 0 1 2 3 5m



Trusdale (NT41) 1243 sqt

—
\ _\LAN DING
- Y
L
ST/
CyL

BED 3

ST/

FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

2cT abed

10003

6740

KITCHEN/DINING [

EJ
GROUND FLOOR PLAN

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Cotham (ND40) 1259 sq.ft

BED 2 @ED 4

% BATH
. O I:I ............
LANDING
[] =) € ——
D BFR.9 STIW é
O ENSU(TE %
B%D | D f' %
O D EE —é
- FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
&
D 9215
HA
N
w

KITCHEN 2

10227

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR
PLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Y
Droylsden
Independent Woodford
Evangelical Court
Church

Sports Ground

13341S AOHZLI4

ASHTON HILL LANE

B8 B10T B105

o0 S
e

Ashton Cangy

Towing Path

HILL/WILLIAMS




GeT abed

Wensum (W) 660 sq.ft

7 w w D
[ i BED | BED | i ]
LOUNGE [ Wl W ] oUNGE
| |
I /|
——~——| PLOT 140 ‘ ¥ ‘ PLOT 141 | |
APT.O3 HALL HALL APT.O4

@ ST LOBBY ST @

v hl —
o O <
p— -1 b r— -
Q BED v : Q
KITCHEN | BEp2 v BED 2| KITCHEN
R | 0 | 7
] /1\ BATH W } } W BATH PN
| |
| |

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

KITCHEN ) % KITCHEN

PLOT 139
APT.02 [M—

LOUNGE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



o¢T obed

4

LOUNGE (

KITCHEN

APT.O5

=
DOWN

BED |

|
i
| BED |
W
|
|
|
|
H\
HALL
ST LOBBY
D)
Wl
-1 O
1 v
| 5
BATH W } BED 2
|
|
|
VVOID

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

BED 2

PLOT 143 |

APT.O6

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

Wensum (W) 660 sq.it

1:100

0

5m



Wensum (W) 660 sq.ft

REAR ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Gosford (PA34)/ Easedale (PT36) 560 sq.ft/ 931 sq.ft

P ]
I: 1]
BED 2J D w e
BED 3 D % E
0 ®
— g
BATH (& . % ,E
> ]
I BED | J D E —ID g
EN-SUTE D @ [ [] E‘i
. |
- FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION
(8 w | 0807 L
D = #
H
&
=1
]
@

HALL

2000

b@W
N
b Y
A
<G
r\ -
s
A
L3S
ST
E

LOUMNGE m
= [e]%]

G 11
2
HALL g’ Z
B = =2 =
GROUND FLOOR PLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Braxton (NB31) 1092 sq ft

T FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
&
D
H
N
©
o |
DINING o DINING
KITCHEN KITCHEN
: EN-SUITE
; s
= BED |
—
LOUNGE LOUNGE _r"
|
F—
——
—
) |
K — |

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND FLOOR PLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Trusdale (NT41) 1243 sqt

“‘I‘{ﬂ_ﬁ!‘[ HH

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

10003

¢
*

6740

GROUND FLOOR. PLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



=]

BED 2
BATH

D C)?:ED 4
O ]
]
o LANDING
D ST/
- CcYL
D BER'S STW
O ENSIATE
BED |
- |
- FIRST FLOOR PLAN
QD
«Q
D . 9215 L
H/I A
w
|_\

GROUND FLOOR
PLAN

LOUNGE

10227

REAR ELEVATION

Cotham (ND40) 1259 sq.ft

I~

[T T Iq'

SIDE ELEVATION

=@ :
[

SIDE ELEVATION

o 1 2 3 5m



4 (44}@
Droylsden
Independent Woodford
Evangelical Court
Church

Sports Ground

13341S AOHZLI4

ASHTON HILL LANE

05
SEYL BEYL
g i

Bi16 B117

o mis iz Eo

B BB B3 RS R ROT B3R “H m|_| a:1|-| |z|_| n-|- BT

Towing Path




ceT obed

2000

IIII' _____qlllll______

BED 3

=
)

L L]
L]

L ]

— Zilla: SERNI —
_ ; | S
§'|'I NORE o BaTH o DE — I]"é
—| > CIe (IE
— | BED |J L BED =
EN-SI{TE D D =
) ) e - - @ I

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

5222

I
7

FRONT ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

I

Gosford (PA34) 8606 sq.ft

5m



Easedale (PT36) 931 sq.ft

FIRST FLOOR PLAN FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

y£T abed

||||||||||||||||||||

—

GROUND FLOOR FLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Gosford (PA34)/ Easedale (PT36) 560 sq.ft/ 931 sq.ft

FRONT ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION

10807

GET abed

2000

GROUND FLOOR FLAN REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION



Braxton (NB31) 1092 sq ft

FRONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION

4775

e Pl
DINING s DINING

KITCHEN KITCHEN

9440

LOUNGE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR FPLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Focal Braxton (NB31) 1092 sq.ft

|
- RONT ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
&
@
=
w
\l
L 4775 y
DINING = B DINING
KITCHEN KITCHEN
=
LOUNGE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



8¢T oabed

10000

BED E

LANDING

BED JJ D
]
O

BED\IA:

L L]

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

c030

OO!
[o]e)

KITCHEN

s
PR

Feid
1 My

uTiumY

HALL

LOUNGE |m

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

Lydford (PA42) 1099 sq ft

5m



6740

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

10003

*

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

*x

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

Trusdale (NT41) 1243 sqt

SIDE ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



BED 2

L]

LI

(BED 3

BATH

LANDING

ST/
C¥YL

ENSLHTE

ED 4

STIW

[ L]

GROUND FLOOR
PLAN

LOUNGE

10227

FRONT ELEVATION

Cotham (ND40) 1259 sq.ft

IS

SIDE ELEVATION

A

AR

? [ H | | [I ‘ ' ” | ' M ‘ ’ AR

REAR ELEVATION

I

T O e T T T T T

SIDE ELEVATION

1:100 0 1 2 3 5m



Substation

~
7 4040 Py

3815

Front Elevation Side Elevation Rear Elevation

T T abed

1100 O 1 2 3 5m



Single Garage

Front Elevation Side Elevation

Personnel 3§?£J3°ha§ﬁ%'}ni§ subject to Personnel door location is subject to

garage handing

Personnel door location is subject to
garage handing

Floor Plan - Scale 1:50

Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1100 O 1 2 3 5m



£ 2

S 2

Core Range

CwW4B Cartwright
FA 4B Farrier
SY 4B Sawyer
MA 3B Mason
BX 3B Baxter
TH 3B Thespian
TA 3B Tailor

JO 2B Joiner

BL Blenheim
LA Layton
CH Chapleton
GR Granton
Grand Total:

Bed &
Type

4 Bed Semi

4 Bed Detached
3 Bed Detached
3 Bed Detached
3 Bed Detached
3 Bed Detached

3 Bed
Det/Semi/mews

2 Bed Mews

2 Bed Apartment
2 Bed Apartment
2 Bed Apartment
2 Bed Apartment

Storey

W W W w N

Unit
No's

21
45

16
20
10

171 Units

1223 14676
M71 9368
1002 4368
1059 10590 |
91 6937
91 19341
802 36090 |/
680 10880
625 12500
581 5810
613 5517
619 5571
141648 ft> o

ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE - BELLWAY :

ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE - TW

Grand Total:

Core Range

ND40 Coltham
NT41 Trusdale
PA42 Lydford
PA34 Gosford
NB31 Braxton
PT36 Easedale
A567 Apt 1
AB48 Apt2
AT720 Apt3

W Wensum

4 Bed Detached

4 Bed Detached

4 Bed Detached

3 Bed Semi/ Mews
3 Bed Semi

3 Bed Semi/ Mews
2 Bed Apartment
2 Bed Apartment

2 Bed Apartment

1 Bed Apt

10

35
58
12
18

1259 7554
1243 12430
1099 4396 |
866 30310
1002 63336
931 11172
567 10206
648 5832 H
720 6480 |
65 3936

155652 ft?

Rip

ASHTON HILL LANE

)

8v

REE
B & ol
X% B¢ B119
¥ |o Sle | B120
P =8
¥ o Sl | B121
B sl 4
T |
[ —‘ |
o oy B
B S|
S B123
S ;g B124
——————

Droylsde:r'i%%j |
Independent |

Evangelical |
Church |

f

13341S AOYHZ1I

|
\
h
\/

SV
4¢c 0

B121 | 5143 ST

}B142i

P141 iB14O

o ddO EX
€Y

#139

i [0S 3V
gevL ez azofl 8z0

[ T [ [
LfJ | L1 | | \L‘ | \L | \L}

I B141 :B140 'B139

Woodford
Court

Alconbury
. Court

B152

B153

M ]/ 0 4]

| PA34(0)

[

— T3 |

|

PA34 (4)

[ ‘
1B157 | B158 B160 |
, :-[sDG ‘

¢ L ‘
| —
ﬁ | F&T B159 :

B162

/ " R ‘ N R
op TA3BTTA-38 | | [ TA-3B" TA3B |
// AS  OPP “ AS| OPP |
|
1 ] B159 MA 38 |
|
E3jry ] “ [
i ! ! |
B155} o 156} 3157} OPP | E 2
__ I_ - I i
/
o
_ N
I 2l LN N
m o N
™ o
ddo | | [|E P b
B116 dd0 sv B117 |
a6 YIN g6V ge-vL }
! T } T | T ‘
I'm' | |
\ \ \ |
B115 | B116 | B117 | B118 N
\ \ \
| | |
P \,‘7,,,,L,,T,,,4,,

ge-vl ge-vl

(v) opan

31
T140} Y8 ‘(:/-\]) ,§31@)

©) 151N

I
~

|
(VPu0) zpyg [ T134] _

| (0)ovay |

T125::T126 @31&4)

NT41 ()

I
B%O B1}8 81%

Bioe 3 & | 104 |
| ’<£ % B104
[——————— o o oo

@ <
<C B ]
B103 | = B103

NT41 (o)

N

2

(O) LmN

T74 [ 18314
IS

O
%

T76

i

9
i
T

[PA34 (mig

PA34 () |

NT41 (0)

T65

T62

T61
79 |
78

77 |

B8
B7

| B6

| B5

A
W

B3
|
T T TN
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 # 000
S 5 e e i o i s e B s [ B It e s %\3’?@@
| I I | I | | | | <
3 BSF 8%1 B:{o B%Q B%a 3%7 B%G Bz% & B1‘9 31‘7 B1‘5 1 B% 571%”1%8“5% T1%0 161 :T162‘T163‘T164:T165 T166 T167 o
| | | | | | | | | | | |
i T ) B2 \
| | A\
% \ } \ 3 0
% B24 | B23 | B22 | B21 ’
| } | B171 q
\ \ T156-T167 \
- |
B25-B36 ‘ + 13 } 4 | B15-B20 B9-B14 5 , \
CW4B | / \ N \&@
} ; > ol /N T82 N &2 <
| X
OPP
CW4B 8] | [cw4B  cwa4B] | [cwaB 8] | [cw4B B] || s7.848 : .
OO Oad OO | Oad OO Oad OO | Oad -
075775575577 M W 7007507507720770772577057557/4577/47;
i [ 74 _
- AN NSRS . 4y
- W0 0000000000007, %
s~ Ea N\ P ey B e R e e ——— T TS | .~ T97-T108
\ i T85-T96
‘: Towing Path
“‘ — — — L* 7'7 ! L S | L \
“ | | I
: — = _— N
| N
| [= - — — — — — — \:\ \
|| R : | | | |
1 3 : \ || | L 1
| | | | | B | | |
| \ 0 \ | | | -
A . | e | | Warehouse |
| |\ || R L L |
— | R || | | | |
| ‘\ | : | | \ ,
. \ : : \ \
| | | | | | ‘ N\

Sports Ground

References.

Highways - Approved Access location in
accordance with David Tucker Associates drg ref:

17006-01 Rev B

OS Plan - Licence no. 100022432

Topographical Survey - Ashton Hill Road,
Droylsden P&T - from George 26-09-19

Red Edge Boundary - In accordance Outline
Location Plan / Corstorphine + Wright drg ref:

17789-300

Note:

Do not scale from this drawing
All contractors must visit the site and be responsible for
taking and checking dimensions.
All construction information should be taken from figured
dimensions only.
Any discrepancies between drawings, specifications and site
conditions must be brought to the attention of the
supervising officer.

This drawing is for planning purposes only. It is not intended
to be used for construction purposes. Whilst all reasonable

efforts are used to ensure drawings are accurate, Astle
Planning and Design Ltd accept no responsibility or liability
for any reliance placed on, or use made of, this plan by
anyone for purposes other than those stated above.

Proposed Layout Key

Reserved Matters Boundary in accordance with
= e mmmm - OQutline location Plan / Corstorphine & Wright dwg
red: 17789-300

18 Plot Number

Denotes Existing Buildings

Proposed Shared Private Drives. For details refer
to hardstanding layout for specification

Proposd adoptable highway to approved LA
specification. Refer to hardstanding layout and
engineering drawings for specification

Trees to be removed all details TBC

| Single Garage - TW

Proposed indicative soft landscaping & tree
planting (refer to landscaping design for further
details)

Denotes Access Points (Front & Rear) - Taylor
Wimpey

Denotes Access Points (Front) - Bellway Homes

Denotes Access Points (Rear) - Bellway Homes

Denotes existing trees to be removed

Approved Access Location, see references below

Approved Access Location, see references below

Emergency Access & De-mountable bollards

Alignment of Gas Main with 6m easement taken

\ from drawing TM.US20 A

Alignment of existing Combined Sewer with 6m
easement taken from drawing TM.US20 A

Proposed Sub Station

: Slope Stability line extracted from drawing E3P
engineering drawing

Private bin storage area

Feature Plot

\
182 Vehicle charge point
AD |01.09.20 |Roads amended adjacent plots B129 & B143, Plot B129 RH |MP
handed
AC 120.08.20 |B57-70 Amended MP  |MP
AB  [16.08.20 | General minor updates to paths and walls etc MP |MP

AA  [14.08.20 |Plots T143-147 changed to NB31, existing wall added around |MP |MP
plots T150-T155, Bin store in apartments T96-T107 amended
and car parking bays removed from vista along road adj.

apartments, private driveway amended adj. plots T123-T124,
existing trees illustrated to site frontage on Manchester Road.

z 12.08.20 | Amended to reflect highway comments MP  |MP
Y 31.07.20 | Amendments to TW Parcel MP  |MP
X 28.07.20 | Parking arrangement to Cartwrights amended MP |MP
w 23.07.20 | Amended to clients comments RH |MP
\ 15.07.20  |Replan to planners comments MP  |MP
U 24.06.20  |Minor amendments MP  |MP
T 19.06.20 |Replan MP  |MP
S 12.06.20 | Amending to planning comments MP  |MP
R 26.05.20 | Overall numbers increased MP |MP
Q 03.04.2020 |Road hierarchy revised across the development, plots 5-9 & AE |MP
138/ 139 revised to address numbers of plots off a shared
drive, plot 46 handed, canal road frontage reconfigured, parking
courtyard to plots 206-217 revised.
P 24.03.2020 | Parking courts amended TW RH |MP
N 18.03.2020 | Sub Station moved, charging points shown, Mason type handed|[RH | MP
M 16.03.2020 | Sub Station moved, Turning heads amended, bin stores to RH |MP
apartments amended
L 05.02.2020 |Mix updated to show Wensum as 2 bed RH |MP
K 31.01.2020 |Key amended RH |MP
J 30.01.2020 | TW Apartment footprints updated MP |MP
H 23.01.2020 | Feature plots indicated, apartment block footprints updated RH |MP
G 22.01.2020 |Easement corrected on new road drawing, plots 145-148 RH |MP

moved back in line with footpath
F 13.01.2020 | Plots 46 + 126 handed, General Access paths / Landscape MP |MP

strips revised to numerous plots, personal Door/Access added
to detached garages

E 09.01.2020 |Plots 145-154 amended and paths to plots 40-42 amended MP  |MP
following meeting

MANCHESTER ROAD, AUDENSHAW

1500 0 5 10 15

25m

N —

D 13.12.2019 |Revised services information taken from drawing TWM.US.20A |MP |MP
added to the layout and plots 1, 2, 3, 271 and 263 amended to
take account of this revised alignment
C 12.12.2019 | Affordables amended RH |MP
B 12.12.2019 |Plots 1-6 amended AE |RH
A 10.12.2019 |Issued for Planning AE |MP
Rev. |Date Description By |Chd
Client

Bellway Manchester
Taylor Wimpey Manchester

Project

Land off Manchester Road
Audenshaw

Drawing Title

Proposed Overall
Planning Layout

Drawn by AE | Checked by MP | Date 10.12.2019
Status PLANNING | scale @ A0 1:500
Job no. Dwg.no. Rev.

BHM104 PLO1 | AD

Astle Planning & Design
Limited
The Steam Mill,
Steam Mill Street,
Chester,

CH3 5AN

01244 886644

info@astlepd.co.uk
www.astlepd.co.uk

©This drawing is the copyright of Astle Planning & Design
Limited and shall not be altered, copied, photographed or
reproduced in any way without the written authority of
Astle Planning & Design Limited.



AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Astle Planning & Design Limited The Steam Mill, Steam Mill Street, Chester, CH3 5AN 01244 886644 info@astlepd.co.uk www.astlepd.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
a r c h i t e c t u r e

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
m a s t e r p l a n n i n g

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
u r b a n   d e s i g n

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Note: Do not scale from this drawing All contractors must visit the site and be responsible for taking and checking dimensions. All construction information should be taken from figured dimensions only. Any discrepancies between drawings, specifications and site conditions must be brought to the attention of the supervising officer. This drawing is for planning purposes only. It is not intended to be used for construction purposes. Whilst all reasonable efforts are used to ensure drawings are accurate, Astle Planning and Design Ltd accept no responsibility or liability for any reliance placed on, or use made of, this plan by anyone for purposes other than those stated above.

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
This drawing is the copyright of Astle Planning & Design Limited and shall not be altered, copied, photographed or reproduced in any way without the written authority of Astle Planning & Design Limited.


This page is intentionally left blank



STREET SCENE A-A riois 857-868 B55-849, B37-B48 B25-836, B24-B21 & B15-20

w
3
-
=
ae
Z
o
=
g
w)
<

STREET SCENE B-B riois 50514, T156-167 T123-T124. T97-108, T85-T96

-892, B33, B3

B107

)

STREET SCENE C-GC rotssi0s

132, 132-136

1128

STREET SCENE D D Plots B105,

STREET SCENE E-E rois 15111 120132

ILLUSTRATIVE STREET SCENES SECTIONS

MANCHESTER ROAD
AUDENSHAW

200@A0

1

BHM104 SS03 September 2020

Drawing Number



f ke bl | Q32 N
21 921 19341 . 9 ] :
45 802 36090
16 680 10880
20 625 12500
10 581 5810
9 613 5517
9 619 5571

Independent WosHfeid
Evangelical H Court

6 1250 7554 Church

10 1243 12430

4 1009 439

35 866 30310

58 1092 63336

12 g 11172

18 567 10206

4 648 o832

: 70 6480

f 65 3936

=S 1 to 38
v e
53 - F3 Droylsden

17789-300

Sports Ground

B
- ENE Wam
—rma

e
I
¥

/]
Z
)
2 +
> 3
T
=
@
|_

B143 | B142 | B141 'B140 'B139 | |

B112

E115 B116

|
| [
| — B129 | B130 | B13f
L I 506 Bi10& | B107
g giio |1
«Q e
D — e N |
IE il Bi09 Ema-.r“gﬂ
o TH3B B109 | - '
e HEs : AS '
- : ” 4 7- : #- . | {I— - l
‘ost L2
WAY
&n : ,

7 A/ e y | Bl

o

B3 B35 B34

B32 B3 B30 B29 Ba BI7 B26 B2 [

Towing Path

BE20 B14 Bi8 B14 Bi2 B10

[T161 T162 T163 T164T165 T166 T167 :
_11

—_‘ B19 B17 B15 A‘ B13 B11 BY

R P 7_.-'.--.7-,.-?",-"',
757 L
s R s s Lzt
- A A sy

s S

LT

e
¥

ILLUSTRATIVE STREET SCENES SECTIONS

1:200@A0

MANCHESTER ROAD
AUDENSHAW

Drawing Number: BHM104 SS03 September 2020




Agenda Item 6.b)

Application Number: 20/00559/FUL

Proposal: Conversion of existing two storey workshop building to form two
dwelling houses, demolition of existing single storey workshop
building and erection of two single storey bungalows with associated
works including car parking.

Site: 218 Audenshaw Road, Audenshaw, M34 5QR

Applicant: Mr D Ross

Recommendation: Grant planning permission subject to conditions.

Reason for report: A Speakers Panel decision is required because one of the objectors

to the application has requested to address the Panel meeting and,
in accordance with the Panel's Terms of Reference, to authorise the
utilisation of the Private Street Work Code for the making up of
Eastwood Street, a private street, to enable development to take
place.

1. APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

11 The applicant seeks full planning permission for the conversion of the existing two storey
workshop building to form two dwelling houses and the erection of two single storey
bungalows following the demolition of existing single storey workshop building. The
proposals also include associated works including the provision of car parking.

1.2 The scheme has been amended to reduce the number of dwellings by two, with the original
scheme proposing to replace the existing single storey workshop with four bungalows. The
proposals include the erection of a relatively narrow 1.5 storey lean-to extension on the
southern elevation of the mill as part of the conversion of that building.

1.3 The mix of the dwellings in the proposed scheme would be as follows:-

2 x 2 bed single storey bungalows
2 x 3 bed 2 storey houses

1.4 The following documents have been submitted in support of the planning application:-

- Planning Statement

- Development Financial Appraisal

- Contaminated land screening report (including reference to coal mining legacy)
- Preliminary Bat Report

- Bat Presence Survey

- Noise Impact Assessment

2. SITE & SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The application relates to a former builders yard, which currently stands vacant, accessed
via Eastwood Street in the south western corner of the site. There is an existing bungalow
adjacent to the southern boundary of the site, which fronts on to Audenshaw Road and is
owned by the applicant. Neighbouring properties on High Ash Grove back on to the north
western boundary of the site. The southern gable of a terrace of 5 properties faces the
northern boundary of the application site. The eastern gable of a terrace of units that front

Page 147



2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

onto Audenshaw Road face the south eastern corner of the site, separated from the site
boundary by Eastwood Street.

A two storey building of brick elevations and a slate tiled is located in the eastern portion of
the land, backing on to that boundary of the site. More modern and lighter weight single
storey structures extend from the northern elevation of that building and run along the rear
(northern) boundary of the site. The remaining area of the site is covered by hardstanding.
Land levels on the site and adjacent neighbouring properties are relatively flat. The railway
line runs adjacent to the eastern boundary of the land, with established trees lining that
edge of the site.

PLANNING HISTORY

None relevant to the determination of this planning application.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Allocation
No specific allocation, located within the settlement of Audenshaw.

Part 1 Policies

1.3: Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment

1.4: Providing More Choice and Quality Homes

1.5: Following the Principles of Sustainable Development
1.6: Securing Urban Regeneration

1.10: Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment
1.11 Conserving Built Heritage and Retaining Local Identity
1.12: Ensuring an Accessible, Safe and Healthy Environment

Part 2 Policies

E3: Established Employment Areas

C1: Townscape and Urban Form

H2: Unallocated Sites (for housing)

H4: Type, size and affordability of dwellings
H5: Open Space Provision

H6: Education and Community Facilities
H7: Mixed Use and Density

H10: Detailed Design of Housing Developments
MW11: Contaminated Land

MW12: Control of Pollution

MW 14 Air Quality

N3: Nature Conservation Factors

N4 Trees and Woodland

N5: Trees Within Development Sites

N7: Protected Species

OL7: Potential of Water Areas

OL10: Landscape Quality and Character
T1: Highway Improvement and Traffic Management
T10: Parking

T11: Travel Plans

U3: Water Services for Developments

U4 Flood Prevention U5 Energy Efficiency

Page 148



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Other Policies
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Publication Draft October 2018.

The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has consulted on the draft Greater
Manchester Spatial Framework Draft 2019 (“GMSF”) which shows possible land use
allocations and decision making polices across the region up to 2038. The document is a
material consideration but the weight afforded to it is limited by the fact it is at an early
stage in its preparation which is subject to unresolved objections.

Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

Employment Land SPD adopted January 2009

Trees and Landscaping on Development Sites SPD adopted in March 2007
Tameside Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study (2010)

Tameside Council Playing Pitch Strategy 2015

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2: Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 5: Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 8: Promoting healthy and safe communities

Section 11: Making Effective use of Land

Section 12: Achieving well-designed places

Section 15: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning
guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning
Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the
PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued and a notice displayed adjacent to the site for 21
days, in accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and the Council’'s adopted
Statement of Community Involvement.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

Borough Environmental Health Officer (EHO) — no objections to the proposals, subject to
the imposition of conditions securing details of the specific measures to be installed within
the buildings to mitigate against the impact of external noise sources and limiting the hours
of work during the construction phase of the development.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) — no objections to the proposals or the
conclusion of the Bat Survey submitted with the planning application. Conditions requiring
details of the soft landscaping and external lighting schemes and the biodiversity
enhancements to be installed to be submitted and approved are recommended, along with
an informative outlining the developer’s responsibilities with regards to protected species.

Local Highway Authority — no objections to the amended proposals following amendments
to the scheme. Conditions are recommended in relation to the following:-

Page 149



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

7.1

- The submission of a condition survey of the highway prior to the commencement of
development.

- The submission of a Construction Environment Management Plan prior to the
commencement of development.

- The submission of an external lighting scheme.

- Stipulating the visibility splays to be retained free from obstruction in both directions
from the vehicular access.

- The provision of secured cycle storage.

- The laying out of the parking spaces shown on the submitted plans prior to the
occupation of the dwellings.

The developer will need to enter into a Section 204 Agreement, under the Highways Act
1980, with respect to the construction and adoption of the approved highway/s and/or
junction/s. This requirement should be included as part of any decision by the Speakers
Panel to grant planning permission.

United Utilities - no objections to the proposals subject to the imposition of conditions
requiring surface and foul water to be drained from the site via different mechanisms and
the submission and approval of a sustainable surface water drainage strategy prior to the
commencement of development. United Utilities advises that a large diameter pressurised
trunk main crosses the site. As United Utilities need unrestricted access for operating and
maintaining it, we will not permit development over or in close proximity to the main. (NB
the applicant has been made aware of this issue).

Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) — request further information in relation to a surface
water drainage strategy for the development, prior to the determination of the application.

Borough Contaminated Land Officer - no objections to the proposals subject to the
imposition of a condition requiring an intrusive investigation into potential sources of ground
contamination of the site and the approval of a remediation strategy prior to the
commencement of development.

Borough Tree Officer — no objections to the proposals. Specific details of the soft
landscaping scheme to serve the development should be secured by condition.

Coal Authority — no objections to the proposals, confirming that the site is in an area that is
considered not to be at high risk from the land stability issues associated with coal mining
legacy.

Network Rail — raise concerns regarding the erection of 1.8 metre high fence adjacent to
boundary with the railway, stating that any such means of enclosure should be constructed
on land wholly within the ownership of the applicant. Any boundary treatments to be
installed must be set 1 metre away from land controlled by Network Rail. A Risk
Assessment and Method Statement (RAMS) will need to be completed and agreed by
Network Rail for all works to be undertaken within 10m of the operational railway.

Health and Safety Executive (HSE) — do not advise against the granting of planning
permission.
SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

3 letters of objection were received in relation to the original proposals (for 6 dwellings on
the site) from neighbouring properties, which raise the following concerns (summarised):-

- The scheme will result in harmful overlooking of neighbouring properties.

Page 150



8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

- The demolition and construction phase will result in harm to air quality and will generate
noise levels that will have an adverse impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring
residents.

- There appears to be insufficient car parking provision to serve the development.

- The plans indicate that the main entrance into the development would be from
Eastwood Street. This route shares a boundary with a neighbouring residential
property. The noise and air quality issues associated with the use of this access would
have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of that neighbouring property.

- There are windows in the side gable of the property immediately west of Eastwood
Street — the increased level of activity on this road that would result from the proposed
development would harm the residential amenity of the occupants of that property.

- Neighbouring properties park vehicles on Eastwood Street. The ability to continue to do
so would be hindered by the proposed development.

- Highway safety concerns regarding the use of Eastwood Street as the point of access —
due to lack of visibility into Audenshaw Road and the narrow width of that highway.

ANAYLSIS

The key issues to be assessed in the determination of this planning application are:-

1) The principle of development

2) The impact of the proposed design and scale of the development on the character
of the surrounding area

3) The impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties;

4) The impact on highway safety

5) The impact on the ecology and trees

6) The impact on flood risk / drainage

6) Other matters

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

The application states that the last use of the site was as a builders’ yard. Whilst a
relatively low key employment use when compared to office or light industrial use, the
extant use of the site is one that supports employment opportunities. Policy E3 of the UDP
is entitled Established Employment Sites. The policy makes clear that sites that have an
established employment use but are not specifically allocated for this purpose (this site is
not allocated) should be assessed against the criteria of that policy.

The policy states that the conversion of such sites to residential or mixed use development
will not be permitted unless it is considered that the need for housing and the regeneration
benefits of such development outweigh the need to retain the site for employment
purposes. The policy states that, in making this assessment, the following factors should
be considered:-

a) The quality and type of employment sites and premises available in the area.

b) Evidence of demand for employment sites and premises in the area.

c) The suitability of the site for further employment use in terms of size, physical
characteristics, access, traffic impact, and sensitivity of surrounding land uses.

d) The opportunity which may be presented for new forms of employment as part of a

mixed use scheme.

A builders yard (the established use of the site) is a sui generis use as opposed to one that
falls within the traditional employment uses (those falling within class E, B2 or B8). The
supporting information submitted with the planning application indicates that the site has
been vacant of any commercial activity for a minimum of 15 years. Neighbouring

Page 151



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

10.

10.1

residential properties are located within close proximity to the northern and western
boundaries of the site and the surrounding area is predominantly residential in character.
The access arrangement that serve the site from Eastwood Street are considered to be
restrictive for Heavy Goods Vehicles.

In terms of alternative sites, a large area of land to the south of the M60 is allocated under
policy E2 of the UDP as a Development Opportunity Area. That area includes a number of
relatively low key employment uses, including demolition yards, which have resulted in a
detrimental impact on the environmental quality of the surrounding area, which is adjacent
to the Ashton Canal. The Development Opportunity Area allocated for the land states that
new employment development that enhances the environment would be an appropriate
form of development in this area. Such development remains to be brought forward and
therefore this land represents a viable and more suitable alternative to the application site
for generating new employment uses in Audenshaw.

The close proximity of neighbouring dwellings ensures that regular trips associated with any
commercial use would likely be more harmful to the residential amenity of those properties
than residential use of the site, where trips would be more concentrated to peak periods
and would be more aligned to the existing neighbouring uses.

Given the above, it is considered that the site is constrained in terms of its potential for
employment use and only has a limited recent history in this regard. Conversely, it is
considered that the site is situated in a highly suitable location for residential development,
in accordance with national and local planning policy. Regular bus services connecting
between Manchester city centre and Ashton can be accessed via bus stoops within close
proximity of the site, with Guide Bridge train station less than a 15 minute walk from the
site.

The site is therefore considered to be situated in a sustainable location. It also meets the
definition of previously developed land as se out in the NPPF. The scheme therefore
constitutes the redevelopment of a brownfield site for residential purposes, in an area
characterised by predominantly residential development. It is also the case that the Council
is required to boost the supply of housing in the Borough, in order to address the deficit in
the five year supply of housing land.

Given this situation, it is considered that the benefit of the provision of housing on this site
is worthy of significant weight. Demand for potential employment use has not been tested
through a period of marketing. However, given the nature of the last use of the site, the
constrained nature of the land from an commercial perspective and the fact that land within
relatively close proximity of the site has been allocated for redevelopment with new
employment uses, it is considered that the loss of a potential employment site in this
location is worthy of less weight.

Following the above assessment, the principle of development is considered to be
acceptable, subject to all other material planning considerations being satisfied.
CHARACTER OF THE SURROUNDING AREA

Section 12 of the NPPF is entitled Achieving well-designed places. Paragraph 127 states
that planning decisions should ensure that development achieves the following criteria
(those relevant to this proposal):-

- Developments that will function well and add to the quality of the area.

- Developments that are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and
appropriate and effective landscaping.

Page 152



10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

- Developments that are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting, whilst not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

- Developments that establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the
arrangements of streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive,
welcoming and distinctive places.

- Developments that optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an
appropriate amount and mix of development (including green and other public
space).

- Developments that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
wellbeing, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that ‘permission should be refused for development of
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design

standards....’.

The scheme proposes the conversion of the existing brick warehouse building in the
eastern portion of the site. The conversion would retain the large openings on the principal
elevation of the existing building, with the entrances to each of the two properties to be
recessed. The treatment of this key elevation is considered to preserve the character of the
building, which officers consider to be a non-designated heritage asset.

The two proposed new build bungalows would back on to the northern boundary of the site,
which is visible from High Ash Grove. Whilst ideally development would be outward facing,
it is acknowledged that the northern boundary of the site forms the shared boundary with
the front garden area of the closest neighbouring property to that boundary.

This presents challenges in terms of residential amenity impact and access but also
ensures that the site boundary is set back on the High Ash Grove frontage from these
views. As such, development that backs on to that boundary is considered not to be a
prominent departure from the character of development on the streetscene. This
assessment is made within the context of the fact that the existing single storey structures
which back on to the northern boundary of the site are visible in public views of the site
from High Ash Grove.

The scheme proposes to utilise the existing access from Eastwood Street and would
arrange the dwellings around a central courtyard area. This is considered to be an
appropriate design solution in this case, responding to the orientation of the existing
property at 218 Audenshaw Road and the two storey workshop building to be retained and
converted as part of the proposed scheme. The fact that the new build dwellings on the
northern edge of the development would be single storey is considered to ensure that the
scale of the scheme would not result in a detrimental impact on the character of the area.

Following the amendment to omit two of the four new buildings originally proposed, it is
considered that the revised scheme retains gaps between the dwellings and the boundaries
of the site to the extent that emphasise the relatively low density of development. The
spacing that can be achieved further reduces the prominence of the development in public
views and allows greater opportunities for structural landscaping to soften the impact of the
development, recognising the mature landscaping on the eastern edge of the site.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the amended proposals would

achieve the requirements set out in UDP policy C1 and Section 11 of the NPPF as quoted
above.

Page 153



11.

111

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

The adopted Residential Design Guide (RDG) requires 21 metres to be retained between
corresponding elevations of properties of the same height that contain habitable rooms,
reducing to 14 metres where properties face each other across a highway. A separation
distance of 14 metres is also required to be retained where an elevation with primary
window(s) serving habitable room(s) and a corresponding blank elevation of a neighbouring
property face each other.

The amendment to remove two of the originally proposed new build bungalows has allowed
the separation distances to the properties to the west of the site to be increased. The
western elevation of the proposed bungalow closest to the common boundary with those
neighbouring properties would include openings, but none of these would be primary
windows to habitable rooms. All glazing on that elevation could therefore be required to be
obscurely glazed to prevent unreasonable overlooking across the western boundary of the
site. A condition stipulating this requirement is attached to the recommendation.

This would effectively make that elevation ‘blank’ for the purposes of assessing the impact
on the residential amenity of the affected neighbouring properties. The plans demonstrate
that a separation distance in excess of 14 metres would be retained between that gable
elevation and the corresponding rear elevation of the closest neighbouring property to the
west of the site. Given the fact that the proposed building is single storey and the oblique
nature of the relationship to be retained, it is considered that the proposed development
would not result in unreasonable overlooking into or overshadowing of any of those
neighbouring properties.

A separation distance of approximately 14 metres would be retained between the rear
elevation of the bungalow proposed in the north eastern corner of the site and the
corresponding gable elevation of the property at 5 High Ash Grove to the north of the site.
There are no primary openings serving habitable room rooms on that gable elevation of that
neighbouring and as such, the separation distance to be retained would comply with the
RDG and preserve the residential amenity of the neighbouring property.

A separation distance in excess of 18 metres would be retained to between the front
elevation of no. 33 High Ash Grove to the north west of the site and the closest dwelling
within the proposed development. Given this distance, the oblique relationship to be
retained to the site and the single storey nature of the proposed development in that part of
the site, it is considered that the proposal would not result in any unreasonable overlooking
into or overshadowing of that neighbouring property.

The separation distances to the other properties within the terrace of which 33 High Ash
Grove is a part would be greater than 18 metres and again, given the oblique nature of the
relationship, it is considered that there would be no adverse impact on the residential
amenity on any of those properties.

Due to the orientation of the buildings within the proposed arrangement, it is considered
that the scheme would retain a sufficiently oblique relationship between the southern-most
dwelling within the building to be converted and the existing dwelling at 218 Audenshaw
Road, which is within the ownership of the applicant. The separation distances to be
retained between that existing property and the new build bungalows to be sited in the
northern part of the site is also considered sufficient to preserve the residential amenity of
the occupiers of each of the properties concerned.

In relation to the impact of noise associated with the use of the access along Eastwood
Street on the adjacent neighbouring property, the concerns expressed by objectors are
noted. However the impact of the proposals in this regard must be considered within the
context of the potential impact under the extant situation. A builders yard is considered

Page 154



11.9

11.10

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

more likely to result in more frequent journeys by vehicles larger than domestic cars for
longer periods of the day than a residential use of the land. The traffic movements
associated with the proposed use is likely to be concentrated at peak times and the vast
majority of movements would be by domestic cars.

Within this context, it is considered that the proposed development would not result in noise
levels that would be harmful to the residential amenity of the property that presents its
gable to Eastwood Street, or any of the other neighbouring properties, within the context of
the extant position. This assessment is corroborated by the lack of objection to the
proposals from the Borough EHO.

On the basis of the above assessment, the proposals are considered to preserve the
residential amenity of neighbouring properties and the amenity of the future occupants of
the development.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

Vehicular access into the proposed development would be via the current point of access in
the south western corner of the site, which connects to Eastwood Street. The concerns of
objectors to the application regarding the visibility splays from Eastwood Street into
Audenshaw Road are noted.

The amended scheme now proposes the erection of 4 dwellings on the site of the former
builders yard. The amended scheme also includes proposals to demarcate the junction at
the point where Eastwood Street connects to Audenshaw Road at a point level with the
front edge of the footpath on the northern side of Audenshaw Road.

This effectively extends the junction point southwards from the back edge of that footpath
towards the existing ‘keep clear’ zone that is marked within Audenshaw Road and allows
adequate visibility splays to be achieved in both easterly and westerly directions from the
junction into Audenshaw Road. This arrangement is similar to the markings at the junction
between Ash Street and Audenshaw Road to the west of the site.

On the basis that the details of these works are secured by condition, the Local Highway
Authority has not raised any objections to the proposals. The plans are consider sufficient
to demonstrate that refuse vehicles could enter and leave the site in a forward gear via use
of a turning area at the entrance into the development, beyond the northern end of
Eastwood Street. A condition requiring a scheme to be agreed for these works and the
works to be undertaken to bring Eastwood Street up to an adoptable standard can be
secured by a Grampian condition. Such a condition is attached to the recommendation.

The amended scheme makes provision for 2 car parking spaces to serve each of the 4 new
dwellings, with 1 space being retained for the occupiers of the existing property at 218
Audenshaw Road. This falls one space short of the requirements of policy RD8 of the
RDG, which indicates that 2 spaces should be provided for each property of the size
proposed. However, given the close proximity of regular public transport links to the site
(as identified previously in this report), it is considered that the harm arising to highway
safety from a deficit of 1 car parking space below the RDG standards would not be
sufficient to warrant refusal of the application.

Details of secured cycle storage provision within each of the plots can be secured by
condition. Conditions recommended by the Local Highway Authority in relation to the
submission and approval of details of an external lighting scheme to serve the development
and a Construction Environment Management Plan are also considered to be necessary
and are attached to the recommendation.

Page 155



12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

A condition requiring the submission of a condition survey of the highway is considered not
be reasonable as the Council has powers under the Highways Act to deal with damage
caused during the construction process. The Grampian condition referred to previously will
require details of the specification of the access road and footway connection proposed to
extend the existing footway from Audenshaw Road along Eastwood Street.

The concerns of local residents regarding the ability to park within Eastwood Street are
noted. The applicant has indicated that they own all of the land within the red edge plan
and that includes Eastwood Street. This has not been challenged through the consultation
process on the planning application. The issue of parking in that area therefore relates to
what is currently a private right of access, which is not a material planning consideration.

In relation to the impact on the wider highway network, a development of 4 dwellings would
be likely to produce substantially less than 10 vehicle movements to and from the site
during peak periods, with far less movements during the other hours of the day. The extant
commercial use would likely result in more Heavy Goods Vehicles entering and leaving the
site and more two way journeys throughout the day than the proposed use. As such, it is
considered that the proposals would not result in a detrimental impact on the capacity of the
highway. This assessment is corroborated by the lack of objection from the Local Highway
Authority to the proposals.

Following the above assessment, it is considered that the proposals would not result in a
detrimental impact on highway safety, subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions.

The existing access road from Audenshaw Road to the development is currently a private
street. The Local Highway Authority has indicated that this must be made up to an
adoptable standard (as indicated on the submitted plans), including street lighting, in order
to ensure that the engineering works required to maintain highway safety can be carried out
and appropriately maintained thereafter.

These works can be secured at the cost of the developer by a Grampion condition and
section 106 agreement. This would allow a refuse vehicle to enter and leave the site in a
forward gear. The recommendation on this application seeks Members approval to
delegate authority to the Local Highway Authority to utilise the Council’s statutory powers
with regard to the making up of private streets, at the expense of the developer, in the
event that planning permission is granted.

ECOLOGY AND TREES

As the scheme involves the demolition of the existing buildings on the site, any potential
impact on protected species during this process must be given consideration. The
applicant has submitted a Preliminary Bat Report and a Bat Presence Survey in support of
the application. The conclusion of the Reports is that, whilst the brick built structure and
some of the adjacent trees demonstrated potential for bat roosting, no such activity was
encountered during the survey period.

The overall risk to bats is considered to be low. Precautionary mitigation measures are
recommended for the demolition phase of the development and compliance with these can
be secured by condition. Whilst indicative details of biodiversity enhancements are
included with the application, these relate only to the existing two storey building to be
retained.

GMEU has reviewed the findings of the submitted information and has not raised any
objections to the proposals. Conditions limiting the timing of tree / vegetation removal and
requiring details of further biodiversity enhancements to be submitted and approved are
considered to be necessary and are attached to the recommendation. Informatives

Page 156



13.4

13.5

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

15.

15.1

15.2

outlining the developer's responsibilities with regards to both protected and invasive
species can also be attached to any planning permission granted.

In relation to the impact on trees, the main potential impact would be on the established
tree belt that runs adjacent to the east boundary of the site. The scheme does not propose
to extend to the rear of the existing 2 storey building in that location and sufficient
separation would be retained between the dwelling proposed in the north eastern corner of
the site and those trees. Consideration needs to be given to the exact location and
specification of the treatments that would demarcate the rear boundaries of the properties
to be formed from the conversion of the existing mill building and these details can be
secured by condition.

The Borough Tree Officer has not raised any objections to the proposals, subject to the
imposition of a condition requiring details of a soft landscaping scheme to serve the
development to be submitted and approved. Such a condition is attached to the
recommendation.

FLOOD RISK / DRAINAGE

The site is in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore considered to be at a lower risk of flooding,
although part of Audenshaw Road immediately to the south of the site is considered to be
at a higher risk of flooding. The LLFA has requested details of a drainage strategy to serve
the development prior to the determination of the application.

The scheme proposes the erection of two new dwellings on the site and the conversion and
minor extension of an existing building to two further dwellings. In addition to being a
relatively small scale development, the site constitutes brownfield land, the majority of
which is laid to hardstanding. The creation of grassed areas to serve the dwellings would
therefore increase the extent of permeable surface on the site. Given these factors and the
fact that the site is at a relatively low risk of surface water flooding, it is considered sufficient
to condition the submission and approval of a sustainable surface water strategy for the site
prior to the commencement of development. Such a condition is attached to the
recommendation.

United Utilities has not raised any objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition of
conditions requiring surface and foul water to be drained from the site via different
mechanisms and the submission and approval of a sustainable surface water drainage
strategy prior to the commencement of development. These requirements are combined
into one of the conditions attached to the recommendation.

OTHER MATTERS

The Borough EHO has not raised any objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition
of conditions. A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the planning
application. This identifies the main noise sources potentially affecting the future occupants
of the development as being the train line to the east and Audenshaw Road to the south of
the site.

The Assessment concludes that a degree of mitigation will be required, primarily relating to
the specification of the glazing and the use of mechanical ventilation to serve the openings
on the most affected elevations. The EHO has raised no objections to the conclusions of
the assessment. Further details of the specific mitigation measures to be installed can be
secured by condition.

Page 157



15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

15.10

15.11

Indicative details off an area for communal refuse storage are shown on the proposed site
plan adjacent to the western boundary of the site. Exact details of the capacity of the bins
to be provided and the means of enclosure of the communal storage area can be secured
by condition.

Given the relatively close proximity of neighbouring residents to the site, it is also
considered reasonable to limit the hours of work during the construction phase of the
development. A condition to this effect is attached to the recommendation.

In relation to ground contamination, a Phase | Assessment has been submitted in support
of the planning application. The Assessment highlights the brownfield nature of the site
and concludes that intrusive investigations need to be undertaken to inform what
remediation works may be necessary. The Contaminated land Officer has reviewed the
finding and has not raised any objections to the proposals, subject to the imposition of a
condition requiring the undertaking of this intrusive investigation and the submission of a
remediation strategy prior to the commencement of development. Such a condition is
attached to the recommendation.

In relation to Section 106 contributions, the proposal is for less than 10 dwellings and
therefore does not constitute ‘major’ development. As such, it does not meet the threshold
referred to in either UDP policy H4 or paragraph 64 of the more recently adopted NPPF for
the provision of affordable housing. An affordable housing contribution is therefore
considered not to be necessary to make the scheme acceptable in planning terms.

The development proposes 4 dwellings, each with private hardens, in a sustainable location
close to regular public transport for access to services, facilities employment are areas of
public open space. Given these factors, it is considered that contributions in relation to
offsite open space and highway infrastructure improvements would not meet the CIL tests
in terms of being necessary to mitigate the impacts of the development. As such, a Section
106 Agreement securing contributions is not being pursued in this case.

The site is in a low risk area with regard to coal mining legacy and as such no conditions
are considered to be necessary in this regard. An informative outlining the responsibilities
of the developer in relation to this issue can be attached to any planning permission
granted.

Network Rail (NR) has raised concerns regarding the erection of a 1.8 metre high fence
adjacent to boundary with the railway (on the eastern boundary of the site), stating that any
such means of enclosure should be constructed on land wholly within the ownership of the
applicant. NR state that any boundary treatments to be installed must be set 1 metre away
from land controlled by them. In response to this comment, it is important to note that
under planning law, the landowner has the ability erect of fence of up to 2 metres in height
on that boundary of the land (which they have declared that they own), without requiring
planning permission.

The Local Planning Authority cannot therefore insist on the basis of planning considerations
that any treatment on that edge of the site be stepped in 1 metre from the common
boundary. The details of the location and specification of this boundary treatment can
however be secured by condition and such a condition is attached to the recommendation.

The HSE was consulted on the application due to the presence of pressurised gas
pipelines being located below the surface of Audenshaw Road, which runs adjacent to the
south of the site. Their response indicates that the proximity of this infrastructure does not
present a constraint on the development of the land, with no conditions considered
necessary in this regard.

Page 158



16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

17.

17.1

CONCLUSION

The principle of development is considered to be acceptable. Whilst the proposals would
result in the loss of an employment site, the site has been vacant for an extended period of
time. Although the site has not been actively marketed, there are a number of constraints,
which limit the site’s suitability for re-use for employment purposes, as identified in the main
body of the report. There is also a large Development Opportunity Area allocation to the
north east of the site which is considered suitable for new employment uses, offering a
more viable alternative to this site for prospective employment uses looking to establish in
Audenshaw.

The amended scheme is considered to preserve the character of the surrounding area and
the residential amenity of neighbouring properties. Following the reduction in the number of
dwellings by two, the amended scheme is considered to make adequate provision for car
parking and includes improvements to the visibility splays that can be achieved from the
junction of Eastwood Street into Audenshaw Road. The proposals also include extension
of the adopted highway to include Eastwood Street, to ensure that the mitigation measures
can be appropriately maintained.

Although the LLFA consider that further information regarding surface water drainage is
required prior to the determination of the application, for the reasons given in the main body
of the report, it is considered that this matter can adequately be dealt with by condition.

There are no formal objections to the proposals from any of the statutory consultees. It is
considered that all other material considerations can be satisfied through the imposition of
conditions, where appropriate, as detailed in the main body of the report.

The proposals are therefore considered to comply with the relevant national and local
planning policies quoted above.

RECOMMENDATION

To authorise the making up of Eastwood Street, a private street, to enable development to
take place and the completion of a suitable legal agreement under S106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure those works, at the cost of the
developer, under the Private Street Works Code; and to grant planning permission, subject
to the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years of the date
of this decision.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:-

1:1250 Site location plan (Drawing no. 911 PL_01)

Proposed demolition plans (Drawing no. 911 PL_04)

Proposed site layout plan (Drawing no. 911 PL_05 Rev. D)

Proposed bungalow plans and elevations (Drawing no. 911 PL_06 Rev. B)
Proposed Mill conversion plans and elevations (Drawing no. 911 PL_07)
Preliminary Bat Report produced by Braithwaite Bat Surveys (Ref. DR-M345WP)
Bat Presence Survey produced by Braithwaite Bat Surveys (Ref. DR-M345WP)

3. No development, other than site clearance and site compound set up, shall commence

until such time as the following information has been submitted in writing and written
permission at each stage has been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 159



i) A preliminary risk assessment to determine the potential for the site to be
contaminated shall be undertaken and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Prior to any physical site investigation, a methodology shall be
approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include an assessment to
determine the nature and extent of any contamination affecting the site and the
potential for off-site migration.

i) Where necessary a scheme of remediation to remove any unacceptable risk to
human health, buildings and the environment (including controlled waters) shall
be approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to implementation.

iif) Any additional or unforeseen contamination encountered during development
shall be notified to the Local Planning Authority as soon as practicably possible
and a remedial scheme to deal with this approved by the Local Planning
Authority.

iv) Upon completion of any approved remediation schemes, and prior to
occupation, a completion report demonstrating that the scheme has been
appropriately implemented and the site is suitable for its intended end use shall
be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The discharge of this planning condition will be given in writing by the Local Planning
Authority on completion of the development and once all information specified within
this condition and other requested information have been provided to the satisfaction of
the Local Planning Authority and occupation / use of the development shall not
commence until this time, unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

Notwithstanding any description of materials listed in the application or detailed on the
approved plans, no above ground construction works shall take place until samples
and / or full specification of materials to be used: externally on the buildings; in the
construction of all boundary walls, fences and railings and, in the finishes to all external
hard-surfaces have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning
authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the materials.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

No work shall take place in respect to the construction of the approved highway, as
indicated on the approved site plan, until a scheme relevant to highway construction
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include full details of:-

1. Phasing plan of highway works.
2. Surface and drainage details of all carriageways and footways.

3. Details of the works to the reinstatement of redundant vehicle access points as
continuous footway to adoptable standards following the completion of the
construction phase.

4. details of the specification of the access road and footway connection proposed to
extend the existing footway from Audenshaw Road along Eastwood Street
(including the provision of tactile paving and dropped kerbs).

5. Details of the areas of the highway network within the site to be constructed to
adoptable standards and the specification of the construction of these areas.

6. Details of carriageway markings and signage.
No part of the approved development shall be occupied until the approved highways

works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details or phasing plan
and the development shall be retained as such thereafter.

Page 160



10.

11.

No development shall commence until details of the tree protection measures (meeting
the requirements of BS5837:2012) to be installed around the trees to be retained within
the site and adjacent to the boundaries of the land (as indicated on the approved
plans) during the construction phase of the development have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protection measures shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the commencement of
development and shall be retained as such for the duration of the construction phase
of the development.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, no part of the development
hereby approved shall be occupied until details of the means of storage and collection
of refuse generated by the development have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include scaled plans showing
the location of storage and the means of enclosure. The bin storage arrangements
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation
of the development and shall be retained as such thereafter.

No development shall commence until such time as a Construction Environment
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall include details of:-

- Wheel wash facilities for construction vehicles;

- Arrangements for temporary construction access;

- Contractor and construction worker car parking;

- Turning facilities during the remediation and construction phases;
- Details of on-site storage facilities;

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Construction
Environmental Management Plan.

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until details of the
secured cycle storage provision to serve each of the dwellings have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include
scaled plans showing the location of storage and details of the means of enclosure.
The secured cycle storage arrangements for each dwelling shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of that dwelling and shall
be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, no development
above ground level shall commence until full details of a scheme of hard and soft
landscaping to be incorporated into the development hereby approved have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include the following specific measures:-

- A plan showing the location of all trees/hedges/shrubs to be planted, details of the
species mix, the number of specimens to the planted, spacing between them and
their height on planting

- A plan showing the location and construction material of all hard surfacing.

The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved.

The approved scheme of landscaping scheme shall be implemented before the first
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme agreed
previously with the local planning authority. Any newly planted trees or plants forming
part of the approved scheme which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of

Page 161



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

the planting, are removed, damaged, destroyed or die shall be replaced in the next
appropriate planting season with others of similar size and species.

Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water drainage scheme,
based on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance
with evidence of an assessment of the site conditions shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage
scheme must be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national
standards. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems and in the
event of surface water draining to the public surface water sewer, details of the flow rate
and means of control shall be submitted. The scheme shall include details of on-going
management and maintenance of the surface water drainage system to be installed.
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and
retained and maintained as such thereafter.

No development above ground level shall commence until details of biodiversity
enhancement measures to be installed as part of the development hereby approved
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
details shall include a specification of the installations (to include Bat bricks / bat slates,
Bird boxes, Native tree and shrub planting and wildflower planting) and scaled plans
showing their location within the development. The approved enhancement measures
shall be installed in accordance with the approved details, prior to the first occupation of
any of the dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details submitted with the planning application, prior to the
occupation of any of the plots identified as requiring treatment to the elevations with
noise mitigation measures (as identified in the approved Nose Impact Assessment), the
following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority:-

- A scaled plan showing the exact location of the elevations to be treated with the
particular noise mitigation measures; and

- A manufacturer's specification of the mitigation measures to be submitted and
approved, including acoustic fence.

The approved mitigation measures shall be installed in each of the affected plots prior
to the first occupation of that dwelling and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, no development associated
with the conversion of the existing building in the eastern portion of the site shall
commence until scaled plans showing the extent of the recess to be applied to all
external window and door openings within the dwellings have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained as such thereafter.

Prior to the first occupation of the bungalow to be situated in the north western corner of
the site as part of the development hereby approved, all of the windows in the western
elevation of that dwelling shall be fitted with obscured glazing (meeting Pilkington Level
3 in obscurity as a minimum) and shall be fixed shut below a height of 1.7 metres above
the internal floor level of the room that they serve. The development shall be retained
as such thereafter.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, prior to the first occupation of
any of the dwellings hereby approved, details of the boundary treatments to be installed
as part of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include scaled plans of the treatments and details

Page 162



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

of the construction material and the finish to be applied. The boundary treatments for
each dwelling shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of that dwelling.

During demolition/construction no work (including vehicle and plant movements,
deliveries, loading and unloading) shall take place outside the hours of 07:30 and 18:00
Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 Saturdays. No work shall take place on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Prior to the first occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, details of a
scheme for external lighting to serve the development (including both within the
highway and to serve private driveways) shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include a scale plan indicating the
location of the lighting to be installed, a LUX contour plan indicating the levels of light
spillage and scaled elevations of lighting columns/supporting structures. The external
lighting scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to
the first occupation of any of the dwellings and shall be retained as such thereafter.

No tree felling or vegetation removal shall take place during the optimum period for bird
nesting (March to July inclusive) unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

A clear view shall be provided on both sides of any driveway or vehicular access as it
meets the back of footway. It shall measure 2.4 metres along the edge of the site
access and 2.4 metres along the back of footway. It must be clear of anything higher
than 600mm above the access, except for vertical iron railings to a design that includes
rails of not greater than 15mm diameter spaced at not less than 100mm intervals.

The car parking spaces to serve the development hereby approved shall be installed in
accordance with the details shown on the approved site plan prior to the first occupation
of any of the dwellings and shall be retained free from obstruction for their intended
purposes thereafter.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures

detailed within the Preliminary Bat Report and Bat Presence Survey submitted with the
planning application.

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



218 Audenshaw Road m SICALEI 1 :12|50 |

and associated land to rear ML et
M34 5WP w 0 25 50 75
drawn KS  sheet scale 1 ; 1250
KA I E P age 1 6@pation Plan 1911 PL_01
arc h |t ECt Re Development rev date  description project number drawing number revision
DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS BEC ECT PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING. THIS DRAWING

ARE TO HEC N SITE. ANY DISC IES BE REPORTED TO THE A
SHALL NOT BE SCALED WORK TO FIGURED DIMS ONLY. THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE AUTHOR



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 20/00559/FUL

Photo 1 — view looking northwards down Eastwood Street towards
the entrance to the application site

Photo 2 — view of eastern gable of the neighbouring property
immediately to the west of Eastwood Street

Page 167



Photo 3 — view of existing buildings on the site from northern
end of Eastwood Street

ST
3 .

Google "

Photo 4 — view of northern boundary of the site on High Ash
Grove

Page 168



Photo 5 — view of properties to the north of the site on High Ash Grove

Photo 6 — aerial view of the existing properties to the north west of the
site on High Ash Grove

Page 169



Page 170



Photo 7 - view of existing access onto Williamson Lane from within the
site

LN E T

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



¢/ T abed

NEW TIMBER FENCE TO BOUNDARY - REFER TO PLANNING LAYOUT

NOTES

ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS ARE TO
BE CHECKED ON SITE

ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRIOR
TO WORK COMMENCING

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE SCALED
WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE
REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS
WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE

T wty AUTHOR
BUNGALOW B RIDGE . [
BUNGALOW A RIDGE
GARDEN ? I
BUNGALOW B EAVES_
s |
\
/ 2 BUNGALOW A FFL
KITCHEN
Rear Elevation
\ i,
o| DINING
R FFL 99.000
GARDEN
UTILITY
| i LOUNGE
i A, EXISTING BRICKWORK
i BATHROOM S N RWP TO BE CLEANED MADE GOOD AND REPOINTED
> < AS NECESSARY
HALLWAY ‘ B. NEW BRICKWORK
o IBSTOCK A4009A BEXHILL DARK ENGLISH BOND
g C. NEW TIMBER WINDOW
£ . S orryaro DOUBLE/TRIPLE GLAZED UNITS [SPEC AS
\ BEDROOM il [BLOCK PAVED TO ACOUSTIC REPORT] PAINTED TO RAL 6005
MATCH COMMUNAL
e i | _ AREA D. NEW EXTERNAL WALL INFILL PANEL
I”l INSULATED CAVITY BLOCKWORK WITH VERTICAL
we ﬁi}*\ S, "~ BUNGALOW B RIDGE TIMBER CLADDING PAINTED TO RAL 6005 T
Ay E. NEW ENTRANCE DOOR 5
| | Rwp BUNGALOW A RIDGE SOLID CORE VERTICAL PANEL TIMBER [HOUSES
- WITH DOUBLE GLAZED FANLIGHT] PAINTED TO — /
RAL 6005 = T
COURTYARD F. NEW FRENCH DOORS - "
o, PAINTED HARDWOOD WITH DOUBLE/TRIPLE )
AREA] GLAZED UNITS [SPEC AS ACOUSTIC REPORT] TO 4 /
BUNGALOW B EAVES RAL 6005
O \
2
B BUNGALOW ABAVES . NEW CARPORT DOORS = \ \
PAINTED HARDWOOD TO RAL 6005 - -
— awp H. EXISTING ROOF =]
MADE GOOD AS REQUIRED
o
i, NEW ROOF
- BUNGALOW A FFL MARLEY PLAIN ROOF TILE IN ANTIQUE BROWN 3
oRWP i .
| J. NEW ROOFLIGHTS 7N
CONSERVATION GRADE VELUX
/ LOUNGE ?
BEDROOM _ K. TARMAC SURFACING
| /' f : L. BLOCK PAVING KEY
ENSUITE I M CONCRETE PAVING 1:500
| n
L= . .
PN Side Elevation
/ kY
! DINING 1 COURTYARD 3
M [BLOCK PAVED TO .
S MATCH COMMUNAL 1 - 1 00
AREA]
KITCHEN -[
BATHROOM /\(,DQ h >\‘\
RWP |
=]
ﬁ BEDROOM
N FFL 98.850
| m—
L
UTILITY ENJgéABNYCE
1 / RWP =BT e
I: b BUNGALOW B RIDGE
GARDEN _ | / ﬂ—\ b o e i
N | | BUNGALOW A RIDGE
B AUG  PLANNING
A AUG  PLANNING
- MAY  PLANNING
[ ie T revision  date description
=  BUNGALOW B EAVES
H : BUNGALOW A EAVES Re_Development
DRAINAGE TO BE CALCULATED AND DESIGNED BY SPECIALIST ) . Audenshaw Road
\ N\ KW T alaf Audenshaw
Mr D Ross
GARDEN BUNGALOW A FFL
architect
. W: KATEarchitect.com
Front Elevation E: kate@KATEarchitect.com
NEW TIMBER FENCE TO BOUNDARY - REFER TO PLANNING LAYOUT 2

1:100
1 Bungalow FIOOr Plan Proposed Bungalow Plan
1:100 & Elevations

drawn KS  sheet A1 scale As
indicated

SCALE 1:100 1911 PL_06 e
frerrrrrrrteer e e project number drawing number revision

0 2 4 6




This page is intentionally left blank



G/ T obed

NOTES

ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS ARE TO
BE CHECKED ON SITE

ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRIOR
TO WORK COMMENCING

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE SCALED
WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE
REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS

\ WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE
AUTHOR
"'c
.%%
| { | ‘ [ } | Y \
| \
| || i / | ‘ | i | T 1 | — a"%
- — - ¥4 - - o —— . A e R
A | . ///%ﬂ%////}’//// v 7.t D % i, e ././././% \ . ... _ === = == @@ @ @@
" GARDEN . n ; 7 — i \ n ' ’
- - B . 1 LY 5
/ \ _ FAMILY 11 FAMILY
\ {|  BATHROOM 11 BATHROOM
\ '."' 11
KITCHEN / DINING | A %
[ 7 . b t u_
KITCHEN / DINING j gz | H i S - s e oo
PANTRY [ PANTRY u 7;////// U i ACEE R AC b _ BEDROOM 1 i
/. ' = I - s =
. n LANDING - LANDING
/ i we 1 A < .
r n 1 I -
0 ' ? ] I 11 al a5 f
/_ f LOUNGE I~ ﬁ--'/ LOUNGE ? B | A~ - Sl ==
i FFL 98.910= 3 FFL 98.910} . BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 n BEDROOM 3 ; BEDROOM 2
i — ; —1 | : n : =
v. NN el |
1 i ! L1 1 | 1
| | FL . ; in :__‘_l Z .
) — |
7! |P Th ), Z///i I ) IZ//////' { /] { | V.,
]
N\ |
S |
[rdizee, \”'xw_ |
|
L
COURTYARD
[BLOCK PAVED TO
MATCH COMMUNAL -
AREA] XL
| ’ MILL First Floor
oy 1 100
Mill Ground Floor
1 1 OO MILL EXISTING RIDGE H MILL EXISTING RIDGE
- 1 I KR TTTT ||||.-:|||||||||||||||||i|||||||||||- | T 2 O TTTT .|||:|..|'|I||| —_—
H.
MILL EXISTING EAVES I | MILL EXISTING EAVES
EXISTING BRICKWORK ‘ e
TO BE CLEANED MADE GOOD AND REPOINTED : /"5}“}
AS NECESSARY —
NEW BRICKWORK LIl el bplle ][]
IBSTOCK A4009A BEXHILL DARK ENGLISH BOND =
T
NEW TIMBER WINDOW
DOUBLE/TRIPLE GLAZED UNITS [SPEC AS MILL EFFL | MILL EFFL
ACOUSTIC REPORT] PAINTED TO RAL 6005 - == e s ‘ == S===< —
NEW EXTERNAL WALL INFILL PANEL . :
INSULATED CAVITY BLOCKWORK WITH VERTICAL (1] ] \ CTT T I
TIMBER CLADDING PAINTED TO RAL 6005 ' 5 _ IT1 1]‘ :
NEW ENTRANCE DOOR I8 i h
SOLID CORE VERTICAL PANEL TIMBER [HOUSES A —c|F T Tl . s C. !
WITH DOUBLE GLAZED FANLIGHT] PAINTED TO [c] : = ik : r ! N [} JF /
RAL 6005 D. H ‘ D. ‘ o E.‘ D. D. l ‘ }F. ‘ D. ol Ll S
MILL GFL [ TRl UL ] [l 1 | A MILL GFL
NEW FRENCH DOORS

GLAZED UNITS [SPEC AS ACOUSTIC REPORT] TO

PAINTED HARDWOOD WITH DOUBLE/TRIPLE ‘
RAL 6005

NEW CARPORT DOORS
PAINTED HARDWOOD TO RAL 6005

Rear Elevation_east

MADE GOOD AS REQUIRED 5

6 Side Elevation_south
1:100 1:100

NEW ROOF
MARLEY PLAIN ROOF TILE IN ANTIQUE BROWN

NEW ROOFLIGHTS
CONSERVATION GRADE VELUX

TARMAC SURFACING
BLOCK PAVING

CONCRETE PAVING

MILL EXISTING RIDGE

MILL EXISTING RIDGE |
- - - [ms I O T O e

MAY PLANNING

MILL EXISTING EAVES revision date description

MILL EXISTING EAVES

[ Re-Development

A Audenshaw Road
C. L C. Ll lc] C. x Audenshaw

Mr D Ross
MILL EFFL

KATE

architect
W: KATEarchitect.com

| E: kate@KATEarchitect.com

B

i

>

G.
|

L m
O

MILL GFL MILL GFL

(@]

IR RN TN RN RN RN
| A A AR HH AR HE HHO]
(@]
|
%
if

i

Proposed Mill Conversion
Plans & Elevations

drawn KS sheet A1l scale As

Side Elevation north Front Elevation west SCALE 1 : 100
4 1:100 = 3 1:-100 = A L A M A S L project number drawing number revision

0 2 4 6



This page is intentionally left blank



g
039"

¢

1/ T abed

HIGH ASH GROVE

distance to-ha‘bitgiél‘g

ey

PROPOSED 2B BUNGALO

-3

PROPOSED 2B BUNGALOW

||||:l| ‘

PROPOSED 3B HOUS

existing garden
retained

parking for 218
audenshaw rd

existing boundary treatment retained

~extend t'ar}riéca&ur'n_fbbtbat'h and make good é*i_'sti'ng.';'" o

¥ P

E TO BE DESIGNED BY AN ENGINEER

S

make good existing access road. *

i
i
E
it
i
i
mllE | |
il
i -
5 I
2 |
. |
i
n
| o
o
®©
(&)
7))
wid
Q
Q
-
(7))
©
©
(o)
1
S
©
i e
(7))
c
Do
S8
< -
N
SCALE 1:200

0 4 8 12

NOTES

ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS ARE TO
BE CHECKED ON SITE

ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT PRIOR
TO WORK COMMENCING

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE SCALED
WORK TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE
REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS
WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE
AUTHOR

TARMACADUM

BLOCK PAVING

CONCRETE PAVING

FRONT ENTRANCE DOOR TO HAVE FLUSH ENTRANCE

OR 1200 X 1200MM LEVEL PLATFORM AT ENTRNACE

PATIO / FRENCH DOORS

EXISTING BOUNDARY WALL WITH NEW CLOSE
BOARDED FENCE

1800MM TIMBER FENCE

NEW BRICK WALL WITH CLOSE BOARDED FENCE

NEW BRICK WALL 450MM HIGH

|\ CLOSE BOARDED GATE HEIGHT AS PER FENCE
//%% TREE TO LANDSCAPING DESIGN

| GRASSED AREA

DRAINAGE LAYOUT [NOTIONAL] TO BE DESIGNED BY

ENGINEER
B AUG PLANNING
A AUG PLANNING
- MAY PLANNING
revision  date description

Re-Development
Audenshaw Road
Audenshaw

Mr D Ross

KATE

architect

W: KATEarchitect.com
E: kate@KATEarchitect.com

Planning Layout

drawn KS sheet A1 scale 1:200
1911 PL_05 B

project number drawing number revision




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6.c)

Application Number: 20/00585/FUL

Proposal: Demolition of existing conservatory and construction of single storey /
two storey rear extension and new first floor balcony to side of
property.

Site: 4 Miller Hey, Mossley, Tameside, OL5 9PP

Applicant: Mr Mark Crane

Recommendation: REFUSE

Reason for report: Councillor Homer has requested that delegated powers are not

exercised by the Head of Planning and that the application should be
considered by the Speakers Panel (Planning). This is on the basis
that the applicant considers the recommendation to be inconsistent
with other planning applications that have been approved in the
same area and that the proposed extension would not be detrimental
to the area or exceed the requirements for building in the area.

1. APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

11 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing conservatory extension to
the rear elevation of No. 4 Miller Hey and the construction of a part two storey, part single
storey rear extension. The application also seeks permission for the creation of a new
Juliet balcony to the side elevation of the existing two storey side extension. The extension
would be constructed using materials to match the existing.

2. SITE & SURROUNDINGS

2.1 The application site relates to a two storey semi-detached property situated on Miller Hey,
which comprises a small cluster of 6 dwellings located off Regent Drive in Mossley. The
site lies wholly within the designated Green Belt. To the rear (east) of the property there is
an enclosed garden and to the south east of the dwelling is a detached garage, beyond
which are surrounding open fields.

2.2 The dwelling itself is constructed with coursed natural stone elevations with a pitched roof.
The dwelling has been extended with the addition of a two storey side extension and a
single storey conservatory extension to the east facing rear elevation. An open wooden
balcony platform is situated to the rear of the two storey extension.

3. PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 02/00288/FUL — Single storey side extension — Approved April 2002.

3.2 03/00926/FUL — Two storey side extension — Approved August 2003.

3.3 04/00126/FUL - Detached garage — Approved March 2004.

4. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

4.1 Tameside Unitary Development Plan (UDP).

Page 179



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

6.1

7.1

UDP Allocation — Designated Green Belt.

Part 1 Policies:

1.3 Creating a Cleaner and Greener Environment

15 Following the Principles of Sustainable Development
1.10 Protecting and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Part 2 Policies:

H10 Detailed Design of Housing Developments
OL2 Existing Buildings in the Green Belt

OL10 Landscape Quality and Character

Other Policies
Tameside Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document (2010) (SPD).

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 2 Achieving Sustainable Development

Section 12 Achieving well-designed places

Section 13 Protecting Green Belt Land

Section 15  Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

This is intended to complement the NPPF and to provide a single resource for planning
guidance, whilst rationalising and streamlining the material. Almost all previous planning
Circulars and advice notes have been cancelled. Specific reference will be made to the
PPG or other national advice in the Analysis section of the report, where appropriate.

PUBLICITY CARRIED OUT

Neighbour notification letters were issued in accordance with the requirements of the Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 and
the Council's adopted Statement of Community Involvement. A site notice was also
displayed on 7" August 2020.

RESPONSES FROM CONSULTEES

None.

SUMMARY OF THIRD PARTY RESPONSES RECEIVED

A letter of support has been received with the signatures of the neighbours of four
neighbouring properties. The comments received have been summarised below:-

e Proposal would be of a benefit to the area by re-developing already developed land to
be in keeping with the surroundings.

e No concerns that the proposal would have more impact on the openness of the Green
Belt land in which we live.

e The land in question currently has no ‘openness’ having been built on a decade ago.

e The proposed re-development represents only a very small amount of additional floor
space for the existing building utilising already developed land in a different way and
cannot be harmful to openness in any way

e No effect on Green Belt.

Page 180



8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

e A number of very special circumstances apply: shortage of more 4 bed houses in
Mossley; development proposed is clearly significantly less injurious to the Green Belt
than the numerous development, which are available to owners of No.4 Miller Hey
under permitted development rights; inconsistent with decision taken at No.8 Miller
Hey.

ANALYSIS

In accordance with the revised NPPF and the Tameside UDP, the main issues raised by
the application relate to the following:-

- Principle of the development.

- Impact of the development on the character and appearance of the surrounding area.
- Impact on residential amenity.

- Impact on highway safety.

The above matters, and other considerations, are considered in more detail below.

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Whether the proposal would amount to inappropriate development in the Green Belt
The site lies within the designated Green Belt to which the Government attaches great
importance. As detailed in paragraph 133 of the Framework, the fundamental aim of Green
Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.

The Framework states that ‘inappropriate development’ is, by definition, harmful to the
Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. At
paragraph 145, the Framework explains that a Local Planning Authority should regard the
construction of new buildings as inappropriate development within the Green Belt, with an
exception being, amongst other things, an extension or alteration of a building provided that
it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original
building. Substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt and ‘very special
circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by
other considerations.

Locally, Policy OL2 of the Tameside UDP, which relates to the development of existing
buildings within the Green Belt, is in line with the Framework and states that approval will
only be given for the extension, alteration or replacement of existing buildings within the
Green Belt, where:-

“(b) any extension of the building does not result in disproportionate additions over
and above the size of the original building (or in the case of a replacement dwelling,
the new building is not materially larger than the one it replaces)...

(e) the form, bulk, general design and external materials of the building is in
keeping with its surroundings and retains the inherent character and scale of the
original building.”

The UDP does not define the term ‘disproportionate’, nor does the Framework. It is
therefore a matter of planning judgement on a case-by-case basis.

The original dwelling comprised a two-bedroom, two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse
and so was modest in its size and appearance. The property was subsequently enlarged

Page 181



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

with a two storey side extension and single storey conservatory extension to the rear that
now form the existing dwelling.

To understand the general increase in the scale and proportions of the dwelling, officers
calculated the approximate volume of the original building, the volume of the existing two
storey side extension (which is to be retained), and the approximate volume of the
proposed two storey and single storey rear extension. This is outlined below:-

Original Volume = approximately 309m?3 (One third of original volume = 103m3)
Existing two storey side extension = 130m3

Proposed part two storey / part single storey rear extension = 131ms3 (96m?3 two
storey + 35m3 single storey)

Original Volume (309m?3) + Existing and proposed volume (261m3) = 570m3

= approximately 84% increase in volume.

The above calculations clearly indicate that the extensions now proposed, in addition to
those already constructed, would have an overall volume and floor area that would near
double the size of the original building. It is considered that the proposed extension would
amount to a disproportionate addition to the original building, which fails to meet the
exception listed under paragraph 145 (c) of the Framework. On this basis, the scheme
would represent ‘inappropriate development’ in the Green Belt and would conflict with the
Framework and UDP Policy OL2. It is therefore harmful to the Green Belt by definition and
substantial weight must be attached to the harm arising due to the inappropriate nature of
the development.

Effect on Openness

Paragraph 133 of the Framework states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to
prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. It identifies openness as an
essential characteristic of the Green Belt. There is no definition of ‘openness’ in the
Framework.

The application site forms part of a small cluster of six properties known as Miller Hey.
No.4 Miller Hey sits on the southern edge of this cluster of development adjacent to the
open fields to the south, where the openness of the Green Belt can be widely appreciated.
The rear of the application property (where the development is proposed) is not particularly
visible from within the immediate public realm and surrounding public footpaths as the rear
of the site is largely screened by the changing ground levels and trees / hedgerows to the
site boundaries.

In a recent appeal decision (APP/R0660/W/18/3193413), a Planning Inspector made
reference to ‘openness’ as having both a visual and spatial dimension and that the absence
of visual intrusion does not, in itself, mean there is no impact on the openness of the Green
Belt.

The proposal would increase the mass and bulk of the building both at first floor level and at
ground floor level. The resultant building would be deeper and the overall scale, footprint
and proportions of the dwelling would be increased. As a result of the increase in built
form, it is considered that the enlarged building would heighten the urbanised nature of the
existing site and, as a result, would harm the openness of the Green Belt in spatial terms.

Given that the rear of the property would be largely screened from view and only
prominently visible from the south and elevated ground from afar, it can be accepted that in
visual terms, the effect on openness would be more limited than would otherwise be the
case. Nevertheless, harm still arises to the Green Belt.

Although the application must be considered in the context of existing circumstances the
mature hedgerows and trees are not protected from future removal. If these were removed,

Page 182



9.14

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

111

11.2

which cannot be assumed, this would exacerbate the impact of the proposals on openness.
Therefore, although a concern, only very limited weight can be given to this.

To conclude, although the loss of openness that would be directly attributable to the
application scheme would not be substantial in visual terms, it would add to the overall bulk
of the property in spatial terms. Therefore for the above reasons the proposal would cause
moderate / limited harm to the openness of the Green Belt in addition to the harm attributed
by reason of its inappropriateness, of which is attached substantial weight.

CHARACTER OF THE SURROUNDING AREA

Part 1 Policy 1.3 and Policy OL10 of the UDP state that all development, including within
the countryside, must achieve a high quality design, which is sensitive to the character of
the local area and surroundings. High standards of siting, design, materials and
landscaping will be expected.

Policy OL2(e) of the UDP requires the form, bulk, general design and external materials of
extensions to be in keeping with its surroundings and retain the inherent character and
scale of the original building. In more detail, Policy RED1 of the Residential Design SPD
states that an extension should apply an architectural style that reflects the existing
dwelling and that the scale and mass of the dwelling must not be significantly altered:-
“Extensions should be subordinate to the original building and not result in the significant
external remodelling of a dwelling’.

The proposal is for a part two storey, part single storey extension to the rear of the existing
dwelling. With regard to RED1 and RED4 of the SPD, Officers acknowledge that proposal
would replicate existing design features (materials, fenestration, and roof design) and so
would generally appear in keeping with the architectural style of the existing house and
surrounding properties. In terms of overall scale, it can be noted that viewed in
combination with the existing side extension, the proposal would completely enclose the
side and rear elevations of the original dwelling and so would represent a large addition to
the original building; however this would not be considered detrimental to the character and
appearance of the existing dwelling.

Overall, the proposed extension is considered compliant with Policies 1.3 and H10 of the
UDP and the Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document in respect of visual
amenity.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

As part of its underlying drive to promote sustainable development, paragraph 127(f) of the
revised National Planning Policy Framework states that a high standard of amenity should
always be sought for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. Policy H10 of
the UDP also states that new development should have no unacceptable impact on the
amenity of neighbouring properties through noise, loss of privacy, overshadowing or traffic.

In order to prevent overshadowing and / or a reduced outlook for neighbours, the Council
limits the size of single storey rear extensions using a 60 degree line rule and two storey
rear extensions using a 45 degree line rule. If a neighbour has an existing extension and
this is the nearest habitable room window, the rule should be applied from the extension.
To further protect the privacy of neighbours, Policy RED2 requires minimum separation
distances between two directly facing habitable room windows (18m) and an existing
window and a blank wall (10m — single storey height / 14 — two storey height).

Page 183



11.3

11.4

11.5

12.

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

In this instance, the proposed single storey rear extension would not conflict with the 60
degree angle rule when measured from the nearest rear facing habitable room windows to
No.3 Miller Hey, compliant with Policy RED3.

No properties are situated within close proximity to the rear of No.4 Miller Hey, or to the
side of the property. As a result, the proposal complies with the requirements of Policy
RED?2.

In light of the above, Officers are satisfied that the proposal would not result in harm to the
residential amenities of the neighbouring occupiers in respect of light, outlook or privacy
compliant with Policy H10 of the UDP and the Residential Design SPD.

HIGHWAY SAFETY

The scheme would not result in the loss of parking. As such the scheme is considered to
be acceptable in relation to Highway Safety, compliant with Policy RED12 of the SPD.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Application of the relevant section of the National Planning Policy Framework

The applicant has argued that when considering the principle of the development,
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council (TMBC) has mischaracterised the proposed
development and is incorrect to consider the proposal as ‘the extension or alteration of a
building’ under paragraph 145(c) and should rather be considering the proposal under
the exception detailed within paragraph 145 (g) since the proposal utilises land which has
already been developed into a conservatory, patio and ‘second storey balcony’. Therefore,
the proposal “simply amounts to redevelopment of previously developed land within one
residential plot where any ‘openness’ has long ceased”. For reference, Paragraph 145(g)
relates to:-

“limited infilling or the partial or complete re-development of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:

- Not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or

- Not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the
development would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an
identified affordable housing need within the area of the local planning authority”

Officers consider the assessment of the proposal against 145(g) to be incorrect. In the
view of Officers, the proposal clearly represents an extension to an existing building and so
should therefore be assessed against 145(c). Whilst Officers acknowledge the argument
presented, the application should be considered on the basis of 145(c).

A case for Very Special Circumstances (VSCs)

As stated in paragraph 144 of the Framework, VSCs will not exist unless the potential
harm to the Green Belt by reason of its inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting
from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. The applicant has put
forward the following as other considerations:-

Previous decisions (inconsistency)

It has been argued that if planning permission were to be refused for this application, it
would be inconsistent with TMBCs decision in 2017 to retrospectively approve an
application at No.8 Miller Hey (neighbouring property) to split the one dwelling into two
separate residential units, in addition to its previous extensions.

Page 184



13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

13.10

13.11

Officers acknowledge the previous development, which the applicant has cited above.
However, each application is assessed on its own merits and based on its own site specific
circumstances. Since the approval of development to No.8 Miller Hey (2009-2011),
National planning policy has evolved — the Residential Design SPD has also been
introduced, which now provides clear guidance as to scale, mass etc. The previous was
considered subservient and not dominant, so it was concluded not to be a disproportionate
addition.

In this particular case, the current extension now proposed in addition to those already
constructed, would in the view of Officers comprise a disproportionate addition to the
original house. Paragraph 145(c) is clear in stating that the size of an extension or
alteration should be considered against the size of the original building, as opposed to the
existing building. As a result, the proposal is by definition inappropriate development in the
Green Belt, which should not be approved except in very special circumstances. In this
instance, the previous extension and subdivision of No.8 Miller Hey does not clearly
outweigh the harm identified.

In the view of Officers, it is important to note that whilst the scale of the development would
not be detrimental to the appearance of the dwellinghouse (in terms of character and visual
amenity), it would result in moderate harm to the openness of the Green Belt, by reason of
the additional bulk and mass - heightening the density and urbanised nature of the
site, which would be visible from longer ranging views.

Permitted development as a fall-back position
The applicant has outlined that the following development, should the current application be
refused, could / will be constructed under permitted development:-

“The construction of a large additional garage building up to 4 m in height and larger in

floor space than the incremental parts of the Proposed Re-Development.

e The conversion of the existing garage for incidental use as a playroom or office space.

e From Monday 31 August 2020 the addition of an additional storey of up to 3.5m above
the original Property, which would consist of significantly more floor space and volume
(likely two additional bedrooms and a bathroom) than the Proposed Re-Development
(subject only to the prior notification procedure which, having taken advice, the
Applicant is confident no issues should arise under).

e The construction of additional outbuildings in the garden of the Property including for
leisure use.

e The construction of a porch at the rear of the Property underneath the existing balcony

structure (but over the existing patio area).”

It is correct that Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order (England) 2015 (as amended) makes provision for some types of
development without requiring planning permission. Part 1 enables “Development within
the curtilage of a dwellinghouse” and includes development such as minor extensions and
the erection of outbuildings.

However, the site location plan submitted with the application suggests the curtilage is only
of a size that would allow for very limited opportunities for further extensions under these
provisions. Whilst it is noted that other adjacent land is owned by the applicant it is
questionable whether this constitutes part of the dwelling’s curtilage because it is edged in
blue. This therefore places some doubt as to whether some of the potential fall-back
positions referred to above can actually be carried out without planning permission.

In any case, the degree of weight to be given to a fall-back position depends on whether or
not these would be equally or more harmful than the scheme proposed.

Page 185



13.12 In consideration of the above, the outcome of the following appeal decisions are considered
to be material:-

e Referring back to a recent appeal decision (APP/R0660/W/18/3193413), a Planning
Inspector made reference to ‘openness’ as having both a visual and spatial dimension
and that the absence of visual intrusion does not, in itself, mean there is nho impact on
the openness of the Green Belt. Though the application related to a replacement
dwelling (and therefore subject to a different exception under paragraph 145 of the
Framework), the test on the openness of the Green Belt is considered to be broadly
similar. In the above appeal decision it was found that whilst the material fall-back
development, which broadly comprised of single storey extensions with a modest
increase at first floor, had a greater impact on the spatial dimension of the openness of
the Green Belt (through having a greater volume and occupying more three
dimensional space / footprint than the proposed dwelling), the impact it would have on
the visual dimension would be significantly less. This is for the reason that much of the
development would be single-storey and therefore would appear less intrusive and
prominent within the landscape. By reason of their height and overall size, the fall-back
extensions also appeared subsidiary to the main dwelling — reducing the overall bulk
and dominance. As a result, despite the greater volume and greater footprint, the fall-
back position was considered to be less harmful than that of the proposed replacement
dwelling, which comprised a greater proportion of first floor development.

e Similarly, as found in appeal decision APP/G4240/D/19/3235237, the appellant had
secured a Certificate of Lawful Development for single storey side and rear extensions
to the building, an alteration to the roof and the erection of an outbuilding for use as a
home gym and store. This was in addition to a recently expired ‘Prior Notification for a
Larger Home Extension’. These matters were therefore considered to be viable fall-
back positions by the Planning Inspector. The Inspector concluded, however, that the
fall-back position differed from the appeal proposal in that the form of development
would be restricted to single storey elements, with some limited alteration to the roof.
Though the outbuildings and extensions proposed under permitted development would
be of a lesser combined volume and would be more sprawling than the proposed
scheme, they would be subordinate in size and would not add to the bulk of the original
property. For these reasons the proposal seeking planning permission was concluded
to have a greater impact on openness.

e In appeal decision APP/L3245/D/19/3222553 (which relates to the erection of a two
storey side extension to a dwelling house), the Planning Inspector found the fall-back
proposal to be less harmful to the openness of the Green Belt than the proposed
development. Evidence submitted referred to potential fall-back options in the form of
development that might be implemented without seeking planning permission under the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 (as amended) (GPDO) to construct a different form of
development at the appeal site. However, the Planning Inspector considered there to
be limited information within the evidence regarding the detail of such permitted
development. In any event, it was concluded by the Planning Inspector that even if the
construction of an extension under permitted development was possible in the location
of the appeal scheme, the resultant structure would be much smaller than the appeal
scheme, due to the single storey restriction specified in the GPDO, resulting in a
reduced height and volume. Therefore, the Planning Inspector gave limited weight to
the potential permitted development fall-back.

13.13 Reflecting on the above, it can be understood that permitted development as a fall-back
position is a material consideration. However, the nature and form of the fall-back
development and the relationship it bears with the main dwelling, when considering the
proposal under paragraph 145(c) and on the openness and permanence of the Green Belt,
is very important.

Page 186



13.14

13.15

14.

14.1

14.2

15.

151

In the view of Officers, having regard to the above, the identified fall-back position is
considered to be less harmful to the openness and permanence of the Green Belt than the
proposed combined two storey and single storey rear extension, due to the single storey
and subordinate nature of the development. The bulk, depth and mass of the existing
dwelling would be significantly increased by the current proposal and due to the wrap-
around form of the development it would engulf the form and proportions of the original
dwelling. Though not overly prominent, the dominance of the proposal would be
appreciable from outside of the site, which would result in harm to the openness of Green
Belt, as identified earlier in the report. Officers are unconvinced that the permitted
development fall-back position would cause significantly greater harm to the character and
appearance of the dwelling or surrounding area than the current proposal. Consequently,
for these reasons considered cumulatively, the fall-back position carries limited weight in
favour of the proposal.

Lack of larger housing in the Borough

The application proposed is for an extension to existing development within the Green Belt.
Whilst there are some positives in creating one larger dwelling it would represent a very
limited contribution to larger housing in the Borough. It is therefore afforded limited weight
and fails to independently, or in combination with the fall-back positions referred to above,
clearly outweigh the identified harm.

CONCLUSION

The development constitutes inappropriate development and would cause harm to
openness of the Green Belt. Paragraph 144 of the Framework states that substantial
weight should be given to this identified harm.

As set out above, other considerations put forward in support of the proposal attract limited
weight, and does not clearly outweigh the harm identified to the Green Belt by reason of its
inappropriateness and the harm identified to its openness. As such, the very special
circumstances required to justify inappropriate development do not exist. In conclusion,
proposals would conflict with the overarching aims and objectives of the Framework, and
Policy OL2 of the Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004).

RECOMMENDATION:

Refuse, for the following reason:-

By reason of its scale, bulk and massing, the proposed extension represents a
disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original building. It therefore
comprises inappropriate development within the Green Belt which is, by definition, harmful
and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. It has not been
demonstrated that the harm to the Green Belt caused by its inappropriateness is clearly
outweighed by other considerations. The proposal is therefore contrary to UDP Policy OL2
and the National Planning Policy Framework, in particular paragraphs 133, 134, 143, 144
and 145.

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



68T abed

Gable

]

Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
tractor prior to t of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

Mr M Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
Mossley

Existing Elevations

M A HIES

O 0O O O
CmTTeTnTT T T T T T eY— N
6 ! — —
Dqﬁ) ==
1:100
2;'n_ ____0 2m 4m 6m 8m

1:100 a3 736'03

om | Architecture




This page is intentionally left blank



T6T abed

bedroom 3

A

bathroom

A}

bedroom 2

I,

____"\% A T T I T T T HH T i x____________

Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

Al information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

~ MrM Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
Mossley

Existing First Floor

736-02

M A H E

bedroom 1
75,_
77777777 7T,
) ()
e
1:50
mo 0

1m

2m

3m

4m

= Architecture

1:50 a3




This page is intentionally left blank



€6T abed

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

Al information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.

Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

Mr M Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
Mossley

Existing Ground Floor

736-01

M A H E

I
|
|
I“ — 1
| S ﬂ
|
. | |
I conservatory ‘ ‘
|
|
— - T 7
g
é kitchen
7 /
% o= E—
lé | dining room
% i
g
% ~
g |
% living space
% > . g
g
n
|
|
| 1:& o

1m

2m

3m

4m

= Architecture

1:50 a3




This page is intentionally left blank



G6T abed

Location Plan 1:200

Location Plan 1:1250

e

Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by

tor prior to
must be reported to the client.

Al information hereon in is t
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the w
permission from the designer.

the copyright

of the designer.
ritten

t of works. Any variations

Mr M Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
Mossley

Location Plan

M A HE

Architecture

1:1250 a3 729'00




This page is intentionally left blank



Photograph 1 — Existing rear elevation showing conservatory and garden area

Page 197



Photograph 2 - Existing rear elevation showing suspended rear balcony and conservatory

) i u:ﬂ,, / / ,ﬂm r..
fr ﬁ;ﬁ /

_,_
- U - / '/.

,__,.,..ﬁ,.c_.,iﬁ

*

\

, g 114\

P
‘U

"ﬂ.
f

Page 198



Photograph 3 — Side gable elevation of existing house showing existing two storey side extension
and associated projecting balcony

Page 199



Photograph 4 - side gable of No.4 Miller Hey, side driveway and detached garage

B \
AR
) )

45

7%

>

.

QN
SR

Page 200



Photograph 5 — Front of adjoining property (No.3 Miller Hey) and No.4 Miller Hey (showing side
extension)

pe

|

Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank



£0¢ abed

Gable

Gable

NNSSSSYS YN W

Materials:-

walls and roof to match existing;

doors out of the playroom would be timber

The bi-folds are TBC -

windows will all be timber coloured and grained UPVC

black rainwater goods

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

Al information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

Mr M Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
- Mossley

Proposed Elevations

- MAHE

1:100
2m 0 2m 4m 6m 8m

1:100 a3 736‘06

o Architecture




This page is intentionally left blank



G0g abed

+—

—1
bedroom 3
bathroom
————
AH
bedroom 2

bedroom 4

bedroom 1

e ()

zzzZs) Li‘

___"QWW R

All levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
tract ( t of works. Any varigtions

prior to
must be reported to the client.

All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.

Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

~ MrM Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
. Mossley

Proposed
. First Floor

736-05

M A HIEL

1:50
1m 0

1m

2m

3m

4m

= Architecture

1:50 a3




This page is intentionally left blank



10z abed

kitchen

living space

playroom

dining room

—_—

Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
contractor prior to commencemt of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

~ MrM Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,
Mossley

Proposed :
Ground Floor :

736-04

M AHEBE

1:50
1m 0

1m

2m

3m

4m

1:50 a3

= Architecture




This page is intentionally left blank



60¢ abed

r Hey

Al levels and dimensions must be checked on site by
tractor prior to t of works. Any variations
must be reported to the client.

All information hereon in is the copyright of the designer.
Copying in full or in part is forbidden without the written
permission from the designer.

Mr M Crane

Extension to 4 Miller hey,

Mossley

Proposed Site Plan

Location Plan 1:200

M A H E

_-_—— - o = Architecture

120003 /29-07




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7.a)
| @@39 The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 4 June 2020

by Phillip J G Ware BSc(Hons) DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 11 August 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/TPO/G4240/7652

18 Water Gate, Audenshaw, M34 5QP

e The appeal is made under regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 against a refusal to grant consent to
undertake work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order.

e The appeal is made by Mrs S Lennox against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref: 19/00065/TPO, dated 2 September 2019, was refused by notice
dated 26 September 2019.
The work proposed is the felling of a beech tree (T3).
The relevant Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is the Tameside Metropolitan Borough
Council, Slate Lane, Audenshaw (B5) TPO 2001 which was confirmed on 2 March 2001.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main issues

2. The main issues in this case are the impact of the removal of the tree on the
character and appearance of the area and whether sufficient justification has
been demonstrated for the proposed felling.

Reasons

3. The property is set back from the Watergate and is close to Slate Lane. The
tree in question is located within the garden of the property, close to Slate
Lane.

4. The tree is a mature specimen, which makes a significant contribution to the
mature and verdant streetscene along Slate Lane. It is visible to those using
the Lane on foot or in cars, as well as those other properties which give onto
the Lane. Its loss would cause significant harm to the area.

5. Given that, any reasons given to justify the removal of the tree need to be
convincing. It is to those reasons to which I now turn.

6. From my inspection of the tree it appears to appears in good health and there
is no sign or decay or damage. It is located a distance for the house and,
although I can understand the appellant’s concern about the potential effect on

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 211


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/TPO/G4240/7652

10.

11.

12.

her property, there is no evidence before me that this is a problem at the
present or that it may become so in the future.

I can appreciate the issues related to seeds, nuts and leaves which the
appellant has emphasised - especially in the particular circumstances in which
she finds herself and which she has detailed. However the presence of large
trees near to a property is not unusual, and the inconvenience of leaf litter and
similar issues, particularly in an area defined by a mature landscape and which
provides an attractive place in which to live, is not uncommon. This is not a
persuasive reason to allow the appeal.

I appreciate the replacement planting could be secured by a condition.
However it would take many years for any new tree(s) to make anything like a
comparable contribution to the amenity of the area.

I note that another tree has already been felled at the other end of the garden.
However this was apparently due to issues caused by that particular tree, and
has little bearing on this case.

I have had due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) contained in
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, which sets out the need to eliminate
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality
of opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it. Age and health issues have
been raised in this case and the appeal has been made by a person who has a
protected characteristic for the purposes of the PSED. But it does not follow
from the PSED that the appeal should succeed, although I have taken the
equality implications into consideration.

With any application to fell protected trees a balancing exercise needs to be
undertaken. The essential need for the works applied for must be weighed
against the resultant loss to the amenity of the area. In this case there has
simply been insufficient evidence put forward to justify the removal of the
protected tree.

Thus, having considered all matters, I find that the loss of the tree would result
in significant harm to the character and appearance of the area. Furthermore,
insufficient justification has been provided to fell the tree and the appeal should
be dismissed.

Phillip Ware

Inspector

httDs://www.qov.uk/DIanninq—inspecto@age 212 2


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Item 7.b)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 15 July 2020

by A M Nilsson BA (Hons) DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 3 August 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/20/3253884
70 Tennyson Avenue, Dukinfield SK16 5DP

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mrs Hilton against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

The application Ref 20/00040/FUL, dated 20 January 2020, was refused by notice dated
19 March 2020.

The development proposed is a two-storey side extension and front porch.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of
the area.

Reasons

3.

The appeal property is a detached two-storey dwelling. It is located in a
predominantly residential area where there are various property styles, many
of which have been extended.

The appeal property is prominently positioned on a corner plot at the junction
between Tennyson Avenue and Macauley Close. Tennyson Avenue curves
round the site and there is a junction with Milton Close to the rear of the site
leaving the appeal property highly noticeable at the confluence of three streets.
By reason of the siting of the appeal property and the surrounding dwellings,
the area around the site has an open and spacious feel which positively
contributes to the character and appearance of the area.

The appeal proposal would be constructed to the side of the property on land
that currently forms a side garden. It would result in the removal of a
significant proportion of this garden, which I have identified is a positive
feature of the area. The size and scale of the extension would intensify the
harm that would be caused and leave the resulting dwelling appearing exposed
and inharmonious with the makeup of the surrounding area.

Despite the use of materials to match and the proposal being set-back and
stepped-down from the main body of the dwelling, the bulk of the proposal
would be dominant and prominent, particularly when viewed from the junctions

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 213


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3253884

10.

between Tennyson Avenue and Macauley Close and Milton Close. Whilst
reasonably localised in its extent, the effect of the scheme would be to diminish
unacceptably the character and appearance of the host building with
consequent harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area.

I have been referred to side extensions at 136 Tennyson Avenue, 268 Yew Tree
Lane and 16 Laycock Drive which I was able to see on my site visit. Although I
do not have full details of these cases, I find that there are different site
circumstances to that of the appeal proposal. I have in any event determined
the appeal on its own individual merits.

I therefore conclude that the proposed extension would have a significantly
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area. It would be
contrary to Policies C1 and H10 of the Tameside Unitary Development Plan
(2004) Collectively, these policies require, amongst other things, that
developments pay particular attention to the relationship between buildings
and their setting, and be of high quality, complementing or enhancing the
character and appearance of the surrounding area.

The proposal would also be contrary to guidance contained in the Residential
Design Supplementary Planning Document (2010) which outlines, amongst
other things, that side extensions on corner plots must not detract from the
street scene.

The proposal would conflict with guidance contained in the National Planning
Policy Framework (the Framework) (2019) that outlines, amongst other things,
that planning decisions should ensure that developments add to the overall
quality of the area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture; are
sympathetic to local character, including the surrounding built environment;
and maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of spaces,
creating distinctive places to live; and that permission should be refused for
development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area.

Conclusion

11.

For the reasons given above, I therefore conclude that the appeal be
dismissed.

A M Nilsson
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2142


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Item 7.c)

% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 13 July 2020 by Hilary Senior BA (Hons) MCD MRTPI

by Susan Ashworth BA (Hons) BPL MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 29 July 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/20/3249221
22 Sandringham Avenue, Audenshaw M34 5NE

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Gareth Buckley against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 19/01071/FUL, dated 11 December 2019, was refused by notice
dated 5 February 2020.

e The development proposed is first floor extension over existing rear ground floor
extension to enlarge 2 number first floor bedrooms.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a first floor
extension over existing rear ground floor extension to enlarge 2 number first
floor bedrooms at 22 Sandringham Avenue, Audenshaw M34 5NE in accordance
with the terms of the application, Ref 19/01071/FUL, dated 11 December 2019,
subject to the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years from
the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: Existing and Proposed Drawings 001 rev B

3) The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

Appeal Procedure

2. The site visit was undertaken by an Appeal Planning Officer whose
recommendation is set out below and to which the Inspector has had regard
before deciding the appeal.

Main Issue

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of the
occupiers of 24 Sandringham Avenue with particular regard to outlook and
light.

Reasons

4, 22 Sandringham Avenue is a situated within a relatively modern residential
area with a mix of housing types and styles, although there are predominantly

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 215


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3249221

10.

detached dwellings in the vicinity of the appeal site. The dwellings are set in
staggered arrangement such that the host property is set forward of the
neighbouring property, 24 Sandringham Ave. The appeal property is a
previously extended brick built detached dwelling.

The proposal is to introduce a first floor rear extension above the existing
single storey extension. The Council consider that in design terms the proposal
is acceptable and meets the guidance in the Tameside Residential Design
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). From all I have seen and read I
have no reason to disagree.

24 Sandringham Avenue is a detached split-level property orientated so that
windows predominantly face the front and rear. The Council is concerned about
the impact of the proposal on a side facing ground floor window fitted with
patterned glass which faces the appeal site.

Policy RED 2 of the SPD sets out distances between windows and buildings
which new development is expected to meet in order to maintain an acceptable
standard of privacy and sunlight. The policy requires that from a habitable
room window to blank wall, the separation distance should be 10 metres where
the wall is single storey in height and 14 metres where it is two storeys. In this
case it is acknowledged that the separation distance between the habitable
window and the existing extension does not currently meet the guidance in the
SPD due to the layout, orientation and close proximity of the dwellings. It is
also clear that the appeal proposal would not meet the guidance. However, the
SPD goes on to state that a reduction in the separation distances would be
permitted where it can be demonstrated that there would be no detrimental
impact on the neighbouring property.

There is disagreement between the parties as to whether the obscure glazed
window is the sole window in the room it serves. There is no conclusive
evidence before the appeal to confirm the use of the room or the ground floor
layout of the property. Even so, I noted the presence of a high close boarded
fence on the boundary between the properties which the window faces at close
distance. Due to the proximity of the fence and the existing ground floor
extension of the appeal property it is apparent that there is little outlook from
the window. Therefore, the addition of a second storey on the existing single
storey extension would not reduce the outlook from the window to a significant
degree. In addition, due to its orientation and the proximity of the appeal
property, the window is likely to receive little direct sunlight and limited
daylight. The addition of a first-floor extension would lead to some reduction in
daylight although again, given the existing context, this is likely to be limited.

On my site visit I noted the presence of what appeared to be a second window
on the side elevation of No 24. No objection has been raised by the Council to
the impact of the development on this window, which appeared to be fitted
with clear glass. Given the proximity of the window to the rear elevation of the
dwelling and its relationship with the appeal property, any impact on the
window in terms of outlook and light is also likely to be limited.

Consequently, whilst I acknowledge that the proposal would have a limited
effect on the living conditions of the neighbouring occupiers, given the context
of the site and the existing relationship between the properties the impact of
the proposal would not be unacceptable.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2162


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3249221

11. The proposal would therefore be consistent with Policies 1.3 and H10 of the
Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004) which seek to ensure that
development does not have an unacceptable impact on the living conditions of
neighbouring occupiers, as well as with para 127 of the National Planning Policy
Framework which seeks to ensure that development provides a high standard
of amenity for existing and future users.

Conditions

12. In addition to the standard timescale condition, it is necessary to impose a
condition specifying the relevant drawings as this provides certainty. A
condition relating to materials is also necessary in the interests of safeguarding
the character and appearance of the area.

Conclusion and Recommendation

13. For the reasons given above and having regard to all other matters raised, I
recommend that the appeal is allowed.

Hilary Senior
APPEAL PLANNING OFFICER

Inspector’s Decision

14. I have considered all the submitted evidence and the Appeal Planning Officer’s
report and on that basis the appeal is allowed.

Susan Ashworth
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 23' 7


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7.d)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 21 July 2020

by Andrew McGlone BSc MCD MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 23 July 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/20/3251980
29 Mollets Wood, Denton M34 3TW

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Scott Piddington against the decision of Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council.

e The application Ref 20/00094/FUL, dated 17 February 2020, was refused by notice
dated 23 April 2020.

e The development proposed is a single-storey rear extension, two-storey
rear/side extension.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main Issue

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on the character and
appearance of the area.

Reasons

3. The appeal property is a two-storey semi-detached dwelling located within an
area characterised by residential properties. The road, in front of the appeal
property, bends slightly towards its junction with Broadhurst. As a result, three
detached two storey dwellings to the west of the property are orientated at an
angle. This means that the flank boundary of the appeal site is splayed, with
the plot widening towards the rear. A driveway is to the side, while there is a
modest sized front garden and an enclosed rear garden.

4. 1Itis clear from the submitted plans that the proposed side and rear extension
would be set back from the front elevation and down from the host dwelling’s
ridge line. In this regard, the appeal scheme would accord with Policy RED1 of
the Tameside Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
However, this policy also sets out that: the scale and mass of the dwelling
must not be significantly altered by an extension. The width and depth of the
proposed side and rear extension would, in my view, be of a significant scale
and mass despite the considerable set back proposed from the front elevation.

5. Even if I judged the scale and massing of the proposal to be acceptable, SPD
Policy RED5 explains that the roof of a side extension should be in the same
style as the original house. The proposed roof form would not be the same as
the host dwelling’s which is characteristic of properties in the area. The

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 219


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3251980

proposal’s desigh and external appearance would not therefore respect the
local townscape character. I consider that this, in combination with the scale
and massing of the proposed side and rear extension, would lead to a form of
development which would contrast sharply with the host dwelling and the
surrounding environment. Moreover, the proposed design would unbalance the
semi-detached pairing that the appeal property forms part of. The effect of the
proposed development would be harmful especially when the appeal property is
viewed from the junction of Broadhurst and Mollets Wood. In part this is
caused by the bend of the road, but it remains the case that development
should be sensitive to the character of the local area. The use of matching
materials and landscaping would not overcome the harm that I have identified.

6. My attention has been drawn by the appellant to a number of schemes locally.
The examples at 30, 31 and 32 Broadhurst are not directly comparable to the
appeal scheme as they either have a matching roof form or are to the rear. I
do not have full details of the schemes at 16 and 17 Mollets Wood or 33 and 37
Broadhurst before me or the reasons why the Council may have reached the
conclusion that they did. Hence, I attach these examples little weight.

7. I recognise the design would allow for off-street parking and the appellant’s
point about the width of the proposal and permitted development rights, but
this appeal relates to a scheme that seeks planning permission for
development. I have also determined the appeal based on the plans that are
before me even if the appellant is willing to amend their scheme.

8. As such, I conclude that the proposed development would result in significant
harm on the character and appearance of the area. Thus, the proposal would
not accord with saved Policies 1.3, C1 and H10 of The Tameside Unitary
Development Plan Written Statement, SPD Policies RED1 and RED5 and
paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework. Jointly these seek,
among other things, the layout, designh and external appearance of proposed
housing developments to be of high quality and be of a design that
complements or enhances the townscape character and appearance of the
surrounding area.

Conclusion

9. For the reasons set out above, I conclude that the appeal is dismissed.

Andrew McGlone
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2202


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Iltem 7.e)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 9 June 2020

by M Cryan BA(Hons) DipTP MSc MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 20 July 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/Z/20/3247345
402 Manchester Road, Droylsden, Manchester M43 6QX

The appeal is made under Regulation 17 of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 against a refusal to grant express consent.
The appeal is made by Mr Ben Porte of Clear Channel UK against the decision of
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council.

The application Ref 19/01075/ADV, dated 12 December 2019, was refused by notice
dated 6 February 2020.

The advertisement proposed is the installation of an illuminated 48-sheet advertisement
display (6m by 3m) on gable wall.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issues

2. The main issues are the effect of the proposal on the amenity of the area, and
on public safety.

Reasons

Amenity

3. The appeal site comprises the gable wall of 402 Manchester Road, a two-storey
end terrace house. The host property is not a listed building, nor is it located
within a conservation area. The proposal is to mount a digital 48-sheet
advertisement measuring approximately 6m wide by 3m high on the west-
facing flank wall.

4. The appeal site’s location marks something of a transition from the area around

Edge Lane Metrolink station to the west, which includes a range of retail and
transport uses, and the part of Manchester Road to the east which is primarily,
although not exclusively, residential in character. The advertisement would be
mounted on a west-facing gable, and would therefore largely be seen by people
travelling eastwards along Manchester Road. While it may be expected that
there would be a greater degree of signage, illumination and so on in the area
around the Metrolink station, the proposed advertisement would be a large and
prominent illuminated feature seen against the end wall of the terrace to which
it would be affixed. In this context, it would appear as an incongruous and
dominant addition to a group of modestly-sized domestic buildings.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 221


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/2/20/3247345

Given the siting of the proposed advertisement, it would not be seen from
within No 402 or the other dwellings on the north side of Manchester Road to
the east. While it would be visible from other nearby dwellings, including

Nos 385-391 on the south side of Manchester Road, proposed controls on the
advertisement’s luminance would ensure that unacceptable harm was not
caused to the amenity of occupiers of those buildings arising from the
illumination of the advertisement. However, this would not mitigate the effect
of the proposed advertisement on the residential block to which it would be
attached. I therefore conclude that because of its size, siting and illumination
the proposed advertisement would adversely affect the visual amenity of the
area.

In accordance with the Regulations I have taken into account the provisions of
the development plan so far as they are material, although they have not by
themselves been decisive. The proposal conflicts with Policies 1.3, 1.5 and C1
of the 2004 Tameside Unitary Development Plan, which among other things
seek to encourage development which enhances the quality of the borough’s
built environment.

Public safety

7.

The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) recognises that advertisements are
intended to attract attention, but advises that proposed advertisements at
points where drivers need to take more care are more likely to affect public
safety, including at junctions, or other places where local conditions present
traffic hazards!. It also lists the main types of advertisement which may cause
danger to road users. These include those which because of their size or siting
would obstruct or confuse a road-user’s view or reduce the clarity or
effectiveness of a traffic sign or signal. In addition, it refers to internally
illuminated signs (incorporating either flashing or static lights), including those
using light emitting diode (LED) technology, those directly visible from any part
of the road, and those subject to frequent changes of display?.

This does not, of course, mean that all internally-illuminated or digital displays
would be harmful to public safety. However, Manchester Road forms part of the
A662 between Manchester city centre and Ashton-Under-Lyne and the evidence
before me indicates that it is generally a busy road, although at the time of my
site visit many of the ‘lockdown’ restrictions in respect of Covid-19 were in
place and consequently road traffic was somewhat lighter than might usually
be the case. The proposed advertisement would be located close to the traffic
light controlled junction of Cooper Street and Manchester Road and, while
Manchester Road is wide and reasonably straight and level to the west of the
appeal site, for eastbound traffic two lanes merge into one in front of the
appeal site. The Metrolink tram line also merges into the single traffic lane.

The combination of merging lanes and, the presence of the tramway, mean
that it is a location where drivers are likely to need to pay particular care and
attention, especially those who are less familiar with the road layout. The
proposed advertisement would be in a position where it would form the
backdrop to the traffic signals on the left hand side of Manchester Road in
many views over longer and shorter distances. In this context, I consider that,
because of its siting, size, illumination and changes of display, the proposed

! paragraph: 067 Reference ID: 18b-067-20140306
2 paragraph: 068 Reference ID: 18b-068-20140306

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2222


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/2/20/3247345

10.

advertisement would unduly distract or confuse the eye of motorists and would
lead to an increased risk of accidents. My particular concern in this respect is
the possibility of a driver failing to see or respond to a red light, thereby
causing a collision with pedestrian, cyclist, tram or other road vehicle.

I acknowledge that evidence before me indicates that the junction does not
have anything other than a very minor accident record over the past five years,
but of course there is currently no advertisement in place to cause a
distraction. Overall, I conclude that the proposal would be harmful to public
safety, arising from its unacceptable on highway safety described above. It
would therefore be contrary to the provisions of the Framework which seek to
control advertisements in the interests of public safety.

Conclusion

11.

For the reasons given above the appeal is dismissed.

M Cryan

Inspector

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2?323


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7.1)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 9 June 2020

by M Cryan BA(Hons) DipTP MSc MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 16 July 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/D/20/3244243
94 Granada Road, Denton M34 2LA

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Steven Wynne against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 19/00650/FUL, dated 19 July 2019, was refused by notice dated
14 October 2019.

e The development proposed is a single storey rear extension and two storey side
extension.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for a single storey
rear extension and two storey side extension at 94 Granada Road, Denton
M34 2LA in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref 19/00650/FUL,
dated 19 July 2019, and the plans submitted with it, subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: Proposed Block Plan (Drawing
No 17.1670.3), Proposed Details (Drawing No 17.1670.2E).

3) The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of
the extension hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing
dwelling.

Application for costs

2. An application for costs was made by Mr Steven Wynne against Tameside
Metropolitan Borough Council. This application is the subject of a separate
Decision.

Main Issue

3. The main issue is the effect of the extension on the character and appearance
of the area.

Reasons

4. The appeal property is a two-storey semi-detached house, brick-built and with
a tiled hipped pitched roof, which is typical in appearance of the neat

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 225


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3244243

predominantly residential area in which it sits. It is situated on a plot at the
corner of Granada Road and Repton Avenue, with garden areas to the front,
side and rear of the property. The shallow front garden is enclosed by a low
brick wall with railings above, while the side and rear garden is screened from
the street by a wooden fence approximately 1.8m high. A gate provides access
from Repton Avenue to an off-street parking space in the rear garden.

5. The proposal is to erect a two-storey side extension, which would project
around 3.4m from the side elevation and have a length of around 9.2m. The
single storey element at the rear would project approximately 3m from the
existing rear elevation of the host property. The submitted drawings show a
double bay window on the front elevation, a lean-to roof on the single storey
part, and a hipped roof on the two-storey side extension to match the roof of
the existing property. The proposed materials are brick and tiles to match the
existing.

6. The extension would complement the style and proportions of the host
dwelling, and the houses in the wider area. It would comply with guidance in
the Council’s March 2010 Residential Design Supplementary Planning
Document (the SPD) in that its roof would be of the same style as the original
house, and the ridge line would not extend above that of the existing roof.

7. In certain other regards, the proposal would not comply with the guidance in
the SPD. The side extension would not be setback from the front elevation of
the host property, and the side elevation of the extension would sit forward of
the front building line of the houses in Repton Avenue to the rear of the appeal
site. As a consequence, the extension would read as being subordinate to the
host dwelling. However, the well-defined building line on Granada Road would
not be broken, and because of the space at the entrance to Repton Avenue
there would not be a harmful terracing effect when the development was
viewed along Granada Road. Seen from within Repton Avenue, the separation
between the rear of the appeal property and the neighbouring house at No 1 is
such that the extension would not, in this case, dominate or be harmful to the
street scene in that road.

8. There are several examples of extensions nearby which are similar to the
current proposal in terms of their design, scale and massing. These include
No 92 Granada Road, on the opposite corner of Repton Avenue from No 94,
and Nos 100 and 102 Granada Road which are on opposite sides of the
entrance to Melton Avenue. These are all very close to No 94, and from the
street outside the appeal property can be viewed together. They therefore help
to define the character and appearance of the area surrounding the appeal site.
Although the Council is of the view that these other cases highlight how
harmful such extensions can be to the locality, that assertion is not explained
or justified in the evidence before me, nor supported by what I observed at the
time of my site visit, where they appeared in keeping with the generally neat
and orderly character of the area. While the proposed extension does not
therefore comply with every element of the guidance within the SPD, it is
nonetheless in keeping with, rather than detrimental to, the character and
appearance of its immediate surroundings, which is the overall aim of the SPD.

9. Taking all the above points together, and notwithstanding the limited conflict
with some of the criteria set out in the SPD, I conclude that the extension
would not be unduly prominent or harmful to the character and appearance of

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 22062


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/D/20/3244243

the area. The proposal therefore complies with Policy H10 of the November
2004 Tameside Unitary Development Plan, which among other things seeks to
ensure that the layout, design and external appearance of housing
development complements the character and appearance of the surrounding
area. For the same reason it accords with the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framework in respect of design.

Conditions

10. In addition to the standard time limit condition I have specified the approved
plans so as to provide certainty. In order to protect the character and
appearance of the area I have also included a condition requiring materials
matching the existing dwelling to be used for the extension.

Conclusion

11. For the reasons given above the appeal is allowed.

M Cryan

Inspector

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2?327


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7.9)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 4 August 2020

by R Cooper BSc (Hons) MCD MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 17 August 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/W/20/3251879
12 Hall Avenue, Heyrod, Stalybridge SK15 3DF

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Anthony Jeffers against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

The application Ref 20/00056/FUL, dated 18 February 2020, was refused by notice
dated 14 April 2020.

The development proposed is rear decking.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Procedural Matters

2.

The development includes the change in use of the land to residential curtilage
and the erection of raised decking to the rear of the property. This is the
description of development on the Council’s decision notice. It is also referred
to in the appellant’s appeal form, and more accurately describes the proposal.

The Council’s decision notice refers to the proposal as retrospective. Based on
the information provided, supported by my observations during the site visit, 1
am satisfied that the development that has been carried out is the same as
that which has been applied for.

Main Issue

4.

The main issue is the effect of the development the living conditions of nearby
occupiers with regard to privacy and outlook.

Reasons

5.

The appeal site is located on Hall Avenue and is within a residential area.

Due to the topography of the land, the property is elevated above the dwellings
to the rear at 33, 35 and 37 Chamberlain Road. In particular, the private
garden at No 35 has a paved seating area directly adjacent to the rear
boundary shared with the appeal property.

The natural level of the rear garden at the appeal site slopes down towards 33
to 37 Chamberlin Road. The garden is landscaped into terraces to take account
of the fall in the land and provide level areas. The garden has been extended at
the rear, and decking has been constructed at two different levels, that are
linked by steps.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 229


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/20/3251879

7. The top and bottom decking meet the natural ground level of the garden
nearest the house. Each deck becomes increasingly elevated above the natural
level of the ground as they extend out towards the properties on Chamberlain
Road, creating two raised platforms.

8. The floor level of the decked areas sit above the height of the rear fencing at
Nos 33, 35 and 37. Due to their close proximity, standing on the outside edge
of both decks causes significant overlooking of these properties and their
private gardens. In particular, when stood on the lower deck, occupiers of the
appeal property can look directly down into the seating area of No 35.
Therefore, the proposal causes loss of privacy to the occupiers of Nos 33, 35
and 37.

9. Turning to outlook, a timber fence has been erected on the outside edge of
each of the decks, given their height they do not prevent overlooking, but they
do provide additional height to the structure which dominates the width of the
rear boundary shared with No 35. As a whole the development is overbearing
when viewed from the rear gardens of 33 to 37 Chamberlain Road. It is
particularly oppressive and encloses the seating area at No 35.

10. I acknowledge that the appellant has sought to reduce the impact of the
structure by painting it green and covering the outside of the fence panels with
camouflage netting. Whilst this tones down the colour of the materials, in my
view it does not lessen the harm caused by the scale and form of the structure.

11. The appellant states that a 2m gap has been left between the lower deck and
the rear fence of No 35, within which he has provided planting. However, based
on the evidence provided, supported by my observations onsite, this marginal
gap and low level planting would not overcome the harm identified above.

12. The appellant has provided photographs taken prior to the development. These
show that the rear of the properties on Chamberlain Road could already be
seen, albeit at a distance, from the appellant’s conservatory and rear garden.
However, this is not comparable to the effect of the decking, as it is
substantially closer and at a raised level. Therefore, this does not alter my
findings above.

13. I note that the appellant has tried to find a balance between overlooking and
loss of privacy, and that he has suggested increasing the height of the screens.
However, this would result in it being more overbearing and greater affecting
outlook. Therefore, it would not fully address the above matters.

14. Consequently, I conclude that the proposed development would cause loss of
privacy and would harm the outlook and subsequent living conditions of
occupiers of 33 to 37 Chamberlain Road. It would not accord with Policy 1.3
and H10(a) and (d) of The Tameside Unitary Development Plan (2004), and
Policy RD12 of the Tameside Residential Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document (2010) insofar as they relate to ensuring that proposals minimise
their impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.

Other Matters

15. I note the appellant’s comments with regards to the ownership of the land, that
other gardens have been extended, and whether the application for the change
of use was necessary. However, this is a matter for the Local Planning

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2302


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/20/3251879

Authority, and does not affect my findings with regards to the main issue
above.

16. I note the other concerns raised by nearby residents regarding noise and
disturbance, drainage, storage of materials beneath the decking, the effect on
property values, and verbal exchanges between the appellant and neighbouring
occupiers. However, these matters do not alter my findings on the main issue.

Conclusion

17. For the reasons given above, the appeal is dismissed.
R.Cooper

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2?81


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7.h)

' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 12 August 2020

by A M Nilsson BA (Hons) DipTP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 28 August 2020

Appeal Ref: APP/G4240/W/20/3253590
Land directly adjacent to 6 Green Hollow Fold, Stalybridge SK15 3RP

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Daniel Taylor against the decision of Tameside Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 19/00845/FUL, dated 8 October 2019, was refused by notice dated
9 December 2019.

e The development proposed is change of use of land to a private residential garden
ancillary to 6 Green Hollow Fold, Stalybridge and associated erection of boundary fence.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matter

2. I have taken the description of development from the Council’s Decision Notice
as this is a more precise description of the proposal.

Main Issue

3. The main issue is whether the proposed development would provide a suitable
location to form a private garden for the adjacent dwelling having regard to
open space provision.

Reasons

4. The appeal site comprises an area of open space adjacent to 6 Green Hollow
Fold which is a detached residential property. The site forms part of a corridor
of open space that runs through the residential area that follows the route of a
watercourse. There is a public footpath that runs through the wider open space
that is on the opposite side of the watercourse to the appeal site.

5. The appeal site is primarily made up of trees, bushes and shrubs, the most
notable of which are the trees towards the front of the site that form part of
the street-scene of Green Hollow Fold. These landscape features are
characteristic of the wider open space corridor which is primarily made up of
dense vegetation along the watercourse.

6. Due to being located on the opposite side of the watercourse combined with
the relatively steep banks on either side, the appeal site is effectively
inaccessible to the public. This however does not detract from it playing an
important role in relation to its contribution to the amenity and biodiversity

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 233


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/G4240/W/20/3253590

value of the wider area of open space. The trees that are located towards the
front of the site are also positive features of the street-scene.

By changing the use of the land to private residential garden and surrounding it
by the fence proposed, this would harmfully erode the value of the site in terms
of its contribution to public amenity and biodiversity. I accept the appellants
worthy intentions in terms of promoting wildlife in the area, however I do not
consider that this justifies removal of an area of public space into private
residential garden, and such enhancements are likely to be achievable without
the necessity to change the use of the appeal site. I am also mindful that such
a change of use would be in perpetuity where any future occupants of the
property may not hold the same aspirations and seek to clear the site of its
landscape features, which would cause further harm in terms of amenity and
biodiversity.

I do not consider that the proposed fence, which would be the same as those
used to surrounding residential properties, overcomes the harm I have
identified with the proposal.

Whilst each application and appeal must be treated on its individual merits,
allowing the appeal could be used in support of such similar schemes. I
consider that this is not a generalised fear of precedent, but a realistic and
specific concern given the shared characteristics with similar properties in the
area. Allowing this appeal would make it more difficult to resist further planning
applications for similar developments, and I consider that their cumulative
effect would contribute to an overall harm to the wider area which I have
described above.

10. The proposal would therefore be an unsuitable location to form a private

11.

garden for the adjacent dwelling having regard to open space provision. It
would not form one of the exceptions as outlined in Policy OL4 of the Tameside
Unitary Development Plan (2004) which seeks to protect areas of green space.

It would also be contrary to Chapters 8 and 15 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) which seek, amongst other things, the protection of open
space and the conservation and enhancement of the natural environment.

Conclusion

12. For the reasons given above, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.

A M Nilsson

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 2342


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. OBJECTION REPORT TO PROPOSED PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDERS
	5. OBJECTION TO THE TAMESIDE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL (MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON UNDER LYNE) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2020
	ITEM 5 - Appendix A
	ITEM 5 - Appendix B 1
	ITEM 5 - Appendix B 2
	ITEM 5 - Appendix B 3
	ITEM 5 - Appendix C
	Sheets and Views
	0004



	6.a) 20/00105/REM - Former Robertson's Jam Factory, Williamson Lane, Droylsden
	location plan
	Sheets and Views
	BHM104 - AUDENSHAW WM01 Waste Management Plan


	photos
	Proposed housetypes1
	Proposed housetypes2
	proposed layout plan
	Sheets and Views
	BHM104 - AUDENSHAW PL01 Planning Layout


	Proposed streetscenes

	6.b) 20/00559/FUL - 218 Audenshaw Road, Audenshaw, M34 5QR
	Location plan
	photos
	Proposed bungalow plans
	Sheets
	PL_05 - Planning Layout
	PL_06 - Proposed Bungalow Plan & Elevations


	Proposed mill conversion
	Sheets
	PL_07 - Proposed Mill Conversion Plans & Elevations


	Proposed site plan
	Sheets
	PL_05 - Planning Layout
	PL_06 - Proposed Bungalow Plan & Elevations



	6.c) 20/00585/FUL - 4 Miller Hey, Mossley, OL5 9PP
	Existing Elevation
	Existing First Floor Plans
	Existing Ground Floor Plans
	Location Plan
	Photographs
	Proposed Elevations
	Proposed First Floor Plans
	Proposed Ground Floor Plans
	Proposed Site Plan

	7.a) APP/TPO/G4240/7652 - 18 Water Gate, Audenshaw, M34 5QP
	7.b) APP/G4240/D/20/3253884 - 70 Tennyson Avenue, Dukinfield, SK16 5DP
	7.c) APP/G4240/D/20/3249221 - 22 Sandringham Avenue, Audenshaw, M34 5NE
	7.d) APP/G4240/D/20/3251980 - 29 Mollets Wood, Denton, M34 3TW
	7.e) APP/G4240/Z/20/3247345 - 402 Manchester Road, Droylsden, Manchester, M43 6QX
	7.f) APP/G4240/D/20/3244243 - 94 Granada Road, Denton, M34 2LA
	7.g) APP/G4240/W/20/3251879 - 12 Hall Avenue, Heyrod, Stalybridge SK15 3DF
	7.h) APP/G4240/W/20/3253590 - Land directly adjacent to 6 Green Hollow Fold, Stalybridge, SK15 3RP

